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Capital Group established Beijing
Capital Land Ltd. by integration of
the quality property resources
within the Group
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Successfully introduced GIC as its
strategic shareholder and partner,
which marked the internationalization
of the Company's capital operation
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On June 19, the Company was listed
on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange
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Tapped into Tianjin market, marking
the full implementation of the
strategy of "Start from Beijing and
towards the Country"
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By 2005, the Company rooted in
Beijing market, and successfully
developed more than 20 landmark
projects
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"First City" launched in Shenyang,
Tianjin, Xi'an and Chongqing
simultaneously, with the site area of
more than 3.2 million sq. m.
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Sales revenue exceeded RMB10
billion for the first time
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Introduced a new integrated residential

complex model of "Residential +
Outlets"
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Successfully issued 5-year
corporate bonds of RMB1 billion,
which was the first trading
corporate bonds in the Shanghai
Stock Exchange issued by a H-share
property enterprise
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Strategic transformation, fully
promoted the "Residential + " product
line
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Invested in primary land
development project in Wuqging
District, Tianjin, building primary and
secondary land joint development
pattern
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Tapped into Hainan market and
established the nationwide layout of
three major economic circles i.e Bohai
Rim, Mid-Southwestern region and
Yangtze River Delta
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Obtained credit facilities of RMB10

billion from each of China
Construction Bank and Bank of China
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Obtained credit facilities of RMB20
billion from China Development
Bank
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Successfully issued 3-year corporate
bond of RMB1.15 billion, which was
the first Renminbi bond in Hong Kong
issued by a domestic non-financial
enterprise with a guarantee structure
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Introduced CYTS as its strategic partner
to develop tourism properties
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Explored abroad to construct
"Sino-French Economic and Trade
Cooperation Zone” in Chateauroux,
France
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Acquired Beijing Li Ze Financial Business
District Project and fully promoted the
“City Integrated Operation Model”
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Grand opening of Beijing Capital Outlgts ,
marking the commencement of rapid_
growth of the Company's commercial
property business
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Successfully issued 3-year bond of RMB 2
billion, which was commented by
Bloomberg Business Week (Chinese
version) as the breakthrough transaction
of RMB Bonds in 2012
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Successfully issued senior perpetual
capital securities of US$400 million, which
caught up with the international US$
capital market
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
R

INTERIM REPORT 2013

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Beijing
Capital Land Ltd. (“BCL” or the “Company”; together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the Group’s
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2013.

During the first half of 2013, despite signs of rebound in the US
economy, the economies in other countries, especially those
in Europe, were still subject to considerable uncertainties.
The world economy has been slowly reaching its recovery
momentum. Domestically, the new Central Government shifted
its focus to stabilizing growth, adjusting structure and stepping
up reforms, which would take the economy of China into “a
phase of transformation”. Albeit moderating, the country’s
gross domestic product still grew at 7.6% year on year,
reaffirming the stable trend from a macroeconomic perspective.

During the first half of 2013, the real estate market in China
continued to pick up from the recovery since the end of last
year. The new adjustment policy, implemented through the
“Five Regulations at the State Level” illustrated additional
efforts in defining targets for adjusting property prices,
purchase restrictions and credit tightening. It has yet to inflict
a real impact on the real estate market in the short run. Driven
by strong demand, the country’s real estate market exhibited
rapid development momentum and the growth in investments
for property development was significantly accelerated while
transaction volume in the urban residential market continued
to rebound, supporting stable growth in property prices in
major cities. Geographically, growth momentum in the first and
second tier cities of Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen
and other provincial capitals was much stronger than that of
the third and fourth tier cities. In terms of product structure,
products tailored for owner-occupier and demand for improving
living conditions exhibited stronger sales performances.
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From long-term perspective, the newly developed urbanization
construction model has become the mainstay of China's
economic development. The main concerns of the Central
Government are to promote high-efficiency, intensive
urbanization construction, which are also the focus of
governments on different levels. If resources in land supply
from rural regions can be released, it can raise purchasing
power of the rural residents that will in turn stimulate demand.
On the other hand, it also helps to increase supply of land
and mitigate the price pressure from the limited supply of land
resources, contributing to the long-term stability and healthy
development of the real estate sector.

During the first half of 2013, adapting to changes in
government policies and market demand, the Group further
adjusted and optimized its product structure, implemented
its strategic transformation and continued to adhere to its
business principles of integrated operations and value-
driven management. On one hand, our land development
and product design were all focused on owner-occupier and
demand for improving living conditions. On the other hand,
we explored new thoughts that combined the Group’s new
models of integrated product lines for residential properties
and “New Model of Urbanization” plan promulgated by the
Central Government in developing our “Residence + Outlets”,
“Residence + Tourism” and “Residence + Education” product
lines, etc., and obtained outstanding results. Beijing Novotown,
Tianjin International Peninsula, Hainan BCL Outlets Integrated
Project and Kunshan BCL Outlets Integrated Project achieved
satisfactory sales results.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s contracted sales in terms of
gross floor area (“GFA”) amounted to approximately at 723,000
sg.m., with contracted sales value aggregated at RMB6.6
billion, up 8% year on year, with an average price of RMB9,110
per sq.m., up 23% year on yeatr.
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During the period under review, the Group recognized sales
revenue of RMB4,889,506,000, up 40% year on year. Net
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
RMB562,161,000, up 6% year on year. The Board resolved not
to declare any interim dividend for the six months ended 30
June 2018.

During the period, the Group struck a significant breakthrough
in its “Residence + Outlets” business. The Beijing BCL Outlets
celebrated its grand opening on 1 May and attracted 100,000
visitors and achieved sales volume of approximately RMB8
million on the first day. Many first-tier international brands
including ARMANI have already established their footholds at
the Outlet and achieved encouraging operating results. At the
same time, Integrated Outlets Projects in Huzhou and Hainan
will conduct grand openings ceremonies shortly. The Beijing
BCL Outlets has marked a successful beginning and a model
for the Group’s commercial real estate operation. Capitalizing
on this opportunity, the Group will roll out and replicate this
commercial real estate business model countrywide.

During the period, the Group adhered to its strategy of
“focusing on property development in core cities” in land
replenishment and acquired new land reserves in Beijing,
Tianjin and Chongaging with aggregate GFA of 1.76 million
sg.m. In January 2013, the Group has successfully acquired
land lots FO2, FO3 and FO5 in Li Ze Financial Business District
in Beijing with an aggregate planned GFA of 490,000 sqg.m.
and it will be developed into a high-end urban integrated
superstructure complex on subway station in a core district
in Beijing. This is a prestige project in a prime location that
should raise its influence in the Beijing market. Li Ze Financial
Business District is located adjacent to the second ring of
the city of Beijing and is among the “three emerging financial
function district” in the “one main, one ancillary, three new, four
backings” financial urban planning landscape for the future of
the capital. The Company had succeeded in winning the tender
over a number of highly competitive industry peers, thanks to
its edges in integrated operations accumulated over the years
and the synergies with the city railroad business of the parent
company.
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During the period, the liquidity of the Group remained stable.
Building on a foundation of high-quality bank borrowings, the
Group actively explored into innovations in financing in an effort
to establish a diversified financing platform. In a pioneer move,
the Group successfully issued US$400 million senior perpetual
capital securities in April 2013, which obtained 8 times
oversubscription. It becomes the first property company to
issue perpetual securities based on a “keepwell” deed. The
Group has also been moving forward to its “light-asset” model
transformation through establishments of property investment
funds in cooperation with international and domestic financial
institutions.

In the second half of 2013, the Group will adapt to the
“new model urbanization” plan promulgated by the Central
Government and continue to adhere its core “integrated
operation, value-driven management and high-speed turnover”
development strategy. It will proactively implement its
geographical expansion and product structure optimization.
In geographic expansion, the Group will continue to expand
into Bohai Rim Region, Yangtze River Delta and mid-south-
western regions as its strategic core regions, while focusing
on developments in major cities and continuing to reinforce its
headquarter position in the Beijing-Tianjin region. In product
structure, the Group will respond swiftly to market demand and
continue to focus on developing high-speed turnover owner-
occupier residences. The Group will also develop the “new
model residential complex” operation model led by the Outlets
in order to create better value to regional development and
products.

2013 marks the 10th anniversary of the Company’s listing in
Hong Kong. On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like
to extend my sincerest gratitude to all shareholders, business
partners and customers, for their care, support and assistance
to the Group in the past decade. As we stride into the next
decade, the Group will aspire to speed up its transformation,
proactively explore ways to continue to sharpen its competitive
edges and strike for grooming the Group into the most valuable
integrated property developer in China.

Liu Xiaoguang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 August 2013
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

During the period under review, the Group’s revenue amounted
to RMB4,889,506,000 (2012: RMBS3,484,843,000). Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company reached
RMB562,161,000 (2012: RMB528,689,000). Earnings per
share attributable to equity holders of the Company (basic and
diluted) were RMB28 cents (2012: RMB26 cents). The Board
resolved not to declare any interim dividend in respect of the
six months ended 30 June 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the first half of 2013, against the persistent deepening
control policy on the property sector, the Company adhered
to its “maximising scale, accelerating turnover, and optimising
business structure” strategy as it monitored closely to changes
of the market. The Group continued to increase the proportion
of small and medium-sized units targeting at owner-occupier
buyers and achieved satisfactory sales results. In the first half
of 2013, the Company achieved RMB6.6 billion contracted
sales, up 8% from the same period last year and hit a record
high with substantially higher contracted average selling price.

During the first half of 2013, abundance in cash resources
enabled the Company to seize opportunities in land
acquisitions. The Company has acquired four projects in
Beijing, Tianjin and Chongqging that occupy 1.76 million
sg.m. in aggregate planned GFA. In January 2013, the Group
succeeded in winning a tender of property development
project in Li Ze Financial Business District of Beijing, which
is adjacent to the west second ring region, a district that will
be developed into a high-end financial industry cluster by
Beijing Municipal Government. The project has planned GFA
aggregating 490,000 sg.m. of which the above-ground GFA
will be approximately 380,000 sg.m.. It will become a high-
end integrated urban prime project above the metro station at
Beijing’s hub, enhancing the Company’s influence in the Beijing
market.

2013 also marks a year which the Company aspires to
accomplish improvements in its management and services.
During the first half of the year, the Company achieved staged
progresses in the areas of internal control and management,
standardization of operations, brand building and promotion,
and development of information technology infrastructure,
etc., further improving the Group’s management efficiency.
Innovative value-added services, spearheaded by BCL Triathlon
via iClub continued to convey positive energy to China’s
urbanization via all-round customer services, charity events and
social responsibility projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BCL celebrated its 10th anniversary of listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong on 19 June 2013. This is an important
milestone for the Company development. Securing the
integrated commercial project in Li Ze core district in Beijing
marked a strong comeback of the Company to the market in
the capital city. The grand opening of Beijing BCL Outlet for
operation marked a substantial progress for implementation of
BCL'’s “Residence + Industry” transformation, paving the way
for victories in the next decade.

PROPERTY SALES PERFORMANCE

In the first half of 2013, the Group, together with its joint
ventures and associates achieved contracted sales area
aggregating 723,000 sg.m., of which contracted sales area of
residential properties aggregated 700,000 sg.m. Contracted
sales amounted to approximately RMB6.6 billion, up 8% from
the same period last year, of which approximately RMB6.5
billion was generated from sales of residential projects.
Contracted average selling price was in a significant growth
when compared with that of the same period last year.
Geographically, Beijing and Tianjin accounted for 49% of the
sales, up 8 percentage points when compared with that of the
same period last year, of which the Beijing region accounted
for 29% of the sales, up 12 percentage points when compared
with that of the same period last year.
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Approximate Approximate

Approximate Contracted Contracted
Contracted Average Sales
Sales Area Selling Price Revenue
Project BHEEHE HEEE HEHYE HESHE
(sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.) (000 RMB)

(AR®
(FFHK) FHK) (AREFTT)
Residential (Beijing and Tianjin) &% (FEHE) 248,593 13,035 3,240,365
Beijing Landscape Villa b 7R WL 33,138 9,806 324,956
Beijing Novotown b # iR &R 65,714 17,206 1,130,693
Beijing Ballet Town IEREER e AR 12,874 23,949 308,314
Beijing Xanadu bR g EB 1,526 71,117 108,525
The Reflections, Beijing I RGEEE 917 60,013 55,032
Tianjin Noble City R RIRED 25,552 9,167 234,244
Tianjin Landing House RIZE R 23,381 10,054 235,067
Tianjin International Peninsula RKEBBFEHE 42,326 9,867 417,616
Tianjin Fortune Class RERA L 14,997 12,609 189,099
Tianjin Mangrove Bay ROB LT 181 17,569 8,088 142,092
Tianjin A-Z Town KEA-Z Town 10,599 8,937 94,727
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Approximate Approximate
Approximate Contracted Contracted
Contracted Average Sales
Sales Area Selling Price Revenue
BREQ BREQ BREQ
Project HR AR HEEE HEHTE HESH
(sgq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.) (000 RMB)
(ARE/
(F7K) FHK) (ANREFIT)
Residential FEEH2
(outside Beijing and Tianjin) (FEUIMEE) 452,700 7,129 3,227,161
Chengdu Citta Villa RREP R ATT 34,866 5,967 208,050
Chengdu First City P 0 [ B 45 14,116 9,578 135,210
Chengdu Wanjuanshan E & &1L 46,031 5,972 274,909
Shenyang Qipan Hills First Villa RS E AR IL15R 603 13,136 7,921
Shenyang First City v 5 B R 4 36,715 7,075 259,764
Xi’an First City 78 %2 B B 5K 62,210 6,881 428,084
Chongging Hong’en
International Living District EEREERBRHEE 85,436 7,225 617,242
Qingdao Sunny Xiangmi Lake HEEBAREMN 2,546 7,766 19,773
Qingdao Central Park No. 1 FE85BE X AER 13,979 7,987 111,645
Qingdao Airport International Centre & & 22 78 Bl BE & 1 12,049 8,624 103,912
Yantai Sunny Chief Yard EaeBiEbt 14,436 7,832 113,064
Zhenjiang Joyous House SECT I FF 19,969 4,769 95,230
Jiangyin Auspicious House I T 6,105 7,762 47,389
Wuxi Joyous House w5 E AT 11,236 8,458 95,039
Huzhou Joyous House M & BT 26,026 7,905 205,728
Kunshan Outlets B2 1L BRI B Hy 42,905 6,918 296,802
Hainan Wanning Ballet Town BHEEEDEW 23,472 8,836 207,399
Commercial/Office BE BFERS 5,000 13,006 65,031
Xi’an First City 78 % B B 1,376 15,371 21,150
Qingdao Sunny Xiangmi Lake SEBAEEMN 288 10,417 3,000
Qingdao Airport International Centre & & %278 B B & 0 395 15,387 6,078
Yantai Sunny Chief Yard EaBiEkt 2,941 11,834 34,803
Car Park Space BH{y 16,296 3,438 56,029
Total &Ft 722,589 6,588,586
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Geographical distribution of property sales performance in 1H of 2012 and 1H of 2013
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The Group’s prime target for 2013 is to achieve a breakthrough
in its business operation scale. With full support received in
all aspects, including financing, land acquisition, construction,
sales and customer services, the Group strives to achieve a
continuous growth in a contracted sales target for the year.
In the second half of 2013, as projects newly acquired in the
first half are gradually being launched for sale while matured
projects will also commence launches for sale, the Group will
have GFA available for sale aggregating 3 million sg.m., mainly
located in first and second-tier cities where demand is relatively
stable. The abundance in projects available for sale, coupling
with advantageous geographical distribution of the projects, will
establish a strong footing for the Group to accomplish its sales
target for the year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the period, the Group achieved new breakthroughs in
implementing its commercial real estate strategy. The Beijing
Outlets Integrated Project commenced operation and had
accomplished outstanding results, while Integrated Outlets
Projects in Huzhou of Zhejiang, Wanning of Hainan, Kunshan of
Jiangsu and other cities all started leasing simultaneously and
prepare the operation debuts respectively. These marked the
Group’s rapid advancement in becoming a leader in Integrated
Outlets Projects. On 1 May 2013, Beijing BCL Outlets
Integrated Project was officially launched for operation and
with more than 200 global and local brands, attracting more
than 100,000 visitors on the debut day, which generated sales
aggregating RMB8 million. 13 stores hit new sales records in
malls across the country, while 7 stores hit new sales records in
malls in Beijing on the debut day.
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Leveraging the edge in integrated operations, the integrated
outlets development model is now being replicated in various
cities across the country. With Integrated Outlet Projects
as an anchor, consumption of branded goods will attract
strong consumer traffic to promote the overall development
of commercial retail communities, leisure and vacation,
culture and entertainment and a low-carbon-footprint style
of living. This will entice more people to come to consume,
work and live in the district, contributing to establishment of
a strong industry chain. New city centres will evolve around
the Integrated Outlets Projects, supporting lifestyles that are
synchronic with those already being enjoyed elsewhere around
the world.

HOTEL OPERATIONS

During the period, Holiday Inn Central Plaza continued
improvements in service quality to exploit new sources of
customers and maintained stable operation and management.
For the six months ended 30 June 2013, revenue from hotel
operations amounted to approximately RMB46,567,000, at
about the same level of the same period last year. The average
occupancy rate for the period was approximately 73%, up 4
percentage points from that of the same period last year.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In the first half of 2013, the Group, together with its
joint ventures and associate companies, has completed
construction with aggregate GFA at approximately 1,366,163
sg.m., a significant increase when compared to the same
period last year (2012 1H: 467,455 sq.m.).

Projects Completed in First Half of 2013
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Approximate

Completed Attributable
GFA Interest
Project Type BN ERK HAEXE
HE &R k- :Eid] REEER EBiaEzR
(sq.m.)
(FFHXK)
Tianjin International Peninsula Residential 56,928 100%
REBBREFS F=
Tianjin Landing House Residential 17,356 40%
RAEBETNE E=2
Xi’an First City Residential/Commercial/Office 175,542 40%
78 % B R 9 EE/WE/ BFE
Qingdao Airport International Centre  Residential/Commercial 103,119 100%
FEEBBEEF L TE/ T
Zhenjiang Joyous House Residential 142,243 100%
BT F=
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Approximate

Completed Attributable
GFA Interest
Project Type BEA & HEIEX
EHEERE BE WEEME FE 1 FE 2=
(sg.m.)
(F77K)
Chengdu Wanjuanshan Residential 220,850 55%
K EB & %S 1L *=
Chengdu Citta Villa Residential 254,191 55%
KEPER AT *=
Chengdu First City Residential 15,603 100%
XD B B 45 x=
Chongging Hong’en
International Living District Residential 314,853 50%
EEREBEEHE *=E
Hainan Wanning Ballet Town Residential 65,478 55%
BHBEEEN F=
Total & & 1,366,163
LAND BANK +- Ml ik

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s land bank had aggregate
GFA of 10.79 million sg.m., of which the total saleable GFA
of 9.12 million sg.m., (of which, the saleable GFA attributable
to the Group’s equity interests was 7.1 million sg.m.). Total
saleable GFA increased slightly as compared to the end of
2012, of which, saleable GFA attributable to the Group’s equity
interests stayed at about the same level. Geographically, the
Bohai Rim Region accounted for 48%, the mid-south western
regions accounted for 14%, the Yangtze River Delta Region
for 35%, and the Hainan region for 3%. In terms of land use,
approximately 78% was for residential projects, 20% for
commercial projects and office use and 2% for hotels. The
existing land bank is of the optimum scale and sufficient for the
Group’s development in the coming three to four years.

HE-_ZT-—=F"A=1tH £8EAEAH
AR IE1, 0798 F K + it
FEEEmEEI2E T Ak (AP EEmE
7T1I0BFEFK) Tt FEEEmER SR
2012F K- iz Al E @A E12012F RAE It
HEAFFE tHHFEEEEAERER RS D
W& RBEMEI548% & PO &
14% R =AE1535% B REMEES%
W+ AR E  Q78%AEFERAM - 20%
BEE STERM 2% 5B/ERM-BE
MEtHEERAmEERRKR=ZEMNFH
BEZ - RBE@EA-

HOTEL PR E S
Total
Attributable Total GFA  Saleable GFA
No. Project Location Type Interest of Land Bank  of Land Bank
T RE TR
F¥  HEER wELE nEER EiEEE  ABREER BEE®
(sam.) (sqm.)
(FHK) (FHX)
1 Holiday Inn Central Plaza Xicheng District, Beijing Hotel 100% 50,712 50,712
FRBARE RS E BE
2 Inter Continental Financial Xicheng District, Beijing Hotel 34% 58,161 42,900
Street Beijing
SREMREE ERMERLE BE
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY BREWE
Total
Attributable Total GFA  Saleable GFA
No. Project Location Type Interest of Land Bank  of Land Bank
TR T
F¥  EBEER BENE VE3 kil Bz BREER BEAER
(sam.) (sqm.)
(FHK)  (FFK)
3 Beijing Sunshine Building Xicheng District, Beijing Commercial/Office 35% 52,095 34,163
ERBEXAXE RHERE A%/ 578
4 Beijing Hujialou Commercial Chaoyang District, Beijing Apartment/Office 100% 69,298 55,566
EREREHE ERm#AGE RB/BTE
5 Beijing Outlets Integrated Project ~ Fangshan District, Beijing Commercial 100% 170,651 130,751
SRR A ERTEILE EES
6 Huzhou Outlets Integrated Project  Huzhou, Zhejiang Province Commercial 100% 195,000 185,000
M R AT &M T EES
7 Hainan Outlest Integrated Project ~ Wanning, Hainan Province Commercial 55% 103,180 100,879
8 R EEEEED RS
DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY YK
8 Beijing North Ring Centre North Ring Centre Office 100% 5,381 1,862
ERIERHR L ERAL BT
9 Beijing Heping Lane Urban Town Residential 100% 9,210 3,570
ERMTE M 2deN TE
10 Beijing Lize Financial Business - Apartment/Office/Commercial 100% 490,600 379,900
District Project
TREESRAEBRER - BB/ BTE/ A%
11 Beijing Yuyuantan Project The Reflections Residential 100% 10,097 9,690
EREREBEER HEE €
12 Beijing Hujialou Project Xanadu International Centre  Apartment/Commercial 100% 13,169 1,667
EREFEER ERBER L B/ EE
13 Beijing Huang Xin Zhuang Project  Ealing Residential 95% 271,623 264,093
tREFHER {742 Tz
14 Beijing Miyun Project Beijing Landscape Villa Residential 100% 175,793 164,349
ER#EEA HE L FE
15 Beijing Changyang Town Project Outlets Integrated Project Residential/Commercial 100% 36,925 2,412
- Ballet Town
TRRGHER RRRFGEBETR - BE/0x
16 Beijing Fangshan Plot No.4 Project  Novotown Residential/Commercial 18% 80,704 78,273
ERE LT M %/ E%
17 Tianjin Banshan Project First City Residential/Commercial 55% 31,740 2,149
REMIER EEIEES FTE/H¥
18 Tianjin Huaming Project Noble City Residential/Commercial 40% 121,471 121,471
REERER RRE €/ H%
19 Tianjin Xiging Project Landing House Residential/Commercial 40% 36,278 19,178
AEEEER REME FE/m%
20 Tianjin Shuanggang 121 Project Fortune Class Residential/Commercial 55% 112,432 112,432
RE€H12180 R =/ m%
21 Tianjin Shuanggang 122 Project A-Z Town Residential/Commercial 55% 72,877 72,877
KEEE122EE A-Z Town Gt/ HE
22 Tianjin Wuging Project International Peninsula Residential/Commercial/School 100% 617,661 558,880
RERBER BAR+E EE/BE/ 2R
23 Tianjin Mangrove Bay Project Mangrove Bay Residential 90% 26,439 26,439
REMLEIEER G| Tz
24 Tianjin Eco-city Plot No.5 Project - Residential 90% 141,170 132,738
REZEREES A - TFE
25 Tianjin Hongni River Project Eco Village Residential/Commercial 18% 622,276 512,276
RERENER Kam tx/m%
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Total
Attributable Total GFA  Saleable GFA
No. Project Project Name Type Interest of Land Bank  of Land Bank
T RE T
F¥  EEER EEER VES ki EiEEE HBREER BEE®
(sa.m.) (sq.m.)
(F77K) (FH%)
26 Shenyang Shenying Road Project  First City Residential/Commercial 30% 147,003 103,001
BHEEHER B3 FE/m%
27 Shenyang YinheWan Project Qipan Hills First Villa Residential/Commercial 50% 471,217 427,496
BRI EE A BEIL%R =/ m%
28 Shenyang Shenzhong Street Project Eco Village Residential 100% 675,629 576,896
B EDAERR bt Tz
29 Qinhuangdao Gold Coast Project - Residential/Commercial 60% 502,570 502,570
ZEBECRRER - FE/H%
30 Chengdu Shengli Village Project First City Residential/Commercial 100% 58,723 40,989
KEBHER EEIEES €/ H%
31 Chengdu Beiquan Road Project Citta Villa Residential/Commercil 55% 85,181 16,008
AR L SR 5578 B RAT €/ H%
32 Chengdu SCE Project Wanjuanshan Residential/Commercial 55% 225,217 174,716
BRI ATE B B FE/m%
33 Xi'an Fengcheng Road Project First City Residential/Commercial/Office/ 40% 554,938 389,876
Serviced apartment
AZERHEER EEIEES T/ B%/ 578/ BELS
34 Chongging Hongensi Project Hong'en International Residential/Commercil 50% 456,489 317,083
Living District
EFRBFER BREREELR FE/H%
35 Chonggaing Xiyong Project Eco Village Residential 100% 482,181 382,196
EEFKXER A=t Tz
36 Wuxi Dongting Town Project Gentle House Residential 100% 47,348 25,951
BHRSHER EEG =
37 Wuxi Jichang Road Project Joyous House Residential 100% 71,018 50,545
BHKSHER EEAG =
38 Jiangyin Yuyue Project Auspicious House Residential/Commercial 100% 172,543 157,533
TRHBER EEBG %/ E%
39 Huzhou Taihu Project Outlets Integrated Project Residential/Commercial/ 100% 644,365 594,631
Serviced apartment
WM AHER BBRAESE FE/B%/BERE
40 Huzhou Ren Huang Shan Project ~ Huzhou Joyous House Residential 55% 80,327 59,712
MMCELER MR TE
4 Zhenjiang National University Joyous House Residential 100% 161,202 133,748
Science Park Project
BIEFASHEERR EELAG =
42 Kunshan Jinxi Project Eastern Mystery Residential/Commercial 51% 376,259 376,259
2IREEA B RAWE =/ m%
43 Kunshan Economical & Technical ~ Outlets Integrated Project Residential/Commercial 100% 1,108,750 964,594
Development Zone Project
BLSERITRERER BERNGEE ffE/H%
44 Hainan Wanning Project Outlets Integrated Project Residential/Commercial/ 55% 143,964 143,964
Serviced apartment
EHEERA BRRNESE EE/ B/ BERE
45 Qingdao Central Park No.1 Project ~ Central Park No.1 Residential/Commercil 100% 50,856 38,347
E5RE-%ER Bt RE1R Tx/Bm%
46 Qingdao Qiangianshu Project Sunny Xiangmi Lake Residential/Commercial 100% 109,773 109,773
EETTHER GrEEM €/ H%
47 Qingdao Yangbuzhai Project - Residential/Commercial 100% 72,292 72,292
EEBERER - FE/m%
48 Qingdao Jichang Road Project Airport International Centre Apartment/Office/Commercial 100% 149,948 139,777
EEHGHIER ZEEBRS O LB/ BTE/HE
49 Yantai Sunny Chief Yard Project Sunny Chief Yard Residential/Commercial 100% 365,404 259,474
EaBtakER B ER %/ E%
Total &3f 10,788,140 9,121,558
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Geographical distribution of total saleable GFA of land bank are as follows:
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at June 30, 2013, the Group had a professional team of
1,390 staff with an average age of 32.3. In terms of education,
65.1% of the employees were graduates with bachelor’s
degrees or above, of which 10.4% had master’s degrees or
above. Of the total number of staff, employees at the middle to
senior levels accounted for 25.3%.

In 2013, the Group continued to deepen its strategic
management and speed up the transformation of its
subsidiaries into profit centers in order to maximize its
shareholder value. The Group also placed more emphases
on building of a corporate culture and establish a value
incentive scheme with reference to different business sectors.
Meanwhile, efforts have persistently been invested into human
resources and returns that can be generated, and nurture high-
caliber talents. The goal is to create an open and transparent
platform for employees to further develop their careers and
provide focused training to talents that fulfill the requirements of
the Group and stimulate the staff’'s impetus to develop on their
own.
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ANALYSIS ON BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
Overview of China’s Property Market

China’s economy entered a critical stage of “structural
adjustments and transformation” in the first half of 2013.
Subject to the pressure from sluggish recovery of the global
economy and the retarding growth in the domestic economy,
a possible “expectation overshoot” for the rate of slowdown
has evolved into the major risk at the macroeconomic level.
Nonetheless, China’s GDP still grew by 7.6% year on year
during the first half of 2013, maintaining a relatively stable pace
of growth.

Under such a stable macroeconomic landscape, the China real
estate markets remained relatively robust, mainly in the areas of
investments and sales.

In the area of investments, during the first half of the year,
investments in China property developments aggregated
RMB3,682.8 billion, up 20.3% year on year. Of which, about
RMB2,522.7 billion was invested in residential property
development, up 20.8% and contributed to 68.5% of the
country’s total investments in property development. The year-
on-year growth rates were all in excess of 15% in eastern,
central or western China. The GFA under construction of all
property developers in the country aggregated 5,494.08 million
sg.m., up 156.5% year on year, of which 4,035.21 million sg.m.
was for residential property developments, up 12.9% year on
year.

Sales were even more robust during the first half of the year
and grew more quickly than that of investments. Commodity
housing aggregated 514.33 million sg.m. in GFA was sold,
up 28.7% vyear on year. Of which, GFA sold in residential
properties grew by 30.4%, while GFA sold in office properties
grew by 31.7%, and GFA sold in retail commercial properties
grew by 8.3%. Sales of commodity housing aggregated
RMBS3,337.6 billion, up 43.2%, of which, sales of residential
properties grew by 46% while sales of office properties grew by
45.7% and sales of retail commercial properties increased by
20.5%.

Looking at the overall situation, the property sector grew at a
relatively rapid pace during the first half of the year with key
measure growing substantially, faster than other indicators
of the country’s economy. The prosperity in the property
sector was largely a result of relative abundance of liquidity.
Property enterprises were abundant in liquidity with paid-up
funding reaching RMB5,722.5 billion, up 32.1%. At the same
time, most of the local and regional governments adopted
a more lenient approach on implementation of the “new five
rules” that inflicted no material impact on property sector.
With professional management and strategic adjustments
implemented timely, the industry acted appropriately in
response to the macroscopic adjustment policies.
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The “new model of urbanization” long-term development plan
promulgated in the 18th CCP National Congress brought
about new opportunities for the property sector. Instead of
merely increase in investment scale, the new model undertakes
responsibilities of “speeding up the country’s economic
transformation to promote emerging industries development”,
and shifts the industry’s model from coarse growth to refined
development, a perspective that has been well-sought in the
industry. Having endeavored substantial efforts in identifying
links between the “new model of urbanization” and its own
development strategies, the Group has been developing
pathways that accommodate its integrated operation and
value-driven development strategies. It will evolve to be the key
element which the Group achieves breakthrough in its business
scale.

(Source: National Bureau of Statistics)

Overview of Property Market in Bohai Rim Region

The Beijing-Tianjin Metropolis cluster has always been a
cluster of cities that warrants state-level attention. It targets in
developing into the second world-class city cluster following
the Yangtze River Delta. As the dual cores of the Bohai Rim
Economic Zone, Beijing and Tianjin have been implementing
relatively stringent adjustment policies. Despite this, the severe
imbalance in scarcity of supply and strong demand has been
fuelling the activities in the residential property markets in these
two cities. Following the changes in political and economic
environments, numerous growth drivers start to emerge in the
Bohai Rim Region Economic Zone, mostly in the following three
areas.

First, commercial real estates in Beijing and Tianjin, especially
those in Beijing, will have great development potential. At the
moment, the commercial real estate operation model has yet to
reach maturity. There are only a few property companies which
excel in commercial operation. Those, which can develop a
path of excel in commercial real estate operations, will become
leading enterprises in the region.

Second, as the economies in Beijing and Tianjin grow in larger
scale, communications and exchanges between the two cities
will be strengthened and become more homogeneous than
ever. The development of inter-city transportation infrastructure
will further accelerate the process. The growing homogeneity of
Beijing and Tianjin will become an essential point of growth for
the property market in the Bohai Rim Region.

Third, integration of the dual cores of Beijing and Tianjin will
drive the development of the three neighboring provinces.
Despite the fact that Bohai Rim Region Economic Zone has
become the country’s fastest growth region after Yangtze River
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Delta and Pearl River Delta, the benefits brought about by city
clusters in this region still lag behind those in the former two
regions. With the exception of Dalian and a few other cities, the
economies in these three provinces still substantially lag behind
Beijing and Tianjin. One of the main themes of the “new model
of urbanization” long-term development plan promulgated in
the 18th CCP National Congress is to better exploit synergies
from city clusters to achieve balanced development in the city
clusters, cultivating new growth opportunities in the property
sector.

Overview of Property Market in Yangtze River Delta Region

Benefit from an abundance of natural resources, a prime
geographical location and preferential government policies,
Yangtze River Delta is still the most prosperous region that
derives the best synergies from clustering of cities, with the
strongest purchasing power in China. As the sole world-class
city cluster in China, Yangtze River Delta region has developed
a strategic landscape that features Shanghai as the core, and
Nanjing, Hangzhou, Suzhou, Wuxi and Ningbo as five ancillary
cores, enjoying similar levels of economic development. The
property market in this region is relatively mature, attracting
fierce competition among numerous branded property
developers.

Driven by economic development and population growth,
the residential property market will maintain growth at a
relatively fast pace with intensifying competition from many
branded property developers in one hand. On the other
hand, stronger consumption power will increase diversity in
consumption needs. Diversified business models in commercial
and industrial real estate will enable property developers
to establish unique pathway under fierce competition in
matured markets. Developed core-centric city transportation
infrastructure will facilitate and be convenience to exchanges
within the core. Commercial and industrial real estates in any
region may flourish the whole economic zone. Huzhou as an
example has enjoyed huge growth potential after it became
the hub of many high-speed routes within the Ning-Hang high
speed-rail network in the first half of 2013.

Overview of Property Markets in Mid-South Western China

Compared with the two major economic zones of Bohai Rim
and Yangtze River Delta, the mid-south western regions started
their developments at a later stage and still at early stages
of urbanization currently but already in a rapid growth phase.
These regions comprise of two major zones: the Chengdu-
Chongqging Economic Zone and the Guanzhong-Tianshui
Economic Zone with Xi’an as the core.
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The property markets in these regions have yet been
developed but already entered into a rapid development phase,
which is the best time for property developers to enter the
markets. On one hand, Chengdu, Chongqging and Xi’an have
been enjoying rapid economic growth and have emerged
as key economic cities in the western region. On the other
hand, the three core cities are mainly surrounded by third and
fourth-tier cities with no large or medium-sized cities which
is the focus districts to be developed under the “new model
urbanization” plan. Viewing Chengdu-Chongging Economic
Zone as an example, the Chongging NPC members, in a
collective motion, delivered “Opinions on grooming Chongging
Chengdu city cluster into a state-level cluster that promotes
development of the western regions” in the 18th CCP National
Congress conference held in 2013. The motion initiated hot
debates among delegates and has been included as a key
suggestion in the National People’s Congress conference
and perfectly matched with the direction outlined from the
“new model urbanization” plan stipulated in the 18th CCP
National Congress. The objective of the Chengdu-Chongaging
city cluster is not to groom Chengdu and Chongging into
metropolitan cities, but to use Chongging and Chengdu as
drivers to deepen the urbanization in the neighboring third— and
fourth-tier cities and small towns. During the process, property
developers will become a major support for urbanization
development in the region.

Overview of Property Market in Hainan

Hainan is the largest special economic zone and the sole
tropical Island-province in China. As one of the five pioneer
special economic zones since China’s implementation of
reform and open policy, Hainan has enjoyed early development
in its property market, but still with erratic movements and
severe asset bubbles in the past. In possession of unique
tourism resources, Hainan has always been enjoying
substantial growth potential in its economy. Following
restructuring efforts in recent years, the economy and
property market in Hainan are on track for healthy and rapid
development. On one hand, the owner-occupier residential
market has developed rapidly, with ongoing increases in
investments in the property sector. On the other hand, the
rich tourism resources on the island have spurred growth
and development of tourism properties. This is an unique
and precious gift which Hainan has been enjoying, and a
competitive edge for tourism property development. As the
residential property market resumes to normal, the boom in
tourism properties will bring a bright future for the property
market in Hainan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, development brought about by the “new
model urbanization” plan will increase demand in the property
sector and more land supply will alleviate pressure from
increasing land cost, contributing to the long-term healthy
development of the property market. Nonetheless, at the
time of implementation of the “new model urbanization”
plan, in addition to residential developments, there will be
demand for ancillary amenities including services, retail,
commercial and manufacturing industries, raising the needs
for planning abilities and professional knowledge of property
developers. As the Central Government maintains its persistent
macroscopic control policies in the property sector, while
enlarging the pilot scheme for property taxes, the industry will
achieve optimization and upgrading and accelerate innovative
developments. Product mix will be increasingly integrated and
diversified. There will be more severe differentiation within the
industry, with escalating pressure to phase out participants
who are unable to adapt to the changes in the market.

In view of these developments, the Group will implement the
following development strategies in the second half of 2013:

° Continue to optimize the product mix by raising the
proportion of housing that satisfies the owner-occupier
demand. The Group strives to launch the new projects
acquired during the first half for sale within the same
year

° Continue to reinforce the Group’s leadership, foundation
and strengths in its base camp in Beijing and Tianjin,
while proactively expand to core strategic regions in
Bohai Rim, Yangtze River Delta, and mid-south western
region, accumulating premium land resources to support
breakthroughs in its development scale

° Proactively review and promote the successful
experiences from Beijing BCL Outlets model, replicating
into other cities to sustain the Group’s competitive
advantage, while implementing the “Residence +
Outlets”, “Residence + Tourism” and “Residence +
Education” integrated development model by introducing
more business partners

° Develop innovations in financing by continuing to
implement the “light-asset” model and strengthen the
overseas financing platform, further optimizing asset
liability structure to provide more liquidity to support
breakthroughs in business scale

° Pursue more detailed and standardized management
and use economic value-add (EVA) model to evaluate
the shareholder value for the Group’s operations in
major cities and its top-tier projects, further speeding
up turnover of shareholder fund to promote growth in
business scale and enhance value-driven management
capabilities
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

1.

Revenue and Operating Results

In the first half of 2013, revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB4,889,506,000 (2012 1H:
RMB3,484,843,000), representing an increase of 40%
from the first half of 2012. The increase in revenue was
mainly attributable to the increase in projects completed
and occupied during the year, such as Chengdu
Wanjuanshan and Chongging Hongensi Project.

In the first half of 2013, the Group achieved a
gross margin after business tax and surcharges of
approximately 26%, representing a decrease of 12
percentage point when comparing with 38% in the first
half of 2012, being mainly attributable to a comparatively
high gross margin generated by the projects like Urban
Town and Beijing Ballet Town which accounted for a
large proportion of the revenue in the first half of 2012.

In the first half of 2013, operating profit of the Group
was approximately RMB1,088,523,000 (2012 1H:
RMB872,801,000), representing an increase of
approximately 25% compared to the first half of 2012.

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Liability
Position

During the period under review, the Group maintained a
healthy liquidity position and a reasonable appropriation
of financial resources. As at 30 June 2013, the
Group’s total assets were RMB47,118,748,000 (31
December 2012: RMB47,536,488,000) and non-
current assets were RMB9,670,686,000 (31 December
2012: RMB9,717,909,000); and the total liabilities
were RMB34,720,158,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB37,533,477,000) of which, current liabilities
were RMB23,005,890,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB21,822,841,000) and non-current liabilities
were RMB11,714,268,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB15,710,636,000), and the owners’ equity
reached RMB12,398,590,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB10,003,011,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is of sound liquidity and solvency. Current
ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2013 was 1.63 (31
December 2012: 1.73).

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents amounted to RMB7,919,089,000
(31 December 2012: RMBS8,616,773,000), which
represented sufficient cash flow for operations.

Bank borrowings and bond of the Group as at 30 June
2013 amounted to RMB17,949,913,000 (31 December
2012: RMB18,558,353,000), of which the long-term
borrowings and bond amounted to RMB11,011,886,000
(81 December 2012: RMB15,076,913,000), which were
mainly used to fulfill the capital requirements of the
Group’s property development projects.

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
USD89,040,000 (approximately RMB550,880,000) came
from Hong Kong and repaid in USD.

As at 30 June 2013, the Company’s net gearing ratio
was 81% (31 December 2012: 99%). Net gearing
ratio of the Group is calculated by the interest-bearing
liabilities net of net cash and bank balances and then
divided by total owners’ equity.

Changes in Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

During the period, Shenyang Capital Xinyun Real Estate
Co., Ltd. CBES EAIFTEE X AR A7), a subsidiary of
the Group was incorporated in January 2013, and 100%
of its equity interest were held by the Group.

During the period, Beijing Tiancheng Yongxin Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (At R KRHKEE X AR A A, a subsidiary
of the Group was incorporated in February 2013, and
100% of its equity interest were held by the Group.

During the period, Chongging Shouyong Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (EEHKEZEAR A A), a subsidiary of the
Group was incorporated in March 2013, and 100% of its
equity interest were held by the Group.

During the period, Tianjin Xinjing Investment Co., Ltd.
(REZSREABRAT), a subsidiary of the Group
was incorporated in June 2013, and 100% of its equity
interest were held by the Group.
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During the period, the Group disposed its entire equity
interests in its subsidiaries, Outlets Property Investment
Guang Dong Ltd. (RBEHKHFEXZERERAF),
Guangdong Guansheng Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (ERBAE X AR A A), Guangdong Jingsheng
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (ER S &K E
¥ B[R A7) and Guangdong Rongxin Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (ERELEEEXZER A A))
respectively.

During the period, the Group disposed its entire equity
interests in Beijing Yongyuan Jintai Investment Co.,
Ltd. (bR k m e HREEETEEFR A A) (hereinafter
“Yongyuan Jintai”) and Beijing Xingtai Jicheng Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (It REZREKEEEGR A
7)) (hereinafter “Xingtai Jicheng”) to Kunshan Chuangbo
Sheng Xin Equity Investment Centre ( & Ll |18 5% {5
& & 0 ) (Limited Partnership), Kunshan Chuangbo
Shun Xin Equity Investment Centre ( £ 1L &I1E B &R &
f0) (Limited Partnership), Kunshan Chuangbo Tong
Ying Equity Investment Centre ( & 1L BB & H % & F
I3) (Limited Partnership) and Kunshan Chuangbo Fu
Xin Equity Investment Centre (R ILAIBZEEHREH )
(Limited Partnership) (hereinafter “Kunshan Chuangbo
Fund”) which is a wholly owned subsidiary established
by Tianjin Tonghua Qiangyu Investment Management
Co., LA (REBERFREETEAMRAF), as a
general partner of the Fund.

During the period, the Company holds 16.4% of the
subordinated units in Kunshan Chuangbo Fund, and
40% voting rights of the investment strategy making
committee. Kunshan Chuangbo Fund holds 100%
equity interests in Yongyuan Jintai and Xingtai Jicheng.
According to the partnership agreements, the Group
and other partners jointly control the investment and
operational strategy of Kunshan Chuangbo Fund,
Yongyuan Jintai and Xingtai Jicheng, and they are
recognised as joint ventures.

Entrusted Deposits and Overdue Time Deposits

As at 30 June 2013, the Group did not have any
deposits under trusts in financial institutions in the
PRC and Hong Kong. All of the Group’s cash was
held in commercial banks in PRC and Hong Kong in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The
Group has no bank deposits which are not recoverable
upon maturity.

Secured Borrowings

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB1,550,000,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB1,550,000,000) were secured by rights to yields on
certain land use rights (gains on transfer of the land use
rights or other profit obtained from use of the related
land use rights).
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As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB3,100,608,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB5,234,960,000) were secured by certain properties
under development.

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB330,027,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB362,877,000) were secured by hotel properties and
the land use rights.

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB1,022,571,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB800,000,000) were pledged by equity interests of
subsidiaries held and guaranteed by the Group.

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB2,461,282,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB2,562,496,000) were secured by the guarantee
provided by the Group for its subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB1,380,500,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB573,900,000) were secured by the guarantee
provided by the Group for its subsidiaries and were
pledged by certain properties under development of its
subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB170,000,000 (31 December 2012: Nil) were
secured by the guarantee provided by the Group for
its subsidiaries and were pledged by the real estate
development projects of its subsidiaries and its
corresponding income right interest.

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB245,000,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB307,500,000) were secured by the primary land
development rights and its corresponding equity and
income right interest held by the Group.

As at 30 June 2013, trust loans of RMB996,000,000
(31 December 2012: RMB996,000,000) were
secured by receivables of the Group due from its
subsidiaries and guarantee by the Group; trust
loans of RMB1,299,600,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB1,248,600,000) were guaranteed by the Group;
trust loans of RMB1,000,000,000 (31 December 2012:
Nil) were secured by the guarantee provided by Capital
Group.
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Corporate Bonds

As at 30 June 2013, there was no early redemption of
the corporate bonds of RMB4,116,324,000 in value
issued by the Group.

In February 2011, BECL Investment Holding Limited
issued RMB1,150,000,00 bond with maturity of 3 years
and coupon rate of 4.75% guaranteed by the Group.

In November 2012, Central Plaza Development Ltd.
issued 3-year bond of RMB2,000,000,000 at a coupon
rate of 7.6% per year, guaranteed by certain subsidiaries
of the Group including International Financial Center
Property Ltd.

Senior Perpetual Capital Securities

In April 2013, Central Plaza Development Ltd. issued
USD400,000,000 Senior Perpetual Capital Securities
(“Securities”) at an annual rate of 8.375%, guaranteed
by certain subsidiaries of the Group including
International Financial Center Property Ltd. The
Securities have no maturity date and are redeemable at
the option of the Issuer. The Securities are classified as
equity in the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had arranged bank facilities for certain
purchasers of its properties and provided guarantees
to secure the repayment obligations of such
purchasers. The outstanding balances of guarantees
amounted to RMB4,059,348,000 (31 December 2012:
RMBS3,822,872,000).

Such guarantees will terminate upon (i) the issuance of
the real estate ownership certificate which will generally
be available within six months to two years after the
Group delivers possession of the relevant property
to its purchasers; (i) the completion of the mortgage
registration; and (iii) the issuance of the real estate
miscellaneous right certificate relating to the relevant

property.

As at 30 June 2013, other than guarantees provided for
long-term bank borrowings of RMB7,574,953,000 (31
December 2012: RMB6,280,996,000) and guarantee
provided for BECL Investment Holding Limited and
Central Plaza Development Ltd. for the issuance of
corporate bond of RMB3,150,000,000 (31 December
2012: RMB3,150,000,000) and USD400,000,000 Senior
Perpetual Capital Securities (31 December 2012: Nil),
the Group had no material external guarantee.
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
B BT IBE A BB o0 A = 2B R

SHARE CAPITAL

As of 30 June 2013, there was a total issued share capital of
2,027,960,000 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
include:

Jie A

ARRRZZE-—=FNA=ZTHNBEET
IR 7N /32,027,960,0000% A 17+ B AR B 4E -

Approximate
Number of percentages
Shares of share capital

R4 8 E RABNE G

Domestic Shares W& % 649,205,700 32.01%
Non-H Foreign Shares FEHRR INE iR 357,998,300 17.65%
H Shares HA% 1,020,756,000 50.34%

2,027,960,000 100%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

So far as is known to any directors of the Company, as of
30 June 2013, the following parties (other than the directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

BB A IR A DL

ARRBMZF-=ZFA=1TH ENE
ERE FIIAL (UEARRRIZESFHS
AREEANEB ) RAR R Bty R AR o 7
BAREES L RERAIXVEEE2 %387
MEARNR ZERBIKA

Approximate percentages Approximate percentages
in relevant class of shares (%) in total issued share capital (%)
EEBERRG ZBOB DL (%) EEBERTRAZBOB (%)
Number
of Shares
directly and Class of Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
Name of shareholders indirectly held Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
EEREE
BRREH FEZRABE RHER ERER BEES ERAY ERER BEEE BHAY
Capital Group 924,441,900"  Non-listed Shares 30.88 60.90 91.78 15.34 30.25 45.58
TREBEEEEBRAR EAil S (long position)  (long position) (long position)  (long position)
(1F8) (F8) (#7%8) (F8)
27,178,000"  H Shares - 2.66 2.66 - 1.34 1.34
HRk (long position) (long position)
(F8) (42)
Beijing Sunshine Real 322,654,800%  Non-listed Shares 4.7 27.33 32.04 2.34 13.57 15.91
Estate Comprehensive ¥ EmRR (long position)  (long position) (long position)  (long position)
Development Company (HF8) (F8) (IF8) (H8)
ERBAEE 27,178,000  H Shares - 2,66 266 - 1.34 1.34
GABEEAF H (long position) (long position)
(HF#8) (F8)
Beijing Capital Sunshine 275,236,200°  Non-listed Shares - 27.33 27.33 - 13.57 13.57
Real Estate Development FLEmkH (long position) (long position)
Co., Ltd. (F#8) (##8)
EREEGLEHE 27,178,000  H Shares - 266 2.66 - 1.34 1.34
BREFRAF HRk (long position) (long position)
(F8) (42)
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Approximate percentages

in relevant class of shares (%)

EERERRG 2BAE 2 (%)

Approximate percentages

in total issued share capital (%)

EEBERTRAZBNE D (%)

Number
of Shares
directly and Class of Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
Name of shareholders indirectly held Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
EEREE
BRRE® HEZRABE RHER EER BEES ERAY ERER BEEs BRAY
Beijing Capital Technology 172,006,700 Non-listed Shares 17.08 - 17.08 8.48 - 8.48
Investment Ltd. E i< (long position) (long position)
FREARHREERAE (F8) (#F%8)
Beijing Shou Chuang Jian 118,747,600 Non-listed Shares 11.79 - 11.79 5.86 - 5.86
She Co., Ltd. FEmkG (long position) (long position)
EREERZARDA (F8) (#7%8)
China Resource Products 275,236,200 Non-listed Shares 27.33 - 27.33 13.57 - 13.57
Limited FEmkG (long position) (long position)
HENEERDA (F8) (#F%8)
27,178,000 H Shares 2.66 - 2.66 1.34 - 1.34
HRk (long position) (long position)
(42) (F2)
Yieldwell International 82,762,100 Non-listed Shares 8.22 - 8.22 4,08 - 4,08
Enterprise Limited ¥ EmRn (long position) (long position)
BEEARCEARDA (42) (F2)
Fexi Holdings Limited 82,762,100¢  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4,08 4,08
¥ EmRn (long position) (long position)
(fF8) (42)
Brocade City Holdings 82,762,100 Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4,08 4,08
Limited ¥ EmRR (long position) (long position)
BRIERERAF (fF8) (42)
Ngai Shu Susanna 82,762,1009  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4,08 4,08
e E i {) (long position) (long position)
(fF8) (42)
Reco Pearl Private Limited 165,070,000 H Shares 16.17 - 16.17 8.14 - 8.14
HRk (long position) (long position)
(42) (F2)
Recosia China Pte Ltd. 165,070,000”  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
HRk (long position) (long position)
(fF8) (42)
Recosia Pte Ltd. 165,070,0009  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
HRk (long position) (long position)
(fF8) (42)
Government of Singapore 165,070,0009  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
Investment Corporation HER (long position) (long position)
(Realty) Pte Ltd. (F#8) (F8)
Templeton Asset 91,934,000 H Shares 9.01 - 9.01 453 - 4,53
Management Limited HER (long position) (long position)
(42) (F2)
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Notes:

Of these 924,441,900 Shares, 311,032,800 Shares are directly
held by Capital Group, the remaining 613,409,100 Shares are
deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held through
Beijing Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive Development
Company, Beijing Capital Technology Investment Ltd., Beijing Shou
Chuang Jian She Co., Ltd. and China Resource Products Limited.
27,178,000 H Shares are deemed corporate interests under the
SFO indirectly held through China Resource Products Limited.

Of these 322,654,800 Shares, 47,418,600 Shares are directly
held by Beijing Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive Development
Company, the remaining 275,236,200 Shares are deemed
corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held through China
Resource Products Limited. 27,178,000 H Shares are deemed
corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held through China
Resource Products Limited.

275,236,200 non-listed Shares and 27,178,000 H Shares are
deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held through
China Resource Products Limited.

82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited.

82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited and
Fexi Holdings Limited.

82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited,
Fexi Holdings Limited and Brocade City Holdings Limited.

165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the
SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited.

165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the
SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited and Recosia
China Pte Ltd.

165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the
SFO indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited, Recosia
China Pte Ltd. and Recosia Pte Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors,
as of 30 June 2013, none of the parties (other than the
directors or chief executives of the Company) had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

B 3 :

B R B AR DU A S ZEBER

1£924,441,9000% B 1 & = 311,032,800
BlRHBAEREMEEEBRERAERE
B - H $613,409,1000% i% 7 IR 5 78 5 &
HEKimRIEAEZERELZ  NHEBILEEG
KEMWEFAMBEQAR LR EHAIRKERE
BRAF IR EAERBERARKFEY
EBRARIMEEHE - 27,178,0008 HAZ A%
MIRBEEHF RGOSR E A EE R
EBTRYMEERARBERE-

1£322,654,800/% % 10 & # + 47,418,6000%
BRIt EBAEESARE QAR EE
A H$4275,236,20008 I (0 1R 15 B %5 &
HE bR EREERER  iBBRTERY
EBRARMERHA - 27,178,0000HAL i
MIREE S KSRGS R EAEE S
EBTRYEERARMBERE-

275,236,200/% FE _+ T A {9 527,178,000
H R 1 1R 15 78 75 M I B R B AG 1F R0 E
B DBEBRTEMEERARMERS-

82,762,100B% A% (7 1R 15 3 5 I BR & 1511545
EREEER  NERBERBCEERA
BIfERA -

82,762,100& IR 1D IR AR & % K HR & 15 B 5 4%
ERLEER  NEBBERBCEERA
&) 2 Fexi Holdings Limited & 4 °

82,762,1008% A% (7 1R 15 3 5 I BR & 1511545
EREEER  NERBERBLCEERA
&) Fexi Holdings Limited & 88 %122 f% B R A
RIS -

165,070,0008% i% 17 1R 15 25 % & HA & 1551 4%
BAIEAEERESZ - Jhi% BReco Pearl Private
Limitedf #4548 °

165,070,0000% & 17 1R 15 78 % [ BB &5 {4 71l 15
BB XE#ZS - Jhi% BReco Pearl Private
Limited &2 Recosia China Pte Ltd.f # #
5o

165,070,0000% % 17 1R 12 38 75 [ BB & 14 0l 1
WA X E#EZ - Jhi% B Reco Pearl Private
Limited * Recosia China Pte Ltd.} Recosia
Pte Ltd.F#+5 A -

B EXFTIRBEEAIN RESAN R _F
—ZFXRXA=1TA #BEEFAAL (BFRAR

BIEFENARBITRERKY

N RARREZ

B 13 S AR AR 15 o B AR B A R K
16 ) SEXVER B2 3EB 15 0 AN 2 7 B 7
HHAE -
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

As at 30 June 2013, none of the directors, supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers. None of the directors, supervisors and chief executives
of the Company or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such rights during the
period.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the changes in information of directors of the Company
subsequent to the date of the 2012 Annual Report is set out
below:

Mr. Ng Yuk Keung, an independent non-executive director of
the Company has appointed as Executive Director of Kingsoft
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 3888) on March 2013.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial report matters,
including the review of the unaudited interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2013.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the six months ended 30 June 2013, the Company had
not redeemed any of its shares. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the period.

Lo kA E

R-ZE-—=FRA=1TH XRAEF &
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3R 52 B
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Long Term Incentive Fund Scheme

On 27 September 2007, the Company had adopted the
long term incentive fund scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
subsequently amended on 25 September 2009. The Scheme
is proposed to encourage the directors, supervisors, senior
management and core staff members of the Company for
closer ties of their personal interests with the interests of the
Company and of the shareholders, as well as for alignment of
their personal goals with the common goal of the Company.

As at 30 June 2013, the Company had through the trustee
purchased 20,000,000 H shares, representing 1.96% of H
shares and 0.99% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company. Up to the date of this report, the shares purchased
have been held in trust by the trustee.

Corporate Governance

During the period from 1 January 2013 to 30 June 2013, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report”as set out in Appendix 14 to the “Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited” (the “Listing Rules”).

Compliance with the Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code which is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the “Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the
“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the company code throughout
the period.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS

Tt & aml EE AR

As at 30 June 2013 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
—E—=FNA=TH(BREFIZHEI) 2B ELRBAREFT)

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
REEH L& REET K5
—E-=£ g —E-=F —E--F
ABETHE TZA=f-H AAE+H +ZA=1+-H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
ltem EH fisE i A AR AR
Current assets RBEE
Cash at bank and on hand EEs 5(1) 7,919,089 8,616,773 473,565 400,751
Financial assets held for trading XSS BEE 5@2) 5,320 - - -
Accounts receivable EUER 5(3)(a) 67,029 34,876 160 160
Advances to suppliers B RE 5(4) 1,571,487 188,173 234 234
Interest receivable EUFIE 3,660 545 = -
Dividends receivable & L A A 5(5) 97,247 97,247 12,400 12,400
Other receivables Eth KR 5(3)(b),12(1) 2,398,682 3,107,251 15,643,441 12,079,717
Inventories RE 5(6) 23,640,129 23,921,240 44,076 44,076
Current portion of —FEWIENERD
non-current assets BE 5(13) 768,512 - - -
Other current assets HEttnsaE 5(7) 976,907 1,852,474 = -
Total current assets RBEEAT 37,448,062 37,818,679 16,173,876 12,637,338
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale financial EHESREE
assets 5(8) 147,906 200,653 147,906 162,583
Long-term receivables REEKR 5(13) 554,214 1,290,805 554,213 412,565
Long-term equity investments RERERE 5(9),12(2) 1,987,272 1,699,896 3,305,624 3,063,147
Investment properties REMEWE 5(10) 6,175,129 5,674,242 1,958 1,958
Fixed assets TEE 5(11) 451,904 466,656 65,490 68,343
Intangible assets BREE 5(12) 41,128 41,651 - -
Long-term prepaid expenses REGEER 11,328 1,626 - -
Deferred tax assets ELFMGHEAE 5(27)(c) 301,805 280,980 25,308 32,609
Other non-current assets HitERBEE 5(14) - 61,400 - 61,400
Total non-current assets FRBEESH 9,670,686 9,717,909 4,100,499 3,802,605
TOTAL ASSETS EESH 47,118,748 47,536,488 20,274,375 16,339,943
Current liabilities RBaE
Short-term borrowings REER 5(16) 32,751 540,600 - -
Notes payable ENEE 19,055 16,300 - -
Accounts payable JERBRH 5(17) 3,656,282 3,625,907 10,783 10,783
Advances from customers BYEE 5(18) 6,952,364 7,729,216 807 807
Employee benefits payable ENBTHM 5(19) 58,968 145,220 40,104 98,076
Taxes payable EXBE 5(20) 1,939,832 1,990,195 53,901 33,943
Interest payable FERFIE 141,693 108,587 56,851 22,330
Dividends payable JE £ BRI 5(21) 622,527 430,895 236,500 132,627
Other payables Eth B 5(22) 2,102,420 2,926,413 9,839,922 6,139,692
Current portion of —FREBNERY
non-current liabilities BE 5(23) 6,905,276 2,940,840 1,954,000 1,059,000
Other current liabilities HEtonsaE 5(24) 574,722 1,368,668 - -
Total current liabilities REBAESH 23,005,890 21,822,841 12,192,868 7,497,258
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
& 2 vl E R

As at 30 June 2013 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

—E—=FNA=TH (BHFEH) 2EELBAREFT)

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
REE BES REET BEs
—E-=& - —E-=F —E-C-F
RA=TH TZA=T-H RA=TH TZA=T-H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
ltem EH iz i =l AF NS
Non-current liabilities FhEBaE
Long-term borrowings ROER 5(25) 8,043,491 10,968,893 1,996,000 2,468,000
Debentures payable ERESR 5(26) 2,968,395 4,108,020 996,214 994,716
Deferred tax liabilties EEMBHAR 5(27)(c) 702,382 633,723 = -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBE 11,714,268 15,710,636 2,992,214 3,462,716
Total liabilities 8BRS 34,720,158 37,533,477 15,185,082 10,959,974
Owners’ equity RRER
Paid-in capital FR A 5(28) 2,027,960 2,027,960 2,027,960 2,027,960
Capital surplus BARQE 5(29) 2,199,532 2,226,409 1,321,824 1,332,831
Surplus reserve BHRE 5(30) 341,768 341,768 341,768 341,768
Undistributed profits RAOBEFE 5(31) 3,259,726 3,022,039 1,397,741 1,677,410
Difference on translation of NERRINEZHE
foreign currency
financial statements 29,495 (1,615) - -
Total equity attributable to equity ~ BERNEAFARE RS A
holders of the Company 7,858,481 7,616,561 5,089,293 5,379,969
Minority interest DYRERE R 5(32) 4,540,109 2,386,450 - -
Total owners’ equity RREZAS 12,398,590 10,008,011 5,089,293 5,379,969
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BERRRERAG
OWNERS' EQUITY 47,118,748 47,536,488 20,274,375 16,339,943

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

B RMRM TR ERREOAERED
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS

CRIL TGRS

IREES

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
B2 —F—=FNNH="1HNEAEE (BRREFHI) £5EEMSARKETFT)

Unaudited Unaudited
RBET REE
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 2013 2012
HZE-2-=F HZE-ZT--F BE-E-Zf HE-ZT-_F%
~A=tH ~NAZTH ~A=1H ~AZ+H
<18 A B 1E7~ 18 A # R IEA{E A EE 17~ {8 A B
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH it =Xiia =i AFE AR
(Restated) (Restated)
(L&) (FEit)
Revenue BEWA 5(33),12(3) 4,889,506 3,484,843 46,598 107,643
Less: Cost of sales BB ERR 5(33),12(3) (3,316,699) (1,949,626) (78) (52)
Taxes and surcharges BERS RN 5(34) (423,679) (469,031) (9,226) (14,953)
Selling and distribution HEER
expenses (124,675) (115,020) - -
General and administrative EEER
expenses (128,635) (122,581) (46,119) (47,743
Financial (expenses)/ UB(ER)/
income - net WA-F58 5(35) (117,342) 5,608 52,855 10,225
Asset impairment losses BERERE 5(36) (31,184) (14,240) = (10,240)
Gains or losses arising from AnBEZYER
changes in fair value 5(39) 199,439 - - -
Add: Investment income BB 5(40),12(4) 141,792 52,848 17,558 14,222
Including: Share of profit of Hp:HoEhE
associates and G- 0k
joint ventures Blg 48,306 21,004 (484) 13,233
Operating profit EERE 1,088,523 872,801 61,588 59,102
Add: Non-operating income g EINEA 5(37) 13,010 1,313 - -
Less: Non-operating expenses i - B EIN T I 5(38) (28,475) (1,614) (362) (803)
Including: Losses on Hob ERgaE
disposal of non-current RERX
assets - (5) - -
Total profit FBsE 1,073,058 872,500 61,226 58,299
Less: Income tax expenses - EHER 5(42) (315,735) (239,777) (16,421) (11,438)
Net profit A 757,323 632,723 44,805 46,861
Including: Attributable to equity 5B H B2 B R SR (0,5
holders of the Company 562,161 528,689 44,805 46,861
Minority interest LYREER 195,162 104,034 - -




HAEERMDARAT ZT =P

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
B B 2wl A AR

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stateqd)

(2 = FE—=F N A=A HIU AR (BRI 2 FE M RBARETFT)

Unaudited Unaudited
REET REBE
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 2013 2012

BE-%-=F HE-T--F BE-R-ZF HEC-T--F
~RB=tH ~A=tH ~B=tH ~NR=t1H
EABAME  LAEANE  EAEAME  LAEABRE

Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH iz i A AF AR
(Restated) (Restated)
(mEi) (Esi)
Earnings per share for profit ~ SRUE (ERBERZAF
attributable to the equity EERRRAHFRE)
holders of the Company 5(43)
- Basic earnings per share EAgRYE (ARET)
(RMB Yuan) 0.28 026  NATRER N/A R
- Diluted earnings per share BEERYE (AR¥T)
(RMB Yuan) 0.28 026  NATRER N/A R
Other comprehensive income/ Eft4G4 K/ (Fi)
(loss) 5(44) 20,273 10,564 (11,007) 18,828
Total comprehensive income  GR&WEA%E 777,596 643,287 33,798 65,689
Attrioutable to equity holders of BRI A AR R4
the Company DekzeE 582,434 539,253 N/A FiEH N/A TEA
Minority interest RN HREN
FakRRE 195,162 104,034 N/A FER N/A i

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these M IEHRERM AT ERRNVAKILD -
financial statements.
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GRS ENEEE SIS

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BE—F—=FNNA="1HINEAERE (BHFFZE) 2 EE M BARETFT)
Unaudited Unaudited
REET REE
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 2013 2012
HE-2-=F HZ-%T--%F BE-B-=f HZ2-ZT--%
AE=1H ~A=1A AAE=TH ~NA=TA
EABASE  EAEASE  EAEAHE L NEABH
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
ltem EH i3 i L AH NS
Cash flows from operating BETHELENESRE
activities
Cash received from sales of HERm RELH
goods or rendering of services WEIHE £ 4,397,595 4,082,256 46,598 106,825
Cash received relating to other ~ WEIEELLEH
operating activities BENRE 1,096,042 36,719 3,623,380 486,587
Sub-total of cash inflows BeTHREN -r 5,493,637 4,118,975 3,669,978 593,412
Cash paid for goods and services BEWMH &% %
YRR E (6,040,934) (4,008,582) (78) -
Cash paid to and on behalf of TREBTIURBET
employees ?zﬁ fMHe (186,952) (193,834) (80,758) (77,172)
Payments of taxes and INNEERE
surcharges (687,480) (750,435) (1,315) (37,416)
Cash paid relating to other IREMEALRED
operating activities HENED (237,894) (730,714) (3,963,729) (455,406)
Sub-total of cash outflows BEEBHRERE NG (7,153,260) (5,683,565) (4,045,880) (569,994)
Net cash flows from operating Z&EHELNES
activities RERE 5(45)(a) (1,659,623) (1,564,590 (375,902) 23,418
Cash flows from investing REFDEENESRE
activities
Cash received from disposal of ~ BEREKEINRE
investments 48,162 106,544 10 11,044
Cash received from returns on NERENEMKEINRS
investments 772 - 772 -
Net cash received from disposal R E BT EE - EFEEM
of fixed assets, intangible Hit REEEKREA
assets and other long-term ReFE
assets 624 - - -
Cash received from disposal of ~ BE T2 AIMEIHH ¢ F4E
subsidiaries 4(2) 191,354 - - -
Cash received relating to other ~ WEI Kt HEEEH
investing activities BENEE 17,270 104,500 17,270 -
Sub-total of cash inflows REEBRERANG 258,182 211,044 18,052 11,044
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, BEEETEE BFEEMN
intangible assets and other HtREBEESINN
long-term assets Be (259,681) (196,430) (49) (755)
Cash paid to acquire investments % & X HHE & (181,570) (42,000) (80,000) (125,500)
Net cash paid to acquire STRAZFANALFE
subsidiaries (53,165) - - -
Cash paid relating to other TREMEREEH
investing activities BBENRE (269,440) (765,523) (117,570) (25,884)
Sub-total of cash outflows RETBHRSHRH MG (763,856) (1,003,953) (197,619) (152,139)
Net cash flows from investing REFHELNES
activities FERE (505,674) (792,909) (179,567) (141,095)




HRIE SRR A RA A

SR SRR

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
i & 2 vl Bl R

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stateqd)

BE-FT—=FNNA=1HINEFEE (BHEFFHS) 2B E T BAREFT)
Unaudited Unaudited
REET REE
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 2013 2012
HE-2-=F HZ-%T--F BE-B-=f Hz2-%2--%
AE=TH ~NA=1A AA=1H ~NA=1A
EABASE  EAEASE  EAEAHE L NEABH
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH iz i A AF NS
Cash flows from financing EETHELNBEERE
activities
Cash received from capital Ry E WSR2
contributions - 147,000 - -
Including: Cash received from LR NS e
capital contributions by minority ~ BREREYEIKE S
shareholders of subsidiaries - 147,000 - -
Cash received from issuance of TR MEFUEINES
capital securities 2,437,439 - - -
Cash received from borrowings BEFMINRE 2,962,258 6,443,256 1,000,000 854,000
Sub-total of cash inflows EGRHBRERANG 5,399,697 6,590,256 1,000,000 854,000
Cash repayments of borrowings ~ BEEB T FHEE (2,987,440) (1,969,487) (78,000) (502,000)
Cash payments for interest DERF - FEHEN
expenses and distribution of MEx®E:
dividends or profits (981,875) (1,365,907) (290,373) (350,116)
Cash paid for purchasing share ~ BE TR AV ERR
in subsidiaries from minority REZTRRE
shareholders (36,267) (340,547) - -
Sub-total of cash outflows EGRHRER MG (4,005,582) (3,675,941) (368,373) (852,116)
Net cash flows from financing E&EEHEEMN
activities BEeRERE 1,394,115 2,914,315 631,627 1,884
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXZHHB LN E
changes on cash (218) 3,078 (3,344) (2,046)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash R& B (§) /EMFE 5(45)(0) (771,400) 559,894 72,814 (117,839)
Add: Cash at beginning of period 7 ¥R £ 5% & 5(45)(b) 8,076,268 7,974,900 400,751 1,266,081
Cash at end of period BRESHE 5(45)(0) 7,304,868 8,534,794 473,565 1,148,242

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

INTERIM REPORT 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS EQUITY

o DF IBC AR BE 2 52 B A%

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
(B FE—=FENA =1 HIF AR (BRREFFHI) 258 E M SARETFT)

Unaudited
REET
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERELARRRESE
Difference on
translation of
foreign
currency Total
Paid-in Capital Surplus  Undistributed financial Minority owners’
Note capital surplus reserves profits statements interest equity
MEHRK DERR RRER
ltem EH W RA EA0E BHOE  RAEAE REER Bi &t
Balance at 31December 2011 —2--%+t-A=1-AH
HRBE 2,027,960 1,081,696 330,231 2,224,879 2,638 2,560,830 8,228,234
Changes in accounting policies EHRREE - - 8,309 74,775 - - 83,084
Balance at 1 January 2012 —E-CE-F-RBUBE 2,027,960 1,081,696 338,540 2,299,654 2,638 2,560,830 8,311,318
Movement for the six months ended ~ HZ-F-—£XA=THL
30 June 2012 GEE LT BT - (135,305 - 143,377 (8,596) (86,637) (87,161)
Net profit e - - - 528,689 - 104,034 632,723
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Kt aks/ (B58) - 19,160 - - (8,596) - 10,564
Capital contrioution and withdrawal BEEAMFIER
by owners, including- Hep
Capital contribution by equity owners BREBZAER - - - - - 147,000 147,000
Others H 5029) - (154,465) - - - (337,671) (492,136)
Profit distribution to equity owners HEFEHHE 5(31) - - - (385,312) - - (385,312)
Balance at 30 June 2012 “E--“EXAZ1A
HRBE 2,027,960 946,391 338,540 2,443,031 (5,958) 2,474,193 8,224,157
Balance at 1 January 2013 “E-ZE-f-HEU8E 2,027,960 2,226,409 341,768 3,022,039 (1,615) 2,386,450 10,003,011
Movement for the six months ended ~ BZ-Z—-=F,xA=1HILL
30 June 2013 ~NEAGHEREDE - (26,877) - 237,687 31,110 2,153,659 2,395,579
Net profit FHE - - - 562,161 - 195,162 757,323
Other comprehensive ((oss)/income Ehia (BR) /i - (10,837) - - 31,110 - 20,273
Capital contribution and withdrawal BRERARRLESR
by owners, including- Hep:
Others it - (16,040) - - - (375,448) (391,488
Capital securities ERMES 5(32) - - - - - 2,333,945 2,333,945
Profit distribution to equity owners HERHHE 5(31) - - - (324,474) - - (324,474)
Balance at 30 June 2013 “E-=EXA=tH
BRBE 2,027,960 2,199,532 341,768 3,259,726 29,495 4,540,109 12,398,590
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these EHIFIEHRERM T AT ERROAKID -

financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS EQUITY
oy ] P SRR 4 5 Bl R

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stateqd)

BE—F—=FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

Unaudited
REHH
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERBARRRES
Total
Paid-in Capital Surplus  Undistributed owners’
Note capital surplus reserves profits equity
RRE R
ltem R sk 1S ERNE N RABAE &t
Balance at 31 December 2011 “E--%+ZA=1-H
HRBE 2,027,960 1,303,865 330,231 1,958,895 5,620,951
Changes in accounting policies ~ B HREE - - 8,309 74,775 83,084
Balance at 1 January 2012 “E--%£-f-H
HNBE 2,027,960 1,303,865 338,540 2,033,670 5,704,035
Movement for the six months ended #Z-F-—£xA=+AL
30 June 2012 NERBHEELDE - 18,828 - (338,451) (319,629)
Net profit A - - - 46,861 46,861
Other comprehensive income Ehirala - 18,828 - - 18,828
Profit distribution to equity owners ~ $RREMHE 5(31) - - - (385,312) (385,312)
Balance at 30 June 2012 ZE-ZEXA=TH
HRGBE 2,027,960 1,322,693 338,540 1,695,219 5,384,412
Balance at 1 January 2013 —E-=f¥-8-H
HGE 2,027,960 1,332,831 341,768 1,677,410 5,379,969
Movement for the six months ended 5Z-E—-=F,A=tHI
30 June 2013 AEASEEHBDE - (11,007) - (279,669) (290,676)
Net profit FHE - - - 44, 805 44,805
Other comprehensive loss iz A BB - (11,007) - - (11,007)
Profit distribution to equity owners ~ $RENHE 5(31) - - - (324,474) (324,474)
Balance at 30 June 2013 ZE-Z£5xA=1H
HAGE 2,027,960 1,321,824 341,768 1,397,741 5,089, 293

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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BEIJING

CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEr—F

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (hereinafter “the Company”)
was established by seven companies on 23
July 2002, namely Beijing Capital Group Ltd.
(hereinafter “Capital Group”), Beijing Sunshine Real
Estate Comprehensive Development Company
(hereinafter “Sunshine Comprehensive”), Beijing
Capital Sunshine Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital Sunshine”), Beijing Capital
Technology Investment Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital
Technology”), Beijing Capital Hangyu Economic
Development Co., Ltd. (change to “Beijing Capital
Development Co., Ltd.” afterwards, hereinafter
“Capital Development”), China Resource Products
Limited (hereinafter “China Resource”) and Yieldwell
International Enterprise Limited (hereinafter “Yieldwell
International”) (hereinafter “the promoters”).

The Company was registered on 5 December
2002 in Beijing with total share capital of
RMB1,100,000,000 at RMB1 per share. The
Company issued 513,300,000 shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(*H-shares”) in June 2003. And 513,300,000 shares
were transferred to public by some promoters from
state-owned shares and state-owned entities shares.

On 27 January 2005, the Company placed
112,926,000 H-shares (RMB1 per share), of which,
102,660,000 shares were newly issued, and
10,266,000 shares were transferred to public by
some promoters from state-owned shares and state-
owned entities shares.

On 26 October 2006, the Company placed
343,200,000 H-shares (RMB1 per share), of which,
312,000,000 shares were newly issued, and
31,200,000 shares were transferred to public by
some promoters from state-owned shares and state-
owned entities shares.

On 30 December 2008, Capital Sunshine, one of the
Company’s promoters, disposed 14.11% share of
the Company to Capital Group. After the transaction,
Capital Group directly holds 15.34% interests of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5t o B ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

The parent company and the ultimate parent
company of the Company is Capital Group.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the real estate
development and investment, hotel operation and
property consulting services in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

These interim financial statements were approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 19 August 2013.
The interim financial statements were unaudited.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

(1). Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the
Basic Standard and 38 specific standards
of the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance
on 15 February 2006, and the Application
Guidance for Accounting Standard for
Business Enterprises, Interpretations
of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and other relevant regulations
issued thereafter (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises” or “CAS”).

(2). Statement of compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company for
the six months ended 30 June 2013 are in
compliance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises, and truly and
completely present the financial position of the
Consolidated and the Company as of 30 June
20183 and of their financial performance, cash
flows and other information for the six months
then ended.
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 785 i B ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEr—F

0%

—=FNA=FHIEMEAABE (B FFIZE) 2 R E B ARKTT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(3). Accounting year

The accounting year starts on 1 January and
ends on 31 December.

(4). Recording currency

The recording currency is Renminbi (RMB).

(5). Business combinations

(a)

(b)

Business combinations involving

enterprises under common control

The consideration paid and net assets
obtained by the absorbing party in a
business combination are measured
at the carrying amount. The difference
between the carrying amount of the
net assets obtained and the carrying
amount of the consideration paid for the
combination is treated as an adjustment
to capital surplus (share premium). If the
capital surplus (share premium) is not
sufficient to absorb the difference, the
remaining balance is adjusted against
retained earnings.

Costs directly attributable to the
combination are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Business combinations involving

enterprises not under common control

The cost of combination and identifiable
net assets obtained by the acquirer in a
business combination are measured at
fair value at the acquisition date. Where
the cost of the combination exceeds
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the acquirer’s identifiable net assets,
the difference is recognized as goodwill;
where the cost of combination is lower
than the acquirer’s interest in the fair
value of the acquirer’s identifiable net
assets, the difference is recognised in
profit or loss for the current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5t o B ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=F A= FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(5). Business combinations (Continued)

(b) Business combinations involving
enterprises not under common control
(Continued)

For a business combination achieved
in stages on the separate financial
statements, the initial cost shall be
the summation of the book value of
the previously held interest before the
acquisition date and the additional
investment cost at the acquisition
date. On the consolidated financial
statements, the previously held interest
is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date and the gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement.
When control is obtained, reserves held
in equity that related to the previously
held interest would be recognised in
the investment income for the current
period. The excess of the consideration
transferred from the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition date fair value of any
previous equity in the acquiree, over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Costs directly attributable to the
combination are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

(6). Preparation of consolidated financial
statements
The consolidated financial statements

comprise the financial statements of the
Company and all of its subsidiaries.
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERIM REPORT 2013

Sk 5 e A B ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-—F—
23

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FEBARETT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(6).

(7).

Preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and are de-
consolidated from the date that such control
ceases. For a subsidiary that is acquired in
a business combination involving enterprises
under common control, it is included in the
consolidated financial statements from the
date when it, together with the Company,
comes under common control of the ultimate
controlling party. The portion of the net
profits realised before the combination date
is presented separately in the consolidated
income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, where the accounting policies
and the accounting periods are inconsistent
between the Company and subsidiaries,
the financial statements of subsidiaries are
adjusted in accordance with the accounting
policies and accounting period of the
Company. For subsidiaries acquired from a
business combination involving enterprises not
under common control, the individual financial
statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted
based on the fair value of the identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date.

All significant inter-group balances,
transactions and unrealised profits are
eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements. The portion of a subsidiary's
equity and the portion of a subsidiary’s
net profits and losses for the period not
attributable to the Company are recognised
as non-controlling interests and presented
separately in the consolidated financial
statements within equity and net profits
respectively.

Cash

Cash comprise cash on hand and deposits
that can be readily drawn on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U 785 i B ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=FA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. BEEEEBOR M G

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(8). Foreign currency translation (8). AP H

(a) Foreign currency transactions (a) HIERR 5
Foreign currency transactions are INERGERSEEAR
translated into RMB using the exchange BHARE =G HNE S AT E
rates prevailing at the dates of the BARBARK-
transactions.
At the balance sheet date, monetary REEBERB INEE
items denominated in foreign currencies BUHBEERBEEAGBR
are translated into RMB using the spot HOWENEERITE R AR
exchange rates on the balance sheet B - RIBRNTESEDIK
date. Exchange differences arising 1fF B & EmfE ARINE
from these translations are recognised EMEREENERE
in profit or loss for the current period, BEENMECHARATINE
except for those attributable to foreign NMe:  HthEH ZREE
currency borrowings that have been FTAEHEZE UE LK
taken out specifically for the acquisition REFEMINEIEEE IR
or construction of qualifying assets, BE-REEBEXRAHKEA
which are capitalised as part of the cost R %% B AR EITE 47
of those assets. Nonmonetary items B EXEHHRSHF
denominated in foreign currencies that EHEERERERTER
are measured at historical costs are Bl 7R o
translated at the balance sheet date
using the spot exchange rates at the
date of the transactions. The effect
of exchange rate changes on cash is
presented separately in the cash flow
statement.
(b) Translation of foreign currency financial (b) A1 g Bk 25 i 3% W By 5

statements
The asset and liability items in the RIMEEREERBEBERP
balance sheets for overseas operations WEEMBEIER HA
are translated at the spot exchange BEBFEXRABMBHE X
rates on the balance sheet date. Among e BREEZFTHRERS
the owners’ equity items, the items Be A EIEE SN B I8 B
other than “undistributed profits” are A B A Ry B HA P R 47

translated at the spot exchange rates
on the transaction dates. The income
and expense items in the income
statements of overseas operations
are translated at the spot exchange
rates on the transaction dates. The
differences arising from the above
translation are presented separately in
the owners’ equity. The cash flows of
overseas operations are translated at
the spot exchange rates on the dates of
the cash flows. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is presented
separately in the cash flow statement.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-F—
23

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments

(a)

Financial assets

(i)

Classification of financial
assets

Financial assets are classified
into the following categories
at initial recognition: financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss, receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and
held-to-maturity investments.
The classification of financial
assets depends on the Group’s
intention and ability to hold the
financial assets. The financial
assets of the Group are mainly
comprised of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss,
receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss include
financial assets held for the
purpose of selling in the short
term. They are presented as
financial assets held for trading
on the balance sheet.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
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A 785 i o B ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=F A= FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING L BEGE R M e s s

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9. &mTH#Z)

(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) SWEE (&)
(i) Classification of financial (i) SHMEESE

assets (Continued) (&
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESMEE
Available-for-sale financial B Rk 1B 18 2K K NI

(i)

assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories at initial recognition,
except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and
losses arising from translation
of monetary financial assets.
Available-for-sale financial assets
are included in other current
assets on the balance sheet if
management intends to dispose
of them within 12 months of the
balance sheet date.

Recognition and
measurement

Financial assets are recognised
at fair value on the balance
sheet when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial
instrument, transaction costs
that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial
assets are included in their initial
recognition amounts.

Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at
fair value, and they are measured
at cost when they do not have a
quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.
Receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

(i)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

(@)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and
measurement (Continued)

Gain or loss arising from
change in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets is
recognised directly in equity,
except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and
losses arising from translation
of monetary financial assets.
When such financial assets are
derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously
recognised directly into equity is
recycled into profit or loss for the
current period.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses the carrying
amounts of financial assets other
than those at fair value through
profit or loss at each balance
sheet date. If there is objective
evidence that a financial asset
is impaired, the Group shall
determine the amount of
impairment loss.

When an impairment loss on
a financial asset carried at
amortised cost has occurred,
the amount of loss is measured
at the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of its estimated
future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have
not been incurred). If there is
objective evidence that the
value of the financial asset
recovered and the recovery is
related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is
reversed and the amount of
reversal is recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=F A= FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B BARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. BEEEEBOR M G
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9). “RITH#Z)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) SWERE (&)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (iii) SWMEERE
(Continued) (%)

Objective evidence of impairment
on available-for-sale investments
includes that the fair value
of those equity instruments
is exposed to significant or
prolonged decline. The Group
assesses the carrying amounts
of available-for-sale equity
instruments separately at each
balance sheet date. If the fair
value of the equity instrument
falls below 50% (included) its
initial investment cost or the
decline lasts more than one
year (included), the impairment
occurs; if the fair value of the
equity instrument declines more
than 20% (included) but not
beyond 50%, the Group will
take other relevant factors into
consideration, such as price
fluctuations to judge whether the
impairment occurs.

In the case of a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair
value of an available-for-sale
financial asset, the cumulative
loss arising from the decline
in fair value that had been
recognised directly in equity
is removed from equity and
recognised in impairment
loss. For an investment in an
equity instrument classified
as available-for-sale on which
impairment losses have been
recognised, the increase in its fair
value in a subsequent period is
recognised in equity directly.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

9).
(@)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Derecognition of financial
assets

A financial asset is derecognised
when any of the below criteria
is met: (i) the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire; (ii)
the financial asset has been
transferred and the Group
transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset to the transferee;
or (iii) the financial asset has
been transferred and the Group
has not retained control of the
financial asset, although the
Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and
the cumulative changes in fair
value that had been recognised
directly in equity, is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING L B E e EFBOR e EHE
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9. &mTH#Z)
(b)  Financial liabilities b) EmAM

Financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. The Group’'s financial
liabilities are majorly comprised of other
financial liabilities, including payables,
borrowings and debentures payable.

Payables include accounts payables
and other payables which are initially
recognised at fair value and recorded at
amortised cost using effective interest
rate in subsequent measurement.

Borrowings and debentures payable
are initially recognised at fair value
less trading expenses and recorded at
amortised cost using effective interest
rate in subsequent measurement.

Other financial liabilities with repayment
period within 1 year (including 1 year)
are stated as current liabilities; other
financial liabilities with repayment period
over 1 year but repayment date within
1 year from balance sheet date are
stated as current portion of non-current
liabilities; others are stated as non-
current liabilities.

A financial liability is derecognised or
partly derecognised when the current
obligation is discharged or partly
discharged. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
or the derecognised part of the financial
liability and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

(o

(d)

Determination of fair value of financial

instrument

The fair value of a financial instrument
that is traded in an active market is
determined at the quoted price in
the active market. The fair value of a
financial instrument that is not traded
in an active market is determined
by using a valuation technique.
Valuation techniques include using
prices of recent market transactions
between knowledgeable and willing
parties, reference to the current fair
value of another financial asset that
is substantially the same with this
instrument, and discounted cash
flow analysis, etc. When a valuation
technique is used to establish the fair
value of a financial instrument, it makes
the maximum use of observable market
inputs and relies as little as possible on
entity specific inputs.

Offsetting of financial assets and

liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities should
be presented separately in balance
sheet. A financial asset and a financial
liability should be offset when, and only
when, both of the following conditions
are satisfied: (i) The entity currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts and the legal
enforcement is now executable. (i) The
entity intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

G R BOR & a il

(%)

9.

TR &)

(0

(d)

4 il T B PR O S fE R E

FEEEMSNETRT
B - LAEBMSHRHRE
BEERAABE TFE
EBRMmENERIA K
REERTEEEAAE
B-HEXRMNBHEZ2ER
ABERLBEBRZNES
RITETHNIZR 5 L
AOER 2RBREZ LA
[Fl &) H fib & &b & E B & Al
AARBE REREFNR
AF-KABERME
BRI ERAREREB B
RIMMIHLE R E
RERNEESEEENZ
2o

<ix 7l A 4 R A
H KA

TREENTRAERES
EEERBRAD R
R NMEHEEEEEE
(R &5 o 2 T FI {61 B - B
EUREHEERNFRE
BERBEXRAIR: (1)K
SEHARHEHCHATHE
MEERERN BZBIETE
RBERATAITH: ()
REBAEOFREE
SRR ZREEM

BEZTRMAE-



HAEERMDARAT ZT =P

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5t o B ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

F G S BOR & a Al

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(10).

11).

Receivables

Receivables comprise accounts receivable
and other receivables. Accounts receivable
arising from sale of goods or rendering of
services are initially recognised at fair value of
the contractual payments from the buyers or
service recipients.

Receivables with amounts that are individually
significant are subject to assessment for
impairment on the individual basis. If there
exists objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect the amount under the
original terms, a provision for impairment of
that receivable is made.

Receivables with amounts that are not
individually significant and those receivables
that have been individually assessed for
impairment and have not been found impaired
are classified into certain groupings based
on their credit risk characteristics. The
provision for bad debts is determined based
on the historical loss experience for the
groupings of receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics, taking into consideration of the
current circumstances.

Inventories

(a) Classification

Inventories include properties under
development, properties held for
sale, merchandise and low-cost
consumables, and are presented at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

(#&)

(10).

11).

JE WALk IR

& W SR I B 4 R MR RR R A P
WkF - REBHIMNEER MK
e 85 75 12 A Y R MR BR 3K 1 1K
BEIREBEITRENER
KR ERA DR EBEERA

R

HNERSREANE KRR
BEREETREIR EFERXE
75 15 2% B AN 5% (B 5 R 4% R MR
TR H) R B R B FOR B - AR IR
HEFAKRREREREBERNE
REEENER  HBRRER-

HRERESBEIFEANEUR
T8 - BAR BRI SR KR E Y
WK IE — R R (5 A R R 8 D
RETHA BREBEAMFERYZ
AEHEUN - AEBRUERA
BREENREREASNERE
RERBER BEEBBEREE

FERTIR A BR %4 o
&5
(a) Vil

FEBEMAEXA FHE
Em EFEmNEES
Feon % I BCAS B A] B3R
FENEINR

51



52

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 785 i B

INTERIM REPORT 2013

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-—F—
23

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(11). Inventories (Continued)

(b)

(9

Measurement of inventories

Inventories are initially recognised
at the actual costs. The costs of
properties under development and
properties held for sale comprise land
cost, construction cost, borrowing
costs, and other direct and indirect
fees incurred during the development
period. On completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties
held for sale at the actual costs. For
land use rights that are developed for
subsequent sales, the cost paid for land
use rights are classified and accounted
for as part of the costs of properties.

Public ancillary facilities comprise
government-approved public ancillary
projects, i.e. roads. The relevant costs
are recognised under the properties
under development, and are recorded
by each cost items, the cost paid
for land use rights are classified and
accounted for as part of properties
under development.

Measurement of net realisable value and

provisions of inventories

Provisions are determined at the excess
amount of the carrying value of the
inventories over their net realisable
value. Net realisable value is determined
based on the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs to completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the
sale and related taxes.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

F G S BOR & a Al

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

11).

(12).

Inventories (Continued)

(d The Group adopts the perpetual
inventory system.

(e) Low-cost consumables are expensed
when issued.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the
Company’s long-term equity investments
in its subsidiaries, the Group’s long-term
equity investments in its joint ventures and
associates, as well as the long-term equity
investments where the Group does not have
control, joint control or significant influence
over the investees and which are not quoted in
an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured..

Subsidiaries are the investees over which
the Company is able to exercise control;
joint ventures are the investees over which
the Group is able to exercise joint control
together with other ventures; associates are
the investees that the Group has significant
influence on their financial and operating
policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in
the Company’s financial statements using the
cost method, and are adjusted for preparing
the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method. Investments in joint
ventures and associates are accounted for
using the equity method. Other long-term
equity investments, where the Group does
not have control, joint control or significant
influence over the investee and which are
not quoted in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, are
accounted for using the cost method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(12). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a)

Measurement of investment cost

For long-term equity investments
acquired through a business
combination: for long-term equity
investments acquired though business
combination involving enterprises under
common control, the investment cost
shall be the absorbing party’s share of
the carrying amount of owners’ equity
of the party being absorbed at the
combination date; for long-term equity
investment acquired through a business
combination involving enterprises not
under common control, the investment
cost shall be the combination cost.

For long-term equity investments
acquired not though a business
combination: for long-term equity
investment acquired by payment in
cash, the initial investment cost shall
be the purchase price actually paid; for
long-term equity investments acquired
by issuing equity securities, the initial
investment cost shall be the fair value of
the equity securities issued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(12). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement and recognition

of investment income and loss

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the cost method,
they are measured at the initial
investment costs, and cash dividends
or profit distribution declared by the
investees are recognised as investment
income in profit or loss.

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the equity method,
where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds
the Group’s share of the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets
at the acquisition date, the long-term
equity investment is measured at the
initial investment cost; where the initial
investment cost is less than the Group’s
share of the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the acquisition
date, the difference is included in profit
or loss and the cost of the long-term
equity investment is adjusted upwards
accordingly.

(b)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(12). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement and recognition
of investment income and loss
(Continued)

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the equity method,
the Group recognises the investment
income according to its share of net
profit or loss of the investee. The Group
discontinues recognising its share
of net losses of an investee after the
carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment together with any long-
term interests that, in substance, form
part of the investor’'s net investment
in the investee are reduced to zero.
However, if the Group has obligations
for additional losses and the criteria
with respect to recognition of provisions
under the accounting standards
on contingencies are satisfied, the
Group continues recognising the
investment losses and the provisions.
For changes in owners’ equity of
the investee other than those arising
from its net profit or loss, the Group
records its proportionate share directly
into capital surplus, provided that the
Group’s proportion of shareholding in
the investee remains unchanged. The
carrying amount of the investment is
reduced by the Group’s share of the
profit distribution or cash dividends
declared by an investee. The unrealised
profits or losses arising from the intra-
group transactions amongst the Group
and its investees are eliminated in
proportion to the Group’s equity interest
in the investees, and then based on
which the investment gains or losses
are recognised. For the loss on the
intra-group transaction amongst the
Group and its investees attributable to
asset impairment, any unrealised loss is
not eliminated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(12). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(©

(d)

Definitions of control, joint control and

significant influence

Control is the power to govern the
investees’ financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control over an
economic activity, and exists only when
the strategic financial and operating
decisions relating to the activity require
the unanimous consent of all the parties
sharing control.

Significant influence is the power to
participate the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those
policies.

Impairment of long-term equity

investment

The carrying amounts of long-term
equity investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are reduced
to the recoverable amounts when the
recoverable amounts are below their
carrying amounts (Note 2 (19)).

For other long-term equity investments
which are not quoted in an active
market and whose fair values cannot
be reliably measured, the excess of
their carrying amounts over the present
values of future cash flows discounted
at the prevailing market yield rate for
similar financial assets is recognised as
impairment loss and cannot be reversed
once recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(13).

(14).

Jointly controlled operations

Jointly controlled operations are operations
with a contractual arrangement, whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity without the establishment of
a corporation, partnership nor any other kinds
of separate financial or legal structure. These
operations are subject to joint control and
none of the participating parties has unilateral
control over the economic activity. In respect
of its interest in jointly controlled operations,
the Group recognises in the financial
statements: (a) assets and liabilities that the
Group controls and incurs. (b) the expenses
that the Group incurs and its share of the
income that it earns from the sale of goods or
services by the operations.

Investment properties

Investment properties, including land use
rights that have already been leased out,
buildings that are held for the purpose of
leasing and buildings that is being constructed
or developed for the purpose of leasing
in future, are measured initially at cost.
Subsequent expenditures incurred in relation
to an investment property is included in
the cost of the investment property when it
is probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and their cost
can be reliably measured; otherwise, the
expenditures are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

The Group adopts the fair value model for
subsequent measurement of investment
properties. Investment properties are
measured at fair value model when the
following conditions are met:

a) There is an active property market
where the investment property locates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING .. B EHBOR M e EHEEE
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(14). B&E VR B (&)

(14). Investment properties (Continued)

b) The Group can obtain the market price
and the relevant information regarding
the same type of or similar property
market, so as to reasonably estimate
the fair value of the investment property.

Depreciation or amortization will no longer
be provided for in the Group’s accounts for
investment properties measured at fair value.
Investment properties will be valued as at the
palance sheet date and its carrying amount
will be adjusted accordingly. The difference
between the fair value and the carrying
amount will be charged to the current profit
and loss account of the Group.

When objective evidence indicates that the
purpose of the real estate has changed and
the Group converts investment property
to owner-occupied property or real estate
inventory, the property’s carrying amount
is stated at the fair value on the conversion
date. The difference between the fair value
and the original carrying amount is recognised
in profit or loss for the current period. When
any owner-occupied property or real estate
inventory is converted to investment properties
to be measured through the fair value model,
the value of the investment property shall
be calculated under the fair value on the
conversion date. When the fair value on
the conversion date is less than its carrying
amount, the difference will be charged to the
current profit and loss account. When the fair
value on the conversion date is more than its
carrying amount, the difference will be charged
to owners’s equity.
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BEr—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)
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(14). Investment properties (Continued)

Where fair value of investment properties
under construction is not reliably measurable
(including those investment properties under
construction acquired initially by the Group),
the property is measured at cost until the
earlier of the date construction is completed or
the date at which fair value becomes reliably
measurable.

For investment properties under construction
measured at cost, land use rights are
amortized to their estimated net residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives, the estimated net
residual values expressed as a percentage of
cost and the annual amortization rates of land
rights are as follows:
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An investment property is derecognised on
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. The net amount of proceeds from
sale, transfer, retirement or damage of an
investment property after its carrying amount
and related taxes and expenses is recognised
in profit or loss for the current period.

The carrying amount of an investment
property measured at cost is reduced to the
recoverable amount if the recoverable amount
is below the carrying amount (note 2 (19)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —L BREFSBORf e s S
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (#&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(15). Fixed assets (15). BlE&E
(a) Recognition and initial measurement (a) [l 5 B s e 8 B W0 46 vl =

(b)

Fixed assets comprise buildings, motor
vehicles, and office equipment.

Fixed assets are recognised when it is
probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the
related cost can be reliably measured.
Fixed assets purchased or constructed
by the Group are initially measured at
cost at the time of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for
a fixed asset are included in the cost
of the fixed asset when it is probable
that the associated economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the related
cost can be reliably measured. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All the other subsequent
expenditures are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation methods of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method to allocate the
cost of the assets to their estimated
residual values over their estimated
useful lives. For the fixed assets that
have been provided for impairment
loss, the related depreciation charge is
prospectively determined based upon
the adjusted carrying amounts over
their remaining useful lives.

(b)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(15). Fixed assets (Continued)

(b)

(0

(d)

Depreciation methods of fixed assets

(Continued)

The estimated useful lives, the
estimated residual values expressed as
a percentage of cost and the annual
depreciation rates are as follows:
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0% to 10%  2.3% to 10.0%
0% to 10% 18.0% to 20.0%
0% to 10%  9.0% to 33.3%

The estimated useful life, the estimated
net residual value of a fixed asset and
the depreciation method applied to the
asset are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate at least at each year end.

When recoverable amount of fixed
asset is lower than its carrying value,
the carrying value should be written
down to the recoverable amount (note

2(19)).

Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is derecognised on
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. The amount of proceeds from
disposal on sale, transfer, retirement
or damage of a fixed asset net of its
carrying amount and related taxes and
expenses is recognised in profit or loss
for the current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING .. B EHBOR M e EHEEE
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(16). fisk # H

(16). Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and construction
of investment properties or real estate projects
that need a substantially long period of
time for its intended use commence to be
capitalised and recorded as part of the cost
of the asset when expenditures for the asset
and borrowing costs have been incurred,
and the activities relating to the acquisition
and construction that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use have
commenced. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when the asset under acquisition
or construction becomes ready for its intended
use, the borrowing costs incurred thereafter
are recognised in profit or loss for the current
period. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended during periods in which the
acquisition or construction of the asset is
interrupted abnormally and the interruption
lasts for more than 3 months, until the
acquisition or construction is resumed.

For borrowings that specified for acquisition
and construction of investment properties
and real estate projects and qualified for
capitalisation, the capitalisation amount is
measured as current actual interests of the
specified borrowings net of interest revenue
earned from unused borrowings deposited
at bank or investment income earned from
temporary investment activities with unused
borrowings.

For general borrowings that occupied by the
acquisition and for construction of investment
properties and real estate projects qualified
accumulated, the capitalization amount
should be the weighted average exceeds
of accumulated capital expenditures for
capitalization over the amount of specialized
borrowings multiplied by the weighted average
effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate is the rate used to discount the future
cash flows of the borrowings to the initial
measurement of the borrowings.
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BEr—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)
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(17). Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use rights
and are measured at cost. The cost of land
use rights obtained for construction of real
estate projects and investment properties, are
recognised in inventory development costs
and investment properties.

(@  Land use rights

Land use rights are amortised over
the useful life of 50 years. If the
purchase costs of land use rights and
the buildings located thereon cannot
be reliably allocated between the land
use rights and the buildings, all of the
purchase costs are recognised as fixed
assets.

(b) Periodical review of useful life and

amortisation method

For an intangible asset with a finite
useful life, review and adjustment on its
useful life and amortisation method are
performed at each year end.

(o) Impairment of intangible assets

When the recoverable amount of an
intangible asset is less than its carrying
value, the carrying value should be
written down to the recoverable amount
(note 2(19)).

(18). Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include
expenditures that have been made but should
be recognised as expenses over more than
one year in the current and subsequent
periods. Long-term prepaid expenses are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the
expected beneficial period and are presented
at actual expenditure net of accumulated
amortisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(19).

(20).

Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, intangible assets with finite
useful life, investment properties measured
using the cost model and long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are tested for impairment if there is
any indication that an asset may be impaired
at the balance sheet date. If the result of the
impairment test indicates that the recoverable
amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an
impairment loss are recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset. Provision for asset impairment is
determined and recognised on the individual
asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the recoverable amount of a group of assets
to which the asset belongs is determined. A
group of assets is the smallest group of assets
that is able to generate independent cash
inflows.

Once the above asset impairment loss is
recognised, it will not be reversed for the value
recovered in the subsequent periods.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include wages or
salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies,
staff welfare, social security contributions,
housing funds, labour union funds, employee
education funds and other expenditures
incurred in exchange for service rendered by
employees.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(20).

(21).

(22).

Employee benefits (Continued)

Employees of the Group participate in the
defined contribution pension plan set up
and administered by government authorities.
Based on salaries of the employees, basic
pensions are provided for monthly according
to stipulated proportions (20%), which is paid
to local labor and social security institutions.
Apart from this, the Group has no other post-
retirement benefit commitments.

The Group provides a pension scheme, which
is established under the rules and regulations
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”), for all employees
in Hong Kong. The contributions to the MPF
Scheme are based on minimum statutory
contribution requirement of the lower of 5% of
eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income
and HKD1,250 (HKD 1,000 before 1 June
2012). The assets of this pension scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

Employee benefits are recognised as salaries
and wages payable in the accounting period in
which an employee has rendered service, as
costs of assets or expenses to whichever the
employee service is attributable.

Capital securities

Capital securities with no contracted
obligation to repay its principal nor to pay any
distribution are classified as minority interests.
Respective distributions if and when declared
are treated as equity dividends.

Distribution of dividends

The amount of dividends proposed to
distribute is recognised as a liability in the
current period in which it is approved by
general meeting of shareholders.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING .. B EHBOR M e EHEEE
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

23). WA TR

(23). Revenue recognition

The amount of revenue is determined
in accordance with the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of rebates, discounts and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group, the related revenue can be
reliably measured, and the specific revenue
recognition criteria have been met for each
type of the Group’s activities as described
below:

(a)  Sale of goods

Revenue of sale of properties held for
sale is recognised when all the following
conditions have been satisfied:

o properties are completed and
accepted after check;

o a legally binding sales contract
has been signed in proper
manner and form:;

o all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the
properties held for sale have
been transferred to the buyer;

o the Company does not retain
either continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership
or effective control over the
sold properties and meet the
other criteria required when
recognising revenue mentioned
above.
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BEr—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

0%

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZ) 2 BB ARKTT)

(23). Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  Rendering of services

The Group provides service to
external parties. The related revenue
is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, with the stage of
completion being determined based on
proportion of costs incurred to date to
the estimated total costs.

(c) Transfer of asset use rights

Interest income is recognised on a
time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Income from an operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

(24). Government grants

Government grants are monetary or non-
monetary assets obtained from the
government with no consideration, including
tax returns and financial subsidies.

Grants from the government are recognised
as revenue where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Monetary assets of the
government grants are measured as the
amount received or receivable. Non-monetary
assets of the government grants are measured
as fair value or notional value if the fair value
cannot be obtained reliably.

Government grants related to assets are
recognised as deferred revenue and will be
amortised on a straight-line basis in current
profit or loss over the useful life of the related
assets. Government grants recognised at
notional value are directly recognised in profit
or loss for the current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING L BEGEEOR M e s s
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(24). Government grants (Continued) (24). B HiBh (#2)

(25).

Government grants related to income which
are used to compensate expenses or losses
in subsequent periods, are recognised as
deferred revenue and realized in profit or
loss for the period such expenses or losses
occurred; the ones which are to compensate
expenses or losses occurred in previous
periods are directly recognised in profit or loss
for the current period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are calculated and recognised based on the
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts (temporary differences). Deferred tax
asset is recognised for the deductible losses
that can be carried forward to subsequent
years for deduction of the taxable profit in
accordance with the tax laws. No deferred
tax asset or deferred tax liability is recognised
for the temporary differences resulting from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
due to a transaction other than a business
combination, which affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (or deductible loss). At
the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for
deductible temporary differences, deductible
losses and tax credits to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available
in the future against which the deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses and
tax credits can be utilised.

(25).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(25).

(26).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
except where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference, and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. When it is probable that the
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
will be reversed in the foreseeable future and
that the taxable profit will be available in the
future against which the temporary differences
can be utilised, the corresponding deferred tax
assets are recognised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when:

° the deferred taxes are related to the
same tax payer within the Group and
the same taxation authority; and,

o that tax payer has a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities.

Leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset. An
operating lease is a lease other than a finance
lease.

The Group does not have finance leases.
Lease payments under an operating lease are
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.
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2GS BOR & E il at

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(27).

(28).

Maintenance and quality guarantee funds

Maintenance fund is collected from property
buyers according to related regulations on
behalf of housing administration bureau,
by certain percentage of selling price of
property, the fund will be remitted to housing
administration bureau upon registration of
property ownership.

Quality guarantee fund is reserved by certain
percentage of the project payment and
payment will be repaid to constructor when
the properties are completed, in condition that
examined by government authorities with no
quality issue, and after the agreed warranty
period.

Held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a component of the
Group satisfying the following conditions
is classified as held for sale: (1) the Group
has made a resolution for disposal of the
non-current asset or the component; (2)
an irrevocable contract with the transferee
has been signed and; (3) the transfer will be
completed within one year.

Non-current assets, except for financial
assets and deferred tax assets, that meet
the recognition criteria for held for sale are
included in other current assets at the amount
equal to the lower of the fair value less costs
to sell and the carrying amount. Any excess of
the original carrying amount over the fair value
less costs to sell is recognised as an asset
impairment loss.

Discontinued operation is a component of
the Group that either has been disposed of
or is classified as held for sale, and can be
distinguished from other components within
the Group in business operation and in
preparation of financial statements.

(%)

(27).

(28).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(29).

(30).

Segment information

The Group identifies operating segments
based on the internal organisation,
management requirements and internal
reporting system, and the reportable segments
is determined based on the operating
segments.

An operating segment is a component of
the Group that satisfies all of the following
conditions: (1) the component is able to
earn revenues and incur expenses from its
operation activities; (2) whose operating
results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s
management to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and
to assess its performance, and (3) for which
the information on financial position, operating
results and cash flows is available to the
Group. If two or more operating segments
have similar economic characteristics and
satisfy certain conditions, they are aggregated
into one single operating segment.

Purchase shares in subsidiaries from non-
controlling shareholders and partial
disposal of interest in a subsidiary without
loss of control

The transaction with non-controlling interest
to partially or wholly acquire interests in a
subsidiary after obtaining the control rights
over the subsidiary, the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are measured consistently
following their value at the acquisition or
merger date in the consolidated financial
statements. The difference between additions
in long-term investment due to the interest
purchase and additions of shared net assets
of the subsidiary calculated by the additional
share proportion, should be recorded in
capital surplus (share premium). In case
share premium is not sufficient to offset
the difference, retained earnings should be
adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. EEGEHBOR fo e gt s

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (#&)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(30). Purchase shares in subsidiaries from non- (30). W E 2 v A BB R RE 45 DA
controlling shareholders and partial R iilor g B A wl R E
disposal of interest in a subsidiary without fHAR YRy wIHE (&)

(31).

loss of control (Continued)

The transaction with non-controlling interest
to dispose interests in a subsidiary without
losing control rights over the subsidiary,
the difference between the proceeds from
disposal of interests and the decrease of the
shared net assets of the subsidiary is adjusted
to capital surplus (share premium). In case
share premium is not sufficient to offset the
difference, retained earnings will be adjusted.

Changes in significant accounting policies

The Group had changed the accounting
treatment for investment properties from the
cost model to the fair value model with effect

(31).
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from 27 December 2012. The consolidated stEHE ——FXNA=+
income statement for the six months ended on B k7@ A Hﬁ F'ﬁ MEHFERE
30 June 2012 has adopted this amendment RREFENSFTBORETER

retrospectively and restated. This adjustment
result in gain on investment income increase
by RMB14,496,000 for the six months ended
on 30 June 2012 and basic earnings per
share, diluted earnings per share increase by
RMBO0.01. Besides, the amendment had no
other effect.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and

judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical
accounting estimates and key judgments
applied based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable.

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and key

assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and
key assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year
are as following:

(i)

Property development cost
Critical estimates and
judgments on budget cost
and development progress are
required in determining property
development cost. The budget
cost and development progress
of the project is reviewed by the
Group on a regular basis and
adjusted as appropriate. Should
the actual cost differs from the
budget cost, such difference will
impact the accuracy of cost of
properties held for sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . B EHBOR e EHEEE
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ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). HEE GGG EHAA B (&)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key (a) 2 G A R B I B g i
assumptions (Continued) Wt (4E)
(ii) Taxes (i) BiE
The Group is subject to various A& E i = R
taxes in the PRC. There are XBTEGMEE
many transactions and events THIE - EIEF K
for which the ultimate tax mEBRCORERS
determination is uncertain during MEBIE BB
the ordinary course of business. B 32 ER A7 2 T HEE
Significant judgment is required 1 o FERHR T HIE(E
in determining the provision for MET R AL
land appreciation tax (“LAT”) EFEEELEER
and other taxes. Where the final FT o IRELMIE S
tax outcome of these matters HRRERELER
is different from the amounts EE Y AKRNEE
that were initially recorded, such FEEZR =21
differences will impact the tax HIEH Eill &R
provisions in the period in which EHREFENT 2

(iii)

such determination is made.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually
whether assets have suffered any
impairment in accordance with

(iii)

THRELRE-

BEERE

R IR 3 — (19)Ffratt
MEETEER - AEE
EFAREERSD

the accounting policy stated in BE-EBEAKRAE
note 2(19), If there is objective ENEAEED L
evidence that the Group will B i@ H A e Bl & 5B
not be able to collect the full B I HZ TR
amount under the original terms, BEEILET ARE
a provision for impairment of that =P

receivable is established at the
difference between the carrying
amount of that receivable and
the present value of its estimated
future cash flows.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key

assumptions (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Provisions for bad debts of
receivables

The Group tests annually
whether receivables suffer any
impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in
note 2(10). If there is objective
evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect the full
amount under the original terms,
a provision for impairment of that
receivable is established at the
difference between the carrying
amount of that receivable and
the present value of its estimated
future cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Judgment for whether deductible
temporary differences and
Deductible losses can be
reversed in future is required from
the Group in recognising deferred
tax assets. For Deductible
temporary losses, the Group
recognizes deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available
in the future against which the
deductible temporary differences,
deductible losses and tax credits
can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . B EHBOR e EHEEE
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). HEE GGG EHAA B (&)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key (a) 2 G A R B I B g i

assumptions (Continued) Bt (&)

(v) Deferred tax assets (v) EEFESHEE
(Continued) (#%&)
The Group tests the carrying AEBGFHET
amount of defered tax assets st EEMKRA
annually. If the Group is unlikely BEETEZ WX
to obtain sufficient taxable 7% 2K B fE 1R 1T g 4
income to utilise the economic EEUS B 5 FE 4N

(vi)

benefits brought by Deductible
temporary differences in future,
then the deffered tax assets
would be written off and the
income tax expenses of current
period would be increased by
the amount of the expected
unrealisable Deductible
temporary differences.

Fair value of investment
properties

The Group adopts fair value
model for subsequent measure
of investment properties and
obtains independent valuations
for its investment properties
at least annually from an
independent professional valuer
as a third party. The fair value is
determined in accordance with
the methods below:

Current prices (open market
quotations) in an active
market for the same or similar
investment properties;

(vi)
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BEr—F

0%

—SFAAS+AUNEALE (BIRAZH) 2 BB BARKTFT)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(@)

Critical accounting estimates and key

assumptions (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Fair value of investment
properties (Continued)

When such information above
is not available, then use recent
prices in an active market of
the same or similar investment
property, adjusted to reflect
differences in situations, dates
and locations of transactions,
etc.;

Discounted cash flow projections
based on reliable estimates of
rental income and future cash
flows.

Provision for the decline in
value of inventories

The Group measures the
inventories at the lower of cost
and net realisable value at
the balance sheet date. The
calculation of net realisable
value needs assumptions and
estimates. If the management
changes the estimated selling
price and the estimated costs
to completion, the estimated
net realisable value would
be affected; such difference
will impact the provisions of
inventories which have been
recognised.

G S BOR & EH il

(%)

(32). HEZ &Gt fhw A B (#)

(@)

B2 A A4 R B 3L R s B

% (&)

(vi) REMBEHELR
BE (&)
B ARG R RS E
UEHERITH S

(vii)

BRE - 2GR ™
% ERBHBUE
WENROR S E
B AXEERXHE
RS EH &
I 35 5 A =

ERBEHARRER
M H & W A R
HenENRER

%O
FEBEER

AEBEREEBAE
B YHFEREMX
7 B m] & 35 F R 3
K5t & - ATERFE
M EEZHNAR
B BB
BHHEAEBRE
55 LB B 5 £ 1)
BiER] R EF

5t ERIS
I 6017 & Bk B2 18
EERE-
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING . B EHBOR e EHEEE
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING (%)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). HEE GGG EHAA B (&)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and

judgments (Continued)

(b)

Critical judgments on application of

accounting policy — revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy
stated in note 2(23), the assessment
of when an entity has transferred
the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to buyers requires the
examination of the circumstances of
the transaction. In most cases, the
transfer point of risks and rewards of
ownership coincides with the date when
the equitable interest in the property
vests with the buyer upon release of the
respective property to the buyer.

As disclosed in note 10, the Group
provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks relating to the mortgage loans
arranged for certain purchasers of the
Group’s properties. These guarantees
will be expired when relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with
the various banks by the purchasers.
The Group believes that significant
risks and rewards associated to the
ownership of the properties have been
transferred to the purchasers when the
equitable interest in the property vests
with the buyer upon release of the
respective property to the buyer.

(b)

TR R € 585K AY [ S
B — WA Tl a2

BT eIt E
AR AEEEH N A
ERERLONEZZRAR
MFENE L LR EE R
B EEREBERSINEAL
B A - EZ 8B
ST BT A R B AN R B
ERNEE HEEER
W S AR [R] B WAL A 5 B 4B —
g(o

0 B R + P At - AN 52 B
MOBEENRITIRIBE
REHRER-EBEEN
7 an B B R I AR IR 1T
By - 5% R 5 R BR - K
SEFERABBAEED
EANRERERMEBESE
B U S R B B B R 8

% o
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80

BEr—F

3.

—SFAAS+AUNEALE (BIRAZH) 2 BB BARKTFT)
TAXATION

The types and rates of taxes applicable to the Group
are set out below:

—
—

Bi |

AEBAHRERNEEHEREHE
FIREAT -

Type Tax rate Taxable base
wE BE HE
Enterprise income tax 25% Taxable income of subsidiaries
- based in the PRC
JEMTL TSR

5%-10% Income from taxable dividends of non-

Business tax 5%
=

LAT 30%-60%
+ I E R

City maintenance and construction tax 5%-7%
YR T A R R R

Education surcharge 3%
B BEM M

Local education surcharge 2%
Hh 75 2B B BT AN

Property tax 1.2%
FEMN

resident enterprises in and investments
disposal from mainland China. According

to “Notice of the Ministry of Finance and
State Administration of Taxation on Several
Preferential Policies in respect of Enterprise
Income Tax(2008-1)", the accumulated
undistributed profits generated by
enterprises with foreign investment before

1 January 2008, which are distributed to
foreign investors after 2008, are enterprise
income tax free.

iR B 355 0 3E R IR 10 22 A0 B AR R U A e
PEARERERENWRA - RIE (BIBED - &
ANGRBBANEERMAENE TEBRRERRN
) (BFHi[2008]15% ) - 20085F1 A1H 2
RIOMNERECRIEAN BB ARDENE £
2008F AR D ELAAINEIIR EEH) - AR
FrigH%

Taxable turnover amount

AR A

Taxable value added amount (Tax payable
is calculated using the value appreciation
amount realised through sales multiplied by
the effective tax rate of current period)

EEEMEMNGHRATIEER

Business tax payable

e S KT

Business tax payable
JEME R

Business tax payable
JEWE R

Taxable residual value of properties

FERHRE
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2F—

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENT

(1). Significant subsidiaries

.

ZFNA=THUNEFEE (B EEEI) 2 FEMLBARETFT)

1B 36 5 BF B & OF S0 5 #h 3%

(7). WETA WS

O q = A gt
1. Subsidiaries incorporated by promoters 1, NN R S I VRS R )
at establishment of the Company, ABRARFAR:
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EMEE KRARERELH RRARRELH
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
—g-=f —T-CF —E-Zf e 3
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~AZtR +-A=+-18 RAZtR +-A=+-8
Name registration  activities issued 2013 2012 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
EBMER —8-Z% -F-C
FRAER i fe6E B%f1E%  AAZtH E# 53 E# % =83 5} %
% % % % % % % %
(1) Central Plaza Beijing, Property - USDET USDETT 75 25 7% 25 75 25 7% 25
Real Estate the PRC Development and 11,258,000 11,258,000
Development Co., Ltd. Investment
SR EHERERRE
() Beiing Rongjin Beijing, Property - USDET USDETT 10 49.5 10 495 10 49.5 10 49.5
Real Estate the PRC Development and 6,360,000 6,360,000
Development Co., Ltd. Investment
R EHERERRE
(3)  Beiing Sunshine Jindu  Beijing, Property - RMBARY RMBAR® 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Properties Co.,Ltd. the PRC Development and 370,000,000 370,000,000
(“Jindu Company) sales
IREHEHES LR FHERERHE
#
(4) Central Plaza BVI Investment Holding RMBARE USDETT USDETT 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Development Ltd. 2,000,000,000 1 1
(‘Central Plaza’) USDET
400,000,000
RBARR BAER
i)
() International Financial BV Investment Holding - USDETT USDETT 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Center Property., Ltd. 1 1
(IFC)
ARepaLNE REER
ARAE ATH
[IFCH%]))
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b — S

= —=

4.

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continueq)

=ZFNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FEBARETT)

. 436 & OF & & F 55 ik

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business
combinations involving enterprises not

under common control:

(%)

(—). BEFAENGN (&)

2.  BBEIFR—EH THEE
BHBEHT AR :

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EREE KRARERELH ERARAELA
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
—E-zf -t —g-=f 5%
Place of  Principal Bonds 30June 31 December AA=TA +-A=t-8 ~A=TA TZR=+-8
Name registration  activities issued 2013 2012 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
EBUER -g-zF %
FRAER i fgedE BRITRS AR=tR T E# 53 E# B E# 53 E# G5
% % % % % % % %
(1) SC.Real Estate Bejjng, Property - RMBARH RMBAR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Development Co., Ltd.  the PRC Development and 640,000,000 640,000,000
sales
LR FHERERHE
@ Beiing HYHL Beiing, Property - USD£TT USDET - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 10,000,000 10,000,000
Development Co., Lid. sales
('HYHL')
R BE4E  RT EHERERHE
BR \TH
I
(8 Beiing Anhua Shii Beiing, Property - USDE T USDET 55 45 55 4 60 40 60 40
Real Estate the PRC Development and 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Co., Lid. sales
(*Anhua Shi")
— ERY hRD
{4 Tienjin Banshan Renjia  Tianjin, Property - USDE T USDETL - 55 - 5 - 60 - 60
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC Development and 89,000,000 89,000,000
(‘Tianjin Banshan’) sales
KEHUARES R FHERERHE
BRRA(ATH
[RERWL])
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(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

1B 36 5 BF B & OF S0 5 #h 3%

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continueqd)

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business
combinations involving enterprises not
under common control: (Continued)

(&

(—). BRFAFEMEN (&)

2.  BBAIFR—EH THEE
BHBBHTFAR: (&)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EMEE KRARERELH RARARRELH
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
—E-zk 5% —g-=f 5%
Placeof Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~BZtA tZB=+-8 ~BZtA tZA=t+-8
Name registration  activities issued 2013 2012 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
EHUMER —8-Z%
FRAER it BEEE BRITRE ~AZTH E# B E# % 3 63 E# 3
% % % % % % % %
(5)  Beiing Sunshine City Beijing, Property - USDET USDETT 50 50 50 50 60 40 60 40
Real Estate the PRC Development and 20,000,000 20,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
(*Sunshine City")
R E ERT FHEREREE
5 TR
[Bx5))
()  Chongging Xinshi Chongging,  Property - USDET USDETT - 50 - 50 - 50 - 50
Real Estate the PRC Development and 95,000,000 95,000,000
Development CO.,Ltd. sales
(Chongaing Xinshi"i)
EREAINRES BEM FHEREREE
(7) Outlets Property Foshan, Property - USDE T USDETT - - - 50 - - - 60
Investment the PRC Development and 40,000,000 40,000,000
Guang Dong Ltd. sales
(“Outlets Guangdong’)
(note 4(2)(1))
Ll EHERERHE
(8 Beiing Xinbocheng Beiing, Property - RMBA K% RMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 89,000,000 89,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
(*Xinbocheng’)
bl EHERERHE
(9 Qingdao Yangguang Qingdao, Property - RMBA K% RMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Binhai Properties the PRC Development and 50,000,000 50,000,000
Co, Ltd. sales
& FHERERHE
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E3

4.

— =

—=

INTERIM REPORT 2013

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(1).

Significant subsidiaries (Continueq)

SEAAS AU EBE (BRIEEI) 2 HELBARET )
BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

.

1B 36 1 BF B & OF S0 5 #h 3%

(&

(—). EEFAENGN (&)

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business 2. FEIER — S TR E
combinations involving enterprises not BB FRA: (&)
under common control: (Continued)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EREE KRARERELAH ERARRELH
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
—g-zk 5% —g-=f 5%
Place of  Principal Bonds 30June 31 December AA=TA +-A=t-8 ~A=TA TZR=+-8
Name registration  activities issued 2013 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
ERMER =t St
FRAER i BEEE BRITRS ~AZTA E# 53 E# i E# 53 E# B
% % % % % % % %
(10)  Qingdeo Qiangianshu ~ Qingdao, Property - RMBAR % RMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Investment Properties  the PRC Development and 20,000,000 20,000,000
Co,, Ltd. sales
EETTHER & ERERTRHE
ARAT
(1) Yantai Yangguang Lidu ~ Yantai, Property - RMBA K% RMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 50,000,000 50,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
EAT EHERERHE
(12)  Yantai Yangguang Lizhen  Yantai, Property - RMBA K% RVMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 75,000,000 75,000,000
Development sales
Bam FHERERHE
(1) Yantai Yangguang Xinye ~ Yantai, Property - RMBAR% RMBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 75,000,000 75,000,000
Development sales
Co., Ltd.
(*Yantai Xinye')
BEaGrFERNE  EEW FHERERHE
[GES Al
(ATBIERTED
(14 Zhejiang Huisheng Huzhou, Property - USDE T USDETT - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd the PRC Development and 20,000,000 20,000,000
sales
FIEREXARAE  HMNT EHERERHE
(15)  Zhejiang Outlets Property Huzhou, Property - USD£ T USDET - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co,, Ltd. the PRC Development and 40,000,000 40,000,000
sales
HIRRRAES M FHERERHE
ARAR
(16)  Tianjin Shengtai Cheng ~ Tianjin, Property - RMBARH RMBAR% - 20 - 90 - 90 - 90
Jiaming Ronghe the PRC Development and 60,000,000 60,000,000
Development sales
Co., Ltd
N3l EHERERHE
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
B = F—=FNA=1HIEANE AR (BRERFHS) 2 BE U BAREFT)
4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND Mg, 3G 0 Ko OF B ik
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#&
STATEMENT (continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continueqd) (—). BETFAAEN (&)
8.  Subsidiaries obtained from investment 3. BBALEMHEAMFG ARG
and other procedures: K F AR :
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EMEE KRARERELH RRARRELH
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
—E-zk —T-% —g-=f 5%
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~AZtR +-A=+-18 RAZtR +-A=+-8
Name registration  activities issued 2013 2012 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
EHUER —8-Z% -FC
FRAER i BEEE BRITRS ~AZTH E# 5} E# % E# 63 E# 3
% % % % % % % %
(1) Beiing Capital Xinzi Real ~ Bejjing, Property - RMBARY RMBAR® 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Estate Ltd. the PRC Development and 496,590,000 496,590,000
(‘Beijing Xinzi") sales
FRESIHAER ERT FHERERHE
Ll TR
[ 7HE]
() Beiing Shangboya Befing, Investment Holding - RMBARH RMBAR# 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Investment Consultant ~ the PRC 30,000,000 30,000,000
Co,, Ltd.
(*Shangboya’)
X ERT RAER
() Beiing Shangboal Beiing, Investment holding - RMBARH RMBAR# 51 - 51 - 51 - 51 -
Investment Consultant ~ the PRC 30,000,000 30,000,000
Co,, Ltd.
(*Shangbodi’)
JERE RT REER
(4 Tienjin Xinchuang Tianjin, Property - USDZTT USDETL - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Land Ltd. the PRC Development and 25,000,000 25,000,000
(‘Tianjin Xinchuang’) sales
RETHAEEBRAA REH FHEREREE
(AT
[ Xl
(5)  Chengdu Capital Xinzi ~ Chengdu, Property - USDE T USDETT - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Ltd. sales
(‘Chengdu Xinzi")
BBRANEES %L BHERERHE
(6)  Jiangsu Capital Wuxi, Property - USDET USDETT 60 40 60 40 60 40 60 40
Real Estate the PRC Development and 12,500,000 12,500,000
Development Ltd. sales
(“Jiangsu Capital’)
THERIER BHm FHERERHE
BRRA(ATR
[T#E8l])
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4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

INTERIM REPORT 2013

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(1).

Significant subsidiaries (Continueq)

. 436 & OF & & 0F 55 ik

(&

(—). EEFAENGN (&)

8.  Subsidiaries obtained from investment 3. AmAMEMEMGANME
and other procedures: (Continued) BWFRA: (&)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EREE KRARERELAH ERARRELH
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
-g-zf oIk -§-zf% 3
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~AZtR +-A=+-1 ~AZtR TZA=t-H
Name registration  activities issued 2013 2012 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
EBHER =t St it S 3
FRAER i e BRITRS ABETE TZAZt-H 84 B E# k3 E# 5 E# i3
% % % % % % % %
(1) Beiing Caotang Beiing, Property RMBAR % RVMBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 10,000,000 10,000,000
Development Ltd. sales
FREEER R FHERERHEE
ARAT
(8  Beiing Capital Land Chengdu,  Property RMBAR % RVMBAR% 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Chengdu Co., Ltd. the PRC Development and 150,000,000 150,000,000
(‘Capital Chengdu’) sales
EREXRBERAR RHT FHERERHE
(AT
[EeRH])
(9 Chengdu Capital Yidu ~ Chengdu,  Property USDZ T USDETT - 55 - 56 - 60 - 60
Real Estate the PRC Development and 100,000,000 100,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
RAEEIRNER #m FHERTREE
ARR
(10)  Tianjin Capital Xinyuan ~ Tianjin, Property USDETT USDETT - 55 - 56 - 60 - 60
Real Estate the PRC Development and 95,000,000 95,000,000
Development sales
Co., Ltd.
REEEIFEES RET FHERERHE
ARAT
(1) Tianjin Capital Xingang ~ Tianjin, Property USDET USDETT - 55 - 55 - 60 - 60
Real Estate the PRC Development and 95,000,000 95,000,000
Development sales
Co,, Ltd.
REEEHEER K& FHERTREE
ARAR
(12)  Wuxi Xindong Wu, Property RMBARM¥ RMBAR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate the PRC Development and 100,000,000 100,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
("Wuxi Xindong')
EREENRER BHH FHERERHE
ARRAT (AT
[&5H#R))
(13)  Central Plaza Xinrong ~ Beijing, Hotel Operation and USDETT USDETT 75 25 75 25 75 25 75 25
Hotel Management the PRC Management 6,062,000 6,062,000
Co,, Ltd.
(‘Central Plaza Xinrong’)
R BEEERER

FRPREREEEE
IR &
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2F—

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(1).

Significant subsidiaries (Continueqd)

.

ZFNA=THUNEFEE (B EEEI) 2 FEMLBARETFT)

1B 36 5 BF B & OF S0 5 #h 3%

(&

(—). BRFAFEMEN (&)

8.  Subsidiaries obtained from investment 3. BBALEMHEAMFG ARG
and other procedures: (Continued) BWFRA: (&)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EMEE KAARERELH ERAARRELAH
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
-g-zf Ik -§-zf% 3
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~AZtR +-A=+-4 ~AZtR TZA=t-18
Name registration  activities issued 2013 2012 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
EBUER =t St
FRAER it BEEE BRITRS ABZTH 3 3 E# 53 4 Gk E# 33
% % % % % % % %
(14)  Beiing Chuangxin Jianye ~ Beijing, Investment Holding - RMBAR® RMBARH 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate the PRC 50,000,000 50,000,000
Investment Ltd.
(‘Chuangxin Jianye’)
% RE LRT REER
[EE%])
(15)  Jingjin Tongcheng (Tianjin) Tianjin, Property - RMBARX RMBAR - 50 - 50 - 51 - 51
Investment Co., Ltd. the PRC Development and 250,000,000 250,000,000
(*Jingjin Tongcheng’() sales
RERM(RR)RE  REW FHERBREE
(16)  Outlets Property Beiing, Property - USDET USDETT - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Investment the PRC Development and 127,000,000 127,000,000
Fang Shan Ltd. sales
SREEIRE RT FHERZRHE
EXERAT
(17)  Beiing Capital Znongbei ~ Bejing, Property - RMBARY RMBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 100,000,000 100,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
SREEPLERRE  LRT EHERERHE
(1) Guangdong Guansheng ~ Foshan, Property - USDET USDETT - - - 60 - - - 60
Real Estate the PRC Development and 40,000,000 40,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
(Guangdong Guansheng)
(note 4(2)(1))
EHERERHE
(19)  Guangdong Rongxin Foshan, Property - USDE T USDET - - - 60 - - - 60
Real Estate the PRC Development and 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd sales
(Guangdong Rongxin)
(note 4(2)(1))
ERRGEFARAT  Hud FHERERHE

THRIERRE])
(MR (=) (1)
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(B _FE—=FENA =1 HIE R (BRI HI) 25 E M SARKETFT)

4.

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(1).

Significant subsidiaries (Continueq)

3. Subsidiaries obtained from investment
and other procedures: (Continued)

(&

. 436 & OF & & 0F 55 ik

(—). EEFAENGN (&)

3. BBHEMHEMS RS
BFRm: (&)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EREE KRARERELAH ERARRELH
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
-g-zf oIk -§-zf% 3
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~AZtR +-A=+-1 ~AZtR TZA=t-H
Name registration  activities issued 2013 2012 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
EBHER =t St it S 3
FRAER i e BRITRS ABETE TZAZt-H 84 B E# k3 E# 5 E# i3
% % % % % % % %
(20)  Guangdong Jingsheng  Foshan, Property - USDET USDETT - - - 60 - - - 60
Real Estate the PRC Development and 10,000,000 10,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
(“Guangdong
Jingsheng’)
(note 4(2)(1))
ERREERERAT  HUT FHERTREE
(WTRIERRE])
(HEm (=) (1)
(1) BECL Investment Hong Kong  Investment Holding RMBAR% USDET USDETT 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Holding Ltd. (‘BECL') 1,150,000,000 9,900,000 9,900,000
B REER
(22)  Beiing Litong Shangyi  Beljing, Property - RMBARY RMBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 10,310,000 10,310,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
(‘Beijing Shangyi”)
IRMABERE R FHERTREE
BRAR(ATR
[R&E])
(23)  Beiing Anshunyuan Beiing, Property - RMBARY RVMBAR% - 9% - % - 95 - %
Real Estate the PRC Development and 50,000,000 50,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
LR FHERERHE
(24)  Zhengjiang Xianji Zhenjiang, Property - USDET USDETT - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
BIEEEX IT FHERERHE
ARAT
(25)  Zhejiang Shouxin Huzhou, Property - USDET USDETT - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 24,500,000 24,500,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
HIEEES Al FREREREE
ARAT
(26)  Zhejiang Hualong Huzhou, Property - USDET USDETT - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 67,000,000 67,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
MIZEEE M FREREREE
ARAT



HAEERMDARAR ZT =P

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

2F—

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continueqd)

.

ZFNA=THUNEFEE (B EEEI) 2 FEMLBARETFT)

1B 36 5 BF B & OF S0 5 #h 3%

(&

(—). BRFAFEMEN (&)

8.  Subsidiaries obtained from investment 3. BBALEMHEAMFG ARG
and other procedures: (Continued) BWFRA: (&)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EMEE KAARERELH ERAARRELAH
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
-g-zf Ik -§-zf% 3
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~AZtR +-A=+-4 ~AZtR TZA=t-18
Name registration  activities issued 2013 2012 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
EBUER =t St
FRAER it BEEE BRITRS ABZTH 3 3 E# 53 4 Gk E# 33
% % % % % % % %
(27)  Beiing Ruiyuanfengji Beiing, Property RMBAR % RMBAR% 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,000
Development Co., Ltd.
(‘Ruiyuanfengji’)
IRETEEER bR RHERY
BRAF ATHE
[Brg%])
(28 Capital Tianshun Beiing, Property RMBAR % RMBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development 100,000,000 100,000,000
Development Co.,Ltd.
(“Capital Tianshun’)
5 RHERY
(29 Nanjing Ningehun Nanjing, Infrastructure RMBAR % RMBAR% - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Investment 100,000,000 100,000,000
Development Co., Ltd.
E BRm ERFHRE
(30)  Hainan Outlets Wanning, Property USDET USDETT - 55 - 55 - 55 - 55
Real Estate the PRC Development 14,000,000 14,000,000
Development Co., Ltd.
BRARRTRNE  BED FHERE
FEERL
(31)  Jiangyin Yuyue Jiangyin, Property USDET USDETT - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development 49,000,000 49,000,000
Development Co., Ltd.
IRFNERARAR IR FHERE
(32)  Sanya Shengxing Weiye ~ Sanya, Property RMBARM¥ RMBAR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 100,000,000 100,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
ChRRERER =& FHERTREE
ARAR
(33 Qingdao Xinli Weiye Qingdao, Property RMBARM¥ RMBAR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development and 30,000,000 30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
EBEUBERUE BB FHERTREE
HEERAE
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E3

4.

— =

—=

INTERIM REPORT 2013

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(1).

Significant subsidiaries (Continueq)

=ZFNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FEBARETT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND . 3508 &G 0808k

(&

(—). EEFAENGN (&)

8.  Subsidiaries obtained from investment 3. AmAMEMEMGANME
and other procedures: (Continued) BWFRA: (&)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EREE KRARERELAH ERARRELH
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
-g-zf oIk -§-zf% 3
Place of Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~AZtR +-A=+-1 ~AZtR TZA=t-H
Name registration  activities issued 2013 2012 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
EBHER =t St
FRAER i e BRITRS YR 84 3 E# k3 E# 5 E# i3
% % % % % % % %
(34)  Capital Guoxin Asset ~ Beijing, Asset Management RMBAR % RVMBAR% 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Management Co., Ltd.  the PRC 100,000,000 100,000,000
(Capital Guoxin)
g LR BEER
(35 Capital Qinglv Kunshan, Property RMBARM¥ RMBAR - 51 - 51 - 51 - 51
Real Estate (Kunshan) ~ the PRC Development and 300,000,000 300,000,000
Co,, Ltd.
BEERER(RL) BuW
ARAR
(36)  Qinhuangdao Outlets ~ Qinhuangdao  Tourism Project USDZ T USDETT - 60 - 60 - 60 - 60
Real Estate Co., Ltd the PRC Development 20,000,000 20,000,000
(‘Qinhuangdao
Real Estate”)
RERANKTER %28 EEES
(37)  Hainan Outlets Wanning, Development and USDZ T USDETT - 55 - 56 - 55 - 55
Tourism Development  the PRC construction sales 9,000,000 1,350,000
Co., Ltd. and property
management
BRRRHENDE
B
(33)  Chongging Shouyong ~ Chongging,  Property RMBAR % NATER 100 - - - 100 - - -
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC Development and 80,000,000
(Chongaing Shouyong’) sales
EFEXERERAA EET FREREREE
(AT
[EXEX])
(39)  Capital Outlets (Kunshan) Kunshan, Property RMBARM¥ NATNER - 100 - - - 100 - -
Real Estate the PRC Development and 300,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. sales
ERIRR(RIESY BT FRERTREE
ARAR
(40)  Tianjin Xinjing Tianjin, Property Investment RMBARM NATNER - 100 - - - 100 - -
Investment Co., Ltd. the PRC 100,000,000

RRRRREARAA XD

FHELE
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(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

.

1B 36 5 BF B & OF S0 5 #h 3%
(#&)

STATEMENT (continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continueqd) (—). BEFAFEN (&)
8.  Subsidiaries obtained from investment 3. BBALEMHEAMFG ARG
and other procedures: (Continued) BFRA: (&)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EMEE KAARERELH ERAARRELAH
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
—g-=f —B-CF —g-=f —T-ZF
Place of  Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ~AZTA TZA=t-H ~AZTA TZA=1-8
Name registration  activities issued 2013 2012 Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
EBUER =t St -F-z
FRAER it e BRITRS ~AEZtR TZA=T-H 3 k3 B 53 4 k3 B 33
% % % % % % % %
(41) Beiing Tiancheng Yongxin Beijing, Property - RMBARY NATER - 100 - - - 100 -
Real Estate Co., Ltd the PRC Development 100,000,000
i B% ERT FHERE
(42)  Shenyang Capital Xinyun  Shenyang,  Property - RMBAR# NATNER - 100 - - - 100 - -
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC Development and 20,000,000
sales
o0 FHERERS
(44)  Datang Weiye Holdings ~ France Real Estate Business - EURE 7T NATER - 100 - - - 100 - -
25,000,000
EAREEFRE el WEXBREM
ARAT
0] According to the Articles of Association 0] BERZRENNAARE
of Jingjin Tongcheng, the Group holds BAEERBZRAA
50% equity interests and has control 50% ) ik #E 1B % B 1=
over the company. o
(i)  The Group holds 50% equity interests in (ii) AEBHEEFAEE

Chongqing Xinshi, and according to the
Articles of Association of the investee,
the Group can make significant financial
and operating decisions without the
agreement of other shareholders thus
has control over the company.

50%H & BRIEEE
FAMARER A5E
HEBFONEATKER
KSR TN BE-MG E Aty
BERFRE - B AE B %
B -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEr—F

4.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZ) 2 BB ARKTT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(2). Loss of control caused by disposal of

equity interests in subsidiaries

Mo

Outlets Guangdong > Guangdong
Guansheng > Guangdong Jingsheng and
Guangdong Rongxin

The Group originally held 50%, 60%,
60% and 60% equity interests in
Outlets Guangdong* Guangdong
Guansheng * Guangdong Jingsheng
and Guangdong Rongxin (hereinafter
“the Guangdong Project Companies”)
respectively, which are incorporated in
Foshan, the PRC, and their principal
activities are property development
and sales. In April 2013, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest in
the Guangdong Project Companies to
Aotelaisi Renowned Brand Discount
Store Limited, Worldwide Renowned
Brand Discount Store Asia Limited,
Aotelaisi Renowned Brand Discount
Storelnvestment Limited and Aotelaisi
Renowned Brand Discount Store
Properties Limited (note 5(9)(a)) (note 9).

M. 386 0F & & 0F 0 B ik

(%)

(52). H 5 e 2 B e O 2 ) B
WA & ¥l

1.

SR A R OR SRR

AEERDRIFHERKE
R EREKE BEREAR
BRSEE (AT ER
EHEB2RA])50% 60%
60% FM60% % #E + A 7]
TR AR EE A R A0 B 3
WM FEXBRFME
AERHEE R_T—=
FOA AEBKESBN
BRIEE QAR 2 AR
7 BI85 5 T BB RF AR HT B pE
WHMEERAR HRA
RITHMEEMERA A
BERTABITNERE
BERAF BEFKERE
THMEEEBR AT (M
FEHO)N@)) (FFE) -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(2). Loss of control caused by disposal of
equity interests in subsidiaries (Continueqd)

1o

Outlets Guangdong > Guangdong
Guansheng > Guangdong Jingsheng and
Guangdong Rongxin (Continuead)

The proceeds and cash flows
from the disposal are as follows:

. 438 & OF & & OF 5 ik

(#&)

(Z2). H 5 e A B e O v ) B T

WA 5wl (&)

L BRER - RAOE A - /R
FBMBORRE (&)

(i) REERLRER
SRIT :

Amount
G|
Proceeds from disposal EEER 521,298
Cash received from disposal BREWEIMIRE 500,000
Less: Cash received in previous JE AR EEWE KRS
years (60,445)
Less: Cash held by the - EREERARFANES
Guangdong Project
Companies (7,844)
Net cash received BEWEMIREFE
from disposal 431,711
As at 30 June 2013, the R—_E—=%F,H

Company has not yet received
the consideration amounting to
RMB21,298,000.

=+H  AmARIKE
R EEE TR AR
#21,298,0007T, °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=FNNA="1HINEAERE (BHEFZH) 2 EE M BARETFT)
4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND Mg, 3G 0 Ko OF BB ik
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (%)
STATEMENT (continued)
(2). Loss of control caused by disposal of (). H B T b 2 3 O e i WE T
equity interests in subsidiaries (Continueq) WA A (&)
1. Outlets Guangdong > Guangdong 1. BB 8 0~ SR e A~ BEOR
Guansheng > Guangdong Jingsheng and ROBMERER (&)
Guangdong Rongxin (Continuead)
(ii) Net assets of the Guangdong (ii) REERIEE QG
Project Companies are as WEEENTMN
follows: S
31 December
Disposal date 2012
—EB-—F
BKEH +=H=t+-H
Current assets mEEE 1,623,701 1,894,018
Non-current assets FEREEE 761,007 960,961
Current liabilities V=R (719,362) (1,936,398)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (793,946) (43,946)
Net assets FEE 871,400 874,635
(i) ~ The revenue, expenses and (i) EXRIBERBARK=
profits of the Guangdong Project T—=%—H—H
Companies for the period from ZEREANKA B
1 January 2013 to the disposal BT
date are as follows:
Amount
Gk
Revenue WA -
Less: Cost and Expenses JB AN TN E A (4,313)
Total Loss BB (4,313)
Less: Income tax expenses TSR E A 1,078
Net Loss FEE (3,235)
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(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

Loss of control caused by disposal of
equity interests in subsidiaries (Continueqd)

Iy Outlets Guangdong > Guangdong
Guansheng > Guangdong Jingsheng and
Guangdong Rongxin (Continuead)

(iv) Profit or loss on disposal is

. 438 & OF & & OF 5 ik
(#&)

(Z2). H 5 e A B e O v ) B T
WA (&)

L BRER - RAOE A - /R
FBMBOR R (F)

vy BRE#E=@TE®N
calculated as follows: ™
Amount
|
Proceeds from disposal EEER 521,298
Less: Net assets of the J - ERIBE QA
Guangdong Project REEBNFEE
Companies at the
disposal date (871,400)
Minority interests of the ERIEEHRARIDERRE
Guangdong Project Ea
Companies 375,448
Investment income generated BEEENRERE
from disposal 25,346
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEr—F

4.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZ) 2 BB ARKTT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(2).

Loss of control caused by disposal of

equity interests in subsidiaries (Continueq)

P

Beijing Yongyuan Jintai Investment Co.,
Ltd., Beijing Xingtai Jicheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

The Group originally held 100%
equity interest in Beijing Yongyuan
Jintai Investment Co., Ltd.(hereinafter
“Yongyuan Jintai”) and Beijing Xingtai
Jicheng Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (hereinafter “Xingtai Jicheng”),
which are both incorporated in Beijing,
the PRC, and their principal activities
are investment management and
property development and sales,
respectively. In February 2013, the
Group disposed of its entire equity
interests in Yongyuan Jintai and Xingtai
Jicheng to Kunshan Chuangbo Sheng
Xin Equity Investment Centre (Limited
Partnership), Kunshan Chuangbo Shun
Xin Equity Investment Centre (Limited
Partnership), Kunshan Chuangbo Tong
Ying Equity Investment Centre (Limited
Partnership) and Kunshan Chuangbo Fu
Xin Equity Investment Centre (Limited
Partnership) (hereinafter “Kunshan
Chuangbo Fund”) which are established
by a wholly owned subsidiary of
Tianjin Tonghua Qiangyu Investment
Management Co., Ltd (hereinafter
“Tonghua Qiangyu”) as a general
partner (Note (9)).

M. 386 0F & & 0F 0 B ik
(%)

(52). H 5 e 2 B e O 2 ) B

WA nwl (&)

2. REAKTERBEEHE
PR W] ~ b B R 35 e B3k

H IR 2

AEERFEBRILRKT
SHRIBLETEARR A
(LTHEIKxTEE])
TREFREREXERREA
AI(ATHEIEREFK])
100% A% 4 - A B FE MR
hE AR EMBIAL =T
FEEXEBEHRNAKRESE
BEMEMEREREE-
R-_TE—=%F_H K&
EHFEENKkTEHR H
FTERNREEIEET
RKEBERFREETES
BRAF (ATHEI@ER
FIZ2E2EFRRAELERE
BB ANBREZINE LA
BEREHREFRL(BRE
CRILAIBIEEKE
RO (ERAER)  EBILE
BHREBKERL(BRAE
%) BLUAEEEHREF
L (BRER) (ATHBE
[BILAIBES]) (M

%)

Al
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND 9. 365 0F &5 OF BB Rk
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#&)
STATEMENT (continued)
(2). Loss of control caused by disposal of (). H B T b 2 35 e i WEE T
equity interests in subsidiaries (Continueqd) WA N (E)
2. Beijing Yongyuan Jintai Investment Co., 8 AR K LERBEFTHA

Ltd., Beijing Xingtai Jicheng Real Estate PR 23 ] ~ bt B 35 pl B 3

Development Co., Ltd. (Continued) GWRAY (&)

(i) The proceeds and cash flows (i) REEERLEREM
from the disposal are as EY|RAT
follows :

Amount

Ek]

Proceeds from disposal EEER 33,010

Cash received from disposal BREWEIMIRE 33,010
Less: Cash held by Yongyuan KT E S BEHK

Jintai and Xingtai Jicheng BFEMNR® (273,367)

Net cash received from disposal BEXNMIRE FEE (240,357)

(i)  Net assets of Yongyuan Jintai iy EBEXTEER- HEE
and Xingtai Jicheng are as EHREFEEY R
follows: N

31 December

Disposal date 2012

—E—--fF

BREBR +=-HA=t+-—H

Current assets MENE E 1,446,549 1,446,549
Non-current assets EMEEE 2,307 2,307
Current liabilities VEIR=RE (866,713) (866,713)
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE (587,000) (587,000)
Net assets FEE (4,857) (4,857)
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BE—F—=F NA=1FHI AR (BRFZH) 2 BEBARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(2). Loss of control caused by disposal of
equity interests in subsidiaries (Continueq)

28 Beijing Yongyuan Jintai Investment Co.,
Ltd., Beijing Xingtai Jicheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (Continued)

(iif) The profit or loss of Yongyuan
Jinta and Xingtai Jicheng for the
period from 1 January 2013 to
the disposal date are zero.

M. 386 0F & & 0F 0 B ik
(%)

(52). H 5 e 2 B e O 2 ) B
WAl (&)

2. REAKTERBEEHE
B 20 ] ~ b g AR 75 R B3k
HRAT (&)

(i) kT eF-  EEFK
W—_=FE—=%—A#
ZEREHER

3¢ 2 g
fm 7 = °©

(v)  Profit or loss on disposal is vy BREEZFEW
calculated as follows: ™
Amount
Gk
Proceeds from disposal BREER 33,010
Less: Net assets of Yongyuan Ji KT E R BEEHEK
Jintai and Xingtai Jicheng REEHNFEE
on disposal date 4,857
Investment income generated BEEENRERE
from disposal 37,867
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(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED T, & 0F % i # JE B B G
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1). Cash 1. BRES

30 June 31 December
2013 2012

—E—=F —EF—=
AB=+H +=-ZA=+-—H
Cash on hand EFRE 1,525 7,650
Bank Deposits TR 7,898,509 8,507,823
Other cash balances EmEEEe 19,055 11,300
Total 7,919,089 8,616,773

As at 30 June 2013, bank deposits, which
include supervised advance from customers,
security deposits for certain mortgage loans
to customers and escrow account for bond
interests, amounted to RMB595,166,000
(81 December 2012: RMB529,204,000). The
Group has reclassified the above amount to
restricted bank deposits. As at 30 June 2013,
the carrying amount of supervised advance
from customers was RMB137,812,000(31
December 2012: RMB201,333,000).
According to the requirements of some local
authorities (such as Beijing, Tianjin etc.), real
estate developers need to open supervised
bank accounts for the advances received from
customers when they apply for advance sale
permits. Such accounts are supervised by the
monitory institute and the cash expenditure
should coincide with the construction process
in order to ensure the cash to be used for
property construction on a priority basis.

As at 30 June 2013, other cash balances,
amounted to RMB19,055,000 (31 December
2012:RMB11,300,000) are deposit for bank
acceptance bill which the Group has classified
as restricted bank deposits

R-E—=FA=1+8H £17
TF kR B3R AR #595,166,0007T
—E——F+-_A=+—H:A
R #529,204,0007T ) Hy T8 & B5 &
B2 FPEBERREEGNRE
FHEREFES AEBBES
EXRES -EFh HN=ZT—=F
NAZTH AEEEREEATE
EEEES ARE137,812,0007T
—E——&+-_A=+—H:
A R #201,333,0007T) 1R K
BESB A MR (it =~ REZEH)
R EREEMTNEEESE
EWENBETE FHERRE S
HIEETNERERAVRESES
EERFP BREEEESEE
FAERERELACEEERE
F HERNBREBEIREEHS
FRASEELES HEESAE

ERRIRERER-

R-E—Z=FA=1+H Hfth
E%E4 AR¥19,055,0005C
—FT-—Ft-A=F+—H:A
R #11,300,0007T) @ ARITHEN
EEREFESTFI AEBBEHED
BEXRESD-
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-F—
5.

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FEBARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(2). Financial assets held for trading

. & OF B Rk R H B )

(2). RuHhemeEE

30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E-= —E-—F
~NB=+H +-A=+—H

Financial instruments held X 2t & @ T EKE

for trading

— Unlisted instruments —JEFWMIA 5,320 -
In March 2013, the Group entered into a RZE—=ZF=Zf KAEBF
currency swap contract to swap the three- ATHEENET6% AR

year loans amounting to RMB1,000,000,000
with fixed rate of 7.6% to three-year loans
amounting to USD161,031,000 with fixed rate
of 6.21%. The currency swap contract is not
in compliance with the requirement of hedge
accounting. Net profit of RMB5,320,000 (for
the six months ended 30 June 2012: nil)
arising from changes in fair value is recognised
due to the swap contract for the six months

ended 30 June 2013 (note 5 (39)).

For the six months ended 30 June 2013, the
currency swap contract has not been actually
delivered by the Group (for the six months

ended 30 June 2012: nil).

According to the currency swap contract
above, before the settlement date on 30
the Group will make
cash outflows of USD161,031,000
(equivalent to RMB994,960,000) at the
and cash
outflows of USD49,114,000 (equivalent to
RMB303,463,000) at the settlement of interest
In the meanwhile, the Group will
get cash inflows of RMB1,000,000,000 at the
settlement of the principal and cash inflows
of RMB380,000,000 at the settlement of
the interest expenses, which will be used to
repay the principal of RMB1,000,000,000 and
interest expenses of the debenture issued by
Central Plaza on 29 November 2012 (note 5

November 2015,

settlement of the principal,

expenses.

(26) (c)).

1,000,000,0007T #) = F BH & 75
@i AETENE6.21% E T
161,031,0007T #) = EHHTE\?(E’J
EMBEBREN -ZEBEREH
YA REERSFTWERGMS-
FREHARBE_ST—=F<H
_+E|Jt/\TIHHHF'EJE’J’D\ft

8 5 B 7 A BB IR 25 B0 A R
5,820,000 (Bl ZE=F —=F
/_\H_‘T’EIJt/_\1IHHﬂFEJ 4 )

RARRBEES WS (MThR
(39)) °
@:Kt T—Zﬂz/\ﬁj _i—E'JJ:/\

BEABME AEEE¥EHRS
/ﬁxix,\ /TXEIJ (’E‘Z?:_g__i/\
R=+HB1ENEAHRE: &) -

BEFAEEEBREL RE
E-T— £¢+—HE+E|E@
BHIHBAA AEEEKE
BENRERBELENIE SR
49 & % 55161,031,0007T (¥
& AR #994,960,0007T) *
BREEEMR SR D EFTLH
A EITL49,114,0007T (& A
R #303,463,0007T) ' &N & F
REREFEEMNRERAAR
#1,000,000,0007T F & B 32

/7

—

HNEENRSRALTARE
380,000,000t A W;%%EP YN
ER—_ZT——F+—A=+N

BETHARNBEEFR ARE
1,000,000,0007T Y 78 4 Kz #8 78 7l
B (MizEFR26(c)) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(3). Accounts receivable and other receivables (3). e M ek B BL Al W W 3k
(a) Accounts receivable (a) JRRE Wt W sk
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
AB=tH +=-A=+-—8
Accounts receivable & W BR X 74,029 41,876
Less: provision for bad debts J&f - 552 BF #E & (7,000) (7,000)
Receivables — net FRE 67,029 34,876
Most sales of the Group are in form REE KIS 7 85 E A ER
of cash and advanced payment, other R T F A T
sales are collected subject to the ERHERRBERLE
agreed terms on sales contract. B9 < SR 2 U ER o
The ageing of accounts receivable FEUWBR RIZ A BR B HiAY
based on their recording dates is BRE DT :

analyzed as follows:

30 June 31 December

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

AA=+H +=-—A=+—8

Within 1 year —FE PR 62,154 19,789
1 to 2 years — R =4 3,504 13,880
2 to 3 years =4 1,112 1,000
Over 3 years =FLE 7,259 7,207
Total A& 74,029 41,876
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=FNNA="1HINEAERE (BRHEFZHS) 2 EE M BARETFT)
5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED T, & 0F B E H W G o)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(3). Accounts receivable and other receivables (3). R MR sk Ko L A JRE W ik
(Continued) (%)
(a) Accounts receivable (Continued) (a) JE W W% ()
Accounts receivable outstanding for HRER AR —FHEIK
over one year are mainly related to B TBRREAZEDS
sales of properties held for sale, which RAENBIARNE T
does not meet the collection dates IMEHEER - BE-ZT
based on the contracts. As at 30 June —=ZFXA=1+H @
20183, accounts receivables amounted BARELFHERRNESHE
to RMB259,000(31 December 2012: A AR259,0007T (= F
RMB207,000) is past due but not ——®#+-_HA=+—8:
impaired with the ageing of over 3 AR ¥207,0007T) © BR #&
years. Accounts receivable amounted BeE=F-mHPEEELE
to RMB7,000,000 (31 December 2012: BEBRNELFRBEAR
RMB7,000,000) with age of three #7,000,000C (=& ——=
years is past due and fully impaired F+-A=1t-H:AK
at the amount of RMB7,000,000(31 #7,000,0007T ) - Bk % #8
December 2012: RMB7,000,000). B=F HEREEXS
# A AR ¥7,000,0007T
(ZF——&F+-_A=+—
H: AR #7,000,000
JL) °
(b) Other receivables (b) L i 8 W ek
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E—=fF :%—:E
AB=+H +ZA=+—H
Amounts due from joint Bl & &N AR
ventures X 57,526 298,884
Amounts due from JrE L B N B AR SR 3K
associates ‘ 478 3,852
Guarantee deposits RE® 136,179 324,212
Receivables from primary &g — 4% 1= 3 57 2% 3K ()
land development(i) 1,743,574 1,647,656
Consideration receivables & Y B i 22 B A1
from disposal of associates EEHX 17,511 17,511
Consideration receivables & 4 % 1 ¥ % 3
from equity disposal (MsEm (=) (1)
(note 4(2)(1)) \ 21,208 -
Amounts due from Outlets & J B3 38 J& 58 1+ 2R 34 (i)
Guangdong(ii) 223,931 -
Others EHAip 244,823 961,774
Total =11 2,445,320 3,153,889
Less: provisions for bad Ji AR
debts (46,638) (46,638)
Receivables — net JEEE 2,398,682 3,107,251
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (B FEEI) 2 FEMLRBARETFT)

. SO B EEREEMEE 2)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(3).
(Continued)

Accounts receivable and other receivables

(b) Other receivables (Continued)

U

(i)

As at 30 June 2013, receivables
from primary land development
were receivables from local land
development and reserve centers
of Beijing (note 5(13)(i)).

As at 30 June 2013, receivables
from Outlets Guangdong were
RMB223,931,000. According to
the agreement, the receivables
are expected to be collected
before 31 December 2013.

The analysis of other receivables
and related provisions for bad
debts are as follows:

3.

As at 30 June 2013

B WAL B ik e HL Al WAL sk

(%)
(b)  HAbEWK (&)

() RZZE—Z=ZF XA
=+8 Bt
WHERARNEER
JE U db R T £t B
B EEBORE (M
ERA3))) °

(ii) RZE—=FH
=1+8 ERERFRE
RARREFAR
#223,931,0007T °
BEWRRNTE A%
BN =4
+ - A=+—HH#
U @ o
H fth & UK 3R K #E FE

R BREE 5 T

T

As at 31 December 2012

“E-ZEAR=1A “E-CEt-fZt-H
% of % of % of % of
total the total the
Amount  balance Provision provision  Amount  balance  Provision  provision

i3t hia®

] tH EREE  HRUA it g EEER AR
% % % %
Within 1 year —EHR 2,218,669 91 - - 2847947 0 - -
1102 years -3zF 119,195 5 - - 197,901 6 - -
2103 years 2 59,517 2 - - 50977 2 - -
Over 3 years “ENE 47,939 2 (46,638) a9 48064 2 (46,638 97
Total A 2,445,320 100 (46,638 2 3,153,889 100 (46,638 1
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BEr—F

5.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZS) 2 R E B ARKTT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . S0P E R IE H Mk 2)

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(4). Advances to suppliers (4). TVEAFZIE
The advances to suppliers are analysis as RZE—Z=ZFA=+H8 BN
follows as at 30 June 2013: KIBDWT
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E—_F
AB=tH +=-A=+-—8
Prepaid sales commissions EBNEERE 28,377 49,050
Prepayment for investment EARER 25,000 22,000
Prepayment for land () T8+ 3K () 1,428,503 -
Prepaid construction AN IR K
costs and project costs HB R 89,607 117,123
Total A&t 1,571,487 188,173
0] The Group successfully obtained the (i) AEBBBRFEZH AKX
land use rights by bidding, and prepaid IR bR I TEAT T Hu(E
the land costs. The Group has received Ko AEEDWE (FiFE
the notification of award but no other ME) B RIS EMAE
related certificates, thus the costs are B 4 A b fE TR T 5RIB
recognised in advances to suppliers. BIZHE -
The ageing analysis of the advances to TR BRFIRRE DT -
suppliers is as follows:
As at 30 June 2013 As at 31 December 2012
—E-=%XA=1H —E-—%#+-HA=+-—H
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
e HeBks ¥ (hEBELp
% %
Within 1 year —ER 1,518,544 97 151,913 81
Over 1 year —&EpE 52,943 3 36,260 19
Total &t 1,571,487 100 188,178 100
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. OB EREEMEE (2)

(Continued)
(5). Dividends receivable (5). HEW A
31 December  Current period ~ Current period 30 June
2012 additions reductions 2013
22— \ \ —E-=&
+-R=+-8 KERD AHEE I ~A=TH
Xi'an Capital Xinkai Real ~ AL HAIFTHEE
Estate Development Co., ~ ARZAF
Ltd. (*Xi'an Xinka") (AT [ARHF]) 87,422 - - 87,422
Tianjin Capital Xinming Real KZHAIFAEE
Estate Development Co., ~ BRA 7 .
Ltd. (“Tianjin Xinming”) (AT [RzHA]) 9,825 - - 9,825
Total CEl 97,247 - - 97,247
(6). Inventories 6). 8
(@)  Inventories are classified as follows: @ HFEIEWT:
As at 30 June 2013 As at 31 December 2012
ZE-ZEXRA=TH “Z--“F+ZA=t+-H
Book Provisions Book Book Provisions Book
balance  of inventory value balance of inventory balance
BESE HFEREERS REEE BEBE TEREER EmER
Properties under G
development 19,852,123 (21,190) 19,830,933 20,596,383 (22,215) 20,574,168
Properties held for sale ~ BEESR 3,343,442 (16,427) 3,327,015 2,990,410 (5,274) 2,985,136
Land under development ~ BiZ i £ it 475,744 - 475,744 355,470 - 355,470
Merchandise EFEA 4,172 - 4,172 4,172 - 4,172
Low-cost consumables  {XE SR 2,265 - 2,265 2,294 - 2,294
Total At 23,677,746 (87,617) 23,640,129 23,948,729 (27,489) 23,921,240

(b) The movement of the book balance of

b) FERASKEAHREHD

inventories is as follows: ran
31 December ~ Current period ~ Current period 30 June
2012 additions reductions 2013
—2-fF “E-=F%
t-AZt-8 M ABRS  AR=tH
Costs - AR —
Properties under
development BB A 20,596,383 2,877,688 (3,621,948 19,852,123
Properties held for sale B E m 2,990,410 3,621,948 (3,268,916) 3,343,442
Land under development  F%H L 355,470 120,274 - 475,744
Merchandise EFEm 4,172 - - 4,172
Low-cost consumables KB F 7R 2,294 - (29) 2,265
Total =H 23,948,729 6,619,910 (6,890,893) 23,677,746
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BHE—F—

5.

Inventories (Continued)

(c) The analysis of provisions of inventories

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BEFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

. 6 0F B HRk R H B )

6. F&(#)
© TFELKEBEESFTOT:

is as follows:
Ruductions
31 December  Current period  Current period through 30 June
2012 additions reductions realisation 2013
—T--F —E-=F
+-F ~A
=t-H REEM RERD THEH =tH
Properties under development FIEA AR 22,215 15,281 (16,306) - 21,190
Properties held for sale HEER 5,274 32,209 - (21,056) 16,427
Total ait 27,489 47,490 (16,300) (21,056) 37,617

(d) The information of provisions of inventories
is as follows:

(d HFEREEEBIET:

Basis for recognising provisions of inventory

SHREEREEFHNKE

Properties held for sale

e 3 7 o
Properties under development

HE:PEN

Differences between net realisable value and the
carrying amount
ABEFERNFAEERRAEENERE

Differences between net realisable value and the
carrying amount

AERFERNRAEXNANROEENER

For the six months ended 30 June 20183,
the properties held for sale with the
carrying amount of RMB3,268,916,000
(for the six months ended 30 June 2012:
RMB1,900,811,000) has been recognised as
cost of sales.

As at 30 June 2013, the borrowing
costs capitalised in the properties
under development amounted to
RMB2,065,530,000(31 December 2012:
RMB1,591,808,000). For the six months
ended 30 June 2013, the capitalisation rate is
8.3% (for the six months ended 30 June 2012:
8.5%).

2T —=FA=FTHIE~
B AEE NEEEREREE
MEEXNANTFEXNRBARE
3,268,916,0007T (B2 =T —=

FRNAZ=ZTHLIE/NEAHR: A
R #1,900,811,0007T ) °

R_E—=FA=Z+B8M%
KAF BEERERER LN
& %8 A R #2,065,530,0007T ( =
T——HF+-_A=+—H: AR
#1,591,808,0007T) ~&EH E - &
—=®FNA=+H8I1/NEA HME
EAREEE83% (HE-_ZT——
FARNAZ=ZFTBIEAERHM:
8.5%) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU A EE (BRI 2 FEMLRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, certain land use rights
with a carrying amount of RMB61,172,000 (31
December 2012: RMB61,172,000) have been
pledged as security for short-term borrowings
of RMB32,751,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB30,600,000) (note 5(16)).

As at 30 June 2013, certain land use rights
with a carrying amount of RMB1,440,350,000
(31 December 2012: RMB2,496,590,000)
have been pledged as security for long-
term borrowings of RMB826,200,000 (31
December 2012: RMB1,276,900,000) (note
5(25)(0).

As at 31 December 2012, real estate
development projects under development with
a carrying amount of RMB349,698,000 are
pledged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB225,000,000. As at 30 June 2013, the
balance of the borrowing is RMB5,000,000
and the mortgage has been settled (note 5(25)

(b))

As at 30 June 2013, long-term borrowings
of RMB1,059,157,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB1,572,460,000) were pledged by the
right to yields on certain land use rights
and real estate development projects under
development with a carrying amount of
RMB1,934,040,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB5,423,999,000) and guaranteed by the
Company (note 5(25)(b)).

(6).

. AU B EEEEMEE 2)

R (&)

R-_ZE—Z=ZFA=1+H &&
EREXRATEEEEEAA
R#¥61,172,000c (=ZZF— =&
+=-A=+—H:61,172,0007T)
Byt AR AR IR 1T BN
RHEERARMS32,751,0007T
T+ R=+—8:
30,600,0007t) (FIzEF(16)) °

R-ZE—=F~A=1+H" =K
SEFAERATERABEES
A R #1,440,350,0007T (=&
——HF+-_A=1+—H:AE
#2 496,590,000 ) K £ b &
BEEKBELETIRESRABR
AR #826,200,000T (= &
——H+ZA=+—H: AR%
1,276,900,0007T) (B3t 7 (25)
(o)) °

R—ZBE——F+-_A=+—8"
AEBAEXATEEREEES
AR #349,698,000 LK E R iEE
MBALIRITRERBERAR
¥225,000,0007T ' ZIEZR =
—=FEXNA=THRBEAARK
5,000,0007T * I & 2 B 7 K 15 1
(P 5E 7 (25)(b) ) °

R-ZE—=F~A=Z+H K«
SERBEXRKATERAEARS
A R #1,934,040,0007T (==
——HF+-_A=1+—H:AE
#5,423,999,0007T ) K £ #b &
AEIAEEHEMAZEEB K
mEEBEAETRESRABR
AR #1,059,157,0007C (= &
——H+ZA=+—H:  AR¥
1,572,460,0007T) (i =% 1 (25)
(o)) °
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BEr—F

5.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZS) 2 R E B ARKTT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(6).

Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, long-term borrowings
of RMB483,500,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB419,900,000) were pledged by certain
land use rights under development with a
carrying amount of RMB1,011,937,000 (31
December 2012: RMB644,049,000) and
guaranteed by the Company (note 5(25)(g)).

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB250,000,000 (31 December 2012: nil)
were pledged by real estate development
projects under development with a carrying
amount of RMB367,888,000 (31 December
2012: nil)(note 5(25)(e)).

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB104,000,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB154,000,000) were pledged by certain
land use rights under development with a
carrying amount of RMB267,288,000 (31
December 2012: RMB267,288,000) and
guaranteed by subsidiaries for the Company
(note5(25)(e)).

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB200,000,000 (31 December 2012: nil)
were pledged by certain land use rights
under development with a carrying amount of
RMB63,230,000 (31 December 2012: nil) and
guaranteed by subsidiaries for subsidiaries
(note5(25)(e)).

. OB RIEE M EE (2)

(6).

R (&)

R—_ZE—Z=ZFA=1+8H 4&&
ERERATPERAEEAAR
#4,011,937,000C (=& — =4
+ = A=+ —H 644,049,000
TO) B b AR MG R ITI
AARR AT AREERIE
K218 ;A KR #483,500,0007T
T+ R=+—8:
419,900,0007t) (M5 F(25)
©)) e

R-ZZE—Z=ZFA=1+H &&
ERERATPERAEEAAR
#367,888,000L (ZF— =4
+-A=+—H E)NEERE
MBHGIRITIAHARRABTA
AIIREERIESRBERARE
250,000,0007c (ZE—=—F+=
AR=+—H:&) (EHa25)
€)) e

R—ZE—=ZF<XA=Z+H &
SEABERATERMEES
AR #267,288,000T (=&
——F&+-_A=+—H:AE
¥267,288,000)H) + b {F A #E K
HHIRITYHFRAABARA
REHERDESEHERARE
104,000,000t (ZFE—=—F +=
A=+—8: AR¥154,000,000)
(FMizEF(25)@€)) °

R-ZZE—=FA=1+H K&
ERZEXNATEEREEEEAA
R #63,230,000 (T — -4
+=—A=+—H8: &)Wt FEH
EEBARRTIRTARAETA
AIIREERIESRBERARE
200,000,0007T (ZZE—=—F+=
A=+—H:&) (EHa25)
€)) e
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=F A= FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB143,000,000 (31 December 2012: nil)
were pledged by certain land use rights under
development and real estate development
projects under development with a carrying
amount of RMB392,904,000 (31 December
2012: nil) and guaranteed by subsidiaries for
subsidiaries (note5(25)(e)).

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB170,000,000 (31 December 2012: nil)
were mortgaged by real estate development
projects under development with a carrying
amount of RMB123,160,000 (31 December
2012: nil), pledged by rights to yields on above
projects and guaranteed by the Company for
subsidiaries (note5(25)(q)).

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB1,550,000,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB1,550,000,000) were pledged by rights
to yields on certain land use rights pursuant to
the agreement of line of credit loan signed in
year 2003 (note5(25)(c)).

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings of
RMB245,000,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB307,500,000) were secured by primary
land development rights and its corresponding
equity and income interest (note5 (25) (f)).

(6).

. OB EREEMEE (2)

R (&)

R-ZZE—Z=ZFA=1+H 4&&
EREXATPEREEBEAAR
#392,904,0007T (— T — — 4
+-—A=+—RH:E#E)NLtiER
ERkEREEEMEBLEITILA
FTRBATARREERIER
HAfE 3k A R #5143,000,0007T (=
E——_F+-_A=+—H8:&\&)
(MizEF(25)(€)) °
R-_E—=F~A=1+H K&
lﬁaﬁ%*WZKEP*ﬁEEﬁF@?%}\
R #123,160,0007T ( =& —
F+-_A=+—8: ﬂ)ﬁ’]%?
EEYMIEAIKE. mmuéz/\ﬁe
EREHR THAQRRATA
12 EREUS Eﬁﬁ{ﬁ /\Eiﬁ
170,000,000t (ZFE——F+ =
A=+—H: &) (ﬁ.&ﬁ(%)

iﬁf:i R EERBREHHRD
DEMEREIRR M S
TET’ER%T# (MsE I (25)(0)) °

R-ZE—=FA=1+H R17T
= 5 A R #245,000,0007T
(ZE—=F+=ZA=+—H: A
R #307,500,0007T ) B 7 £ [ LA
iim—ﬁ&%ﬁgéin%ﬁBTE\ Anug
wmiERER (MERE5)M) °
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BEr—F

5.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZS) 2 R E B ARKTT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. OB RIEE M EE (2)

(Continued)
(7). Other current Assets (7). HAbWRBE E
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
ANA=+tH +ZA=+—H
Prepaid taxes SR 966,986 881,314
Long-term equity investments BEFERIRERE
held for sale 9,921 10,199
Long-term assets of BEFETFRA
subsidiaries’ held for sale(a) REIEE(a) - 960,961
Total A&t 976,907 1,852,474
(@)  The Group entered into an irrevocable @ RZITE—Z—_F XrxX5E%

equity transfer agreement to dispose
its entire equity interests in Guangdong
Project Companies in 2012 (note 9).
As at 31 December 2012 book value
of long-term assets of Guangdong
Project Companies were consistent
with the definition of assets held for
sale, the Group classified it as other
current assets. As at 30 June 2013,
the transaction has been completed
and Guangdong Project Companies are
excluded from the consolidation scope.

EREEERE EES
EMERBBERAFNES
BRE(HEL) RZF
——#+=-_A=+—8"
EREEAAEAREE
ENBRBEEFAREERE
BETE AEBBHEE
AEHEMRBEEI R -R
—E—=FXA=+H"
ZRERZ TR ERIE
BERBTEMHAGIE
E] o
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(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

. OB EREEMEE (2)

(8). Available-for-sale financial assets (8). Wt E R E R
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
2= —E—_F
~AB=+H +ZA=+—H
Available-for-sale equity At EEZET A
instruments (a)
147,906 200,653
Less: Provision for impairment & - Al HE S R E &
B2 - -
Net FRE 147,906 200,653
In which, market value of Hep EEZEHFTE
listed securities 97,906 150,653

(@

Available-for-sale equity instruments

(@ ATt R TH

30 June 31 December
2013 2012
=2 = —E——F
AA=tH +ZA=+—H

Listed equity instruments T S TE
—in Mainland China — B R 97,906 112,583
- in Hong Kong —HEES - 38,070
Unlisted equity instruments 3 FfaM R T A 50,000 50,000
Total CE 147,906 200,653
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BE-F—
5.

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(8).

Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

(@

Available-for-sale equity instruments
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, the carrying
amount of the investment in Yangguang
Xinye listed in mainland China is
RMB97,906,000 (81 December 2012:
RMB112,583,000). Yangguang Xinye
is registered in Beijing, the PRC and
engaged in real estate development,
leasing and advisory services. The
ordinary shares of Yangguang Xinye
held by the Group amounted to
19,310,913 shares, representing 2.6%
of the total ordinary shares issued.

The Group disposed the 28,000,000
ordinary shares in Beijing Jingneng
Clean Energy Co., Ltd (hereinafter
“Beijing Jingneng”) in 2013 and
recognised investment income
amounted to RMB9,865,000.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group holds
0.99% of the total shares of CDB
Siyuan (Beijing) Investment Fund Ltd
(hereinafter “Guokai Siyuan”). Since the
Group doesn’t have significant influence
on Guokai Siyuan, the investment is
recorded as available-for-sale financial
assets.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B E— =N A =1 HiENE AR (BRI 2B E I AANRETFoT)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREEE MG 2

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(9). Long-term equity investments

9.

T W1 1
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F

AA=tE t+-A=t+-H

Joint ventures BEhE
— Unlisted companies (a) —3EETAAF(a) 525,248 288,265
Associates i >
— Unlisted companies (b) —3E LT F](b) 1,462,024 1,411,631
Subtotal /N 1,987,272 1,699,896
Less: Provision for impairment  Jif - R EApG R E
of long-term equity BB 2
investments - -
Net FER 1,987,272 1,699,896

There is no restriction on sale of the long-term
equity investments of the Group and collection
of the investment income.

AEETREEHREREER
Tl 25 ] ) B8 A0 1 o
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5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

9.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(@

. OB RIEE M EE (2)

9.

RBIHES & (2)

Joint ventures (a) HELE
Six months
30 June 2013 ended 30 June 2013
#z2-%-=F
ZE-ZERAZTRE AASHHLEAEAHE
% of Equity Net
Place of Principal Registered interest % of Voting Total Total Net Total (loss)/
registration  activities capital held rights held assets liabilities assets  revenue profit
BRIH ZARLH (58)/
HRE EBRE HREE % % RESE BEEE  FEE ERM AR
Shenyang Jitian Real Estate Shenyang, Property Development USDET 50 50 1,560,754 1,297,424 263,330 1,703 (1,172)
Development Co., Ltd. The PRC and sales 40,000,000
(Shenyang Jitian”)
RHEREEARAA EHm BHERERHEE
(ATEIEEEX])
Capital Jiaming New Town Beijing, Property Development  RMBAR 35 35 1015424 529676 485,748 - (5,756)
Investment Co., Ltd. The PRC and sales 500,000,000
(‘Capital Jiaming’) (iv)
BEIEHIAERARE ERT FHERERHE
ARAR (UTHIEEIEH])
(iv)
Huzhou Capital Rongcheng Real  Huzhou, Property Development  RMBA R 55 55 520,521 466,372 54,149 - (2,109)
Estate Development Co., Ltd. The PRC 100,000,000
(*Huzhou Rongcheng”)(i)
ANEEIEABEERAA AMm BHEREREE
(A8 Mg st ()
Beijng Capital Chaoyang Beijng, Project Investment, RMBAR % 50 50 18,318 8,885 9,433 - 218
Investment Co., Ltd. The PRC Property 10,000,000
(‘Chaoyang Investment’) Development and
sales
BREAFEREERAR ERm A RIERE
(ATE#HBRE]
Tonghua Qiangyu (v) Beijing, Property Development  RMBA K% 40 40 47,695 39,941 7,754 9,934 (2,231)
The PRC and sales 10,000,000
BERT() RET RAERRAMEA
TR
Beiing Wanzhu Real Estate Beijing, Property Development  RMBA R 30 30 1,454,004 1,377,288 76,716 - 1818
Development Co., Ltd. The PRC and sales 85,000,000
(‘Beijing Wanzhu') (i)
TRELREHERE ERT BREREREE
BEREAAF
(ATBOELREED ()
Tianjin Haileybury International ~ Tianjin, Education RVBARH 50 50 10,000 - 10,000 - -
School (‘International School’) ~ The PRC 10,000,000
REEFB RETM it
(AT
Kunshan Chuangbo Fund (i) Kunshan Investment holding RMBAR 16.4 40 2,466,243 1484987 981,256 - (12,114)
and management 993,370,000
BILAIEES (i) A} RERERREER
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(9). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a) Joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

(i)

In February 2012, the Group
established Huzhou Rongcheng
and held 55% equity interests.
However according to the
Articles of Association of Huzhou
Rongcheng, the Group and
other shareholders jointly control
Huzhou Rongcheng, therefore it
has been recognised as a joint
venture.

In June 2012, the Group
acquired 30% equity interests
in Beijing Wanzhu by capital
injection. However according
to the Articles of Association of
Beijing Wanzhu, the Group and
other shareholders jointly control
Beijing Wanzhu, therefore it
has been recognised as a joint
venture.

The Company holds 16.4%
of the subordinated units in
Kunshan Chuangbo Fund,
and 40% voting rights of the
investment strategy making
committee. In the meanwhile,
Kunshan Chuangbo Fund
holds 100% equity interests
in Yongyuan Jintai and Xingtai
Jicheng. According to the
partnership agreements,
the Group jointly control the
investment and operational
strategy of Kunshan Chuangbo
Fund, Yongyuan Jintai and
Xingtai Jicheng with other
shareholders, thus these
three companies have been
recognised as joint ventures.
According to the partnership
agreement of Kunshan
Chuangbo Fund, the fund has a
duration of two years. The fund

. OB EREEMEE (2)

RIS HES & ()

AR (E)

(M

(i)

)

“T-"HF_AK
£ E & RN
R 1A H55%H
P - BRI &R
WRRER  KNEE
B2 E v SR AR 12
i) 048 N BRI O A EE
MR LIRE - BILAS
HERAEDLREZ

ety

—FE-——FXA:
AEEEBEER

51t R &8 HE30% K
o EREIEREE
NAEEE AEEHHE
H b iR 3R £ 7] 4
It R B ER A ERM
R A
HIERAREDLERZ

%0
Ean

RXARFEEEILE
BEE16.4%H X
TR TZEEL
BEE S RERK
B €40%H KRR
#EeRILBIBESR
BXme T MhEE
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BeEHE ~5E
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BE—F—

5.

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

INTERIM REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(9). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(a) Joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

derives its revenue from the profit
of the real estate development
projects held by Yongyuan Jintai
and Xingtai Jicheng, and the
proceeds of disposal of equity
interests in Yongyuan Jintai
and Xingtai Jicheng. At the
end of the first year after the
establishment of the fund and
at the settlement in the second
year, the distribution order is
as follows: in the first year,
Kunshan Chuangbo Fund should
pre-distribute 10% expected
earnings to senior limited
partners; in the second year,
Kunshan Chuangbo Fund should
firstly distribute initial investment
to senior limited partners before
distributing 10% expected
earnings, after which distribute
initial investment to subordinated
limited partners and general
partners before distributing
10% annual expected earnings;
finally, if Kunshan Chuangbo
Fund has distributable cash
receipts after above distribution,
the fund should distribute 20%
of the cash receipts to general
partners and 80% of which
to senior limited partners and
subordinated limited partners,
in the ratio of 30% and 70%
respectively.

. & OF B IRk R H Pk o2)

RIS HES & ()
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Wzsosd —F Bl
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ERBEREBRAD
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BE T —=F N A=+ HIF AR (BERZ) 2588 A RS For)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREHEEMGE 2

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(9). Long-term equity investments (Continued) 9). RBIBRERE &)
(a)  Joint ventures (Continued) (a) HERE(E)
(v)  In May 2013, the Group entered vy —ZE—=F1A"
into an agreement with other Zli’i E £ H 8l 5= 8
shareholders of Capital Jiaming H ﬁﬂ IR R K IE A
to increase the capital by e AEEHE

RMB75,000,000. Following the
capital increase, the registered
capital of Capital Jiaming
increased to RMB500,000,000
and the Group holds 35% equity
interest. However according to
the Articles of Association, the
Group and other shareholders
share the control over Capital
Jiaming, therefore it has been
recognised as a joint venture.

(V) The Company holds 40% equity
interests in Tonghua Qiangyu.
According to the Articles of

@Jﬁﬁ%i‘ﬁ/\ﬁﬂﬁ
75,000,0007T » 1
EREK%E BE =
M EARE NE
A R #500,000,000
L AKBEREEE
BIZ=8$635% /%1 - 1B
BIEE A =% AR
R AEEHEEM
B% R R 2 5l & Al
EHRMAEEMEE
SRR ARG EADE
REELEZE -

RRRFEHBER
FA0%HE - BRE
NEIER > NAEH

Association of Tonghua Qiangyu, H Ath % 3R 2k R 4 &
the Company and other BERTFTNEER

shareholders share the control
over Tonghua Qiangyu, therefore
it is recognised as a joint venture.

1R R
HIERS B R

iﬂﬂ*

Investments in joint ventures are as HedbERES RN
follows: T

Net profit

adjusted

Additional  according to
31 December  investment the equity Reduction 30 June
2012 costs method By disposal 2013

—E—ZF BERE
T=A HEM —E-=f
=t+-8 RETIE FEE  KERY ARA=TH
Shenyang Jitian BHEX 130,499 - (586) - 129,913
Capital Jiaming R 95,752 75,000 (2,015) - 168,737
Huzhou Rongcheng NS 30,942 - (1,160) - 29,782
Tonghua Qiangyu BERTF 3,994 - (893) - 3,101
Chaoyang Investment HHRE 4,608 - 109 - 4,717
Beiiing Wanzhu piAY- 3 22,470 - 545 - 23,015
International School BER - 5,000 - - 5,000
Kunshan Chuangbo Fund RILEIEES - 162,970 (1,987) - 160,983
Total At 288,265 242,970 (5,987) - 525,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(9). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b)

9.

RUIRRERE (&)

. OB RIEE MR (2)

Associates (b) R
Six months
30 June 2013 ended 30 June 2013
HE-®-=F
ZE-ZEXAZTRE RAZTALAEAHE
% of Equity Net
Place of Principal Registered interest % of Voting Total Total Net Total (loss)/
registration activities capital held rights held assets liabilities assets revenue profit
BRIEH RAELH (E8)/
Bidis] £BIE ERER % % EERE 8f4E FEE  ERHA AE
Beijing GoldenNet Property Investment Beijing, Property Sales RVMBA R 14 14 17,056 501 16,555 - (218
Consultant Co., Ltd. (‘GoldenNet”) i) The PRC Agency 5,000,000
$REERERAR (M RD DEHERE
&0
Beijing Yang Guang Yuan Beijing, Property RVMBARH 35 3 1,169,828 738436 431392 24,264 5,372
Business Investment Co., Ltd. (*Yang  The PRC Development 72,190,000
Guang Yuan")
ERBRREHEREBRAR SR BHERE
(ATBBrE])
Shenyang Capital Xinz Real Shenyang, Property USDETT 30 30 1,911,254 1,221,757 689,497 24,317 (2,617)
Estate Development Co., Ltd. The PRC Developmentand 92,500,000
(“Shenyang Xinzl") sales
BREENEERARDA Eon EHERERHEE
(ATEIBBHE])
Tianjin Capital Xinging Real Tianjin, Property USDETT 40 40 1,171,651 532,403 639,248 331,503 (12,369)
Estate Development Co., Ltd. The PRC Developmentand 95,000,000
(‘Tianjin Xinging’) sales
REBENEEEARAA REM FHEREREE
(WTRIX2HE])
Tianjin Xinming Tianjin, Property USDETE 4 40 1000620 326711 673909 144,001 (7,336)
The PRC Development and 95,000,000
sales
RS pN:4i) BHEREREE
Beijing Financial Street Beijing, Hotel Operation and USDET 60 33 840,276 %1712 (121,430 82,412 (22,728)
International Hotel Co., Ltd. The PRC Management 5,640,000
(‘Financial Strest") {i)
IReREAREEE SR BEGZEER
(ATRI2RE)
Xi'an Xinkai Xi'an, Property USDET 40 40 3,070,987 1,711,720 1,359,267 942,956 154,470
The PRC Development and 165,000,000
sales
AL g FHERZREE
Beijing Outlets Chuangxin Beijing, Business and RVMBA R 38 38 2,100 557 1,543 - (13)
Business Management Co., Ltd. The PRC Property 1,000,000
(“Outlets Chuangxin”) Management
FRRRAFHEERERAT  ERW PEERRNEER
(A TR REI])
Capital Qinglv Culture and Kunshan, Tourism project RVMBAR % 49 49 44,625 402 44,123 - (1,377)
Tourism Co., Ltd. The PRC development 100,000,000

(“Capital Qinglv Culture”)
ERAENLEE (RIL)ERRA  BUW
(ATBIEaIERTL))

KEEERE
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. AU B EEREEMEE 2)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

9.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b)  Associates (Continued)

9.

RIS & ()

(b) BEELR(E)

(i) The Group has significant (i) AARIHEEEH
influence on the board of the BERFE MES
directors, which is responsible CEBERTZLA A
for determining the financial BEEBBEFH
policies in the ordinary course of BBURSE kA
business, therefore this company Al D A E b
is classified as an associate. o

(i)  According to the Articles of (ii) RIBER  AAFE
Association, the Group holds ERkEERFEESR
59.5% equity interests in B0 J559.5%H) A%
Financial Street both directly and ¥ ZE34%H S
in-directly and enjoys 34% profit E-EESERhD
of Financial Street. The Group HEL MEEe8
has few seats in the board of BEAEZARAS
directors, which is responsible BRI
for the financial decision in the SRIE - B RZ A BIR
ordinary course of business, DEAMEDRE-
and therefore this company is
classified as an associate.

Investments in associates are as HEELERLRES RN

follows: I

Net profit

adjusted

according to
31 December  Additional the equity Cash  Reduction 30 June
2012 investment method dividends By disposal 2013

“T--F

+ZA g —E-=%
=t+-A R B BeRY  REWNY AA=TH

GoldenNet SR 6,824 - (31) - - 6,793

Yang Guang Yuan b 148,335 - 1,880 - - 150,215

Shenyang Xinzi & 205,789 - (2,403 - - 203,386

Tianjin Xinging N: 259,147 - (4,778) - - 254,369

Tenjin Xinming R 260,014 S Rl - - 266404

Financial Street (i SREBE(i) - - - - - -

Xi'an Xinkai ALK 501,915 - 59,015 - - 560,930

Outlets Chuangxin RRE 607 - () - - 602

Capital Qinglv Culture B4 20,000 - (675) - - 19,325

Tota A% 1,411,631 - 50493 - o 1462024

119



120

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sk 25 e o B ik
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BHE—F—

5.

=ZFNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FEBARETT)

INTERIM REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(9). Long-term equity investments (Continueqd)

(b) Associates (Continueq)

(i)

The net assets of Financial Street
are negative due to continuous
losses in the past years. As
the Group does not have the
obligation to bear the additional
losses beyond the share that the
Group should have assumed,
the Group recognise the carrying
value of the long-term equity
investment at zero other than
negative. For the six months
ended 30 June 2013, the un-
recognised investment loss
amounted to RMB7,728,000 (for
the six months ended 30 June
2012: RMB5,097,000). As at
30 June 2013, the accumulated
investment losses that are
not recognised amounted to
RMB28,832,000(31 December
2012: RMB21,104,000).

(10). Investment Properties

. & 0F B Rk R H B )

RIS & (&)

Wik ()

iy S@MEBEREE
EEENFEESL
B AEEHED
BB REBIMNEKX
=5 A EER
HEt A sEERE
N &= B A E N5
W EBRHRK
ERENERER
WML BT -HE—
T—=FNA=1
B IS @ A BRI &
BRHOKREERKXE
AE%?,?%,OOO
F=XNA=+8 1t
NEAHR: AR
#5,097,0007T)
N_—_E—=%FNH
=tH Rt RH®E
R EBKEE
AR #2028 832,000
—F—_Ft=
A=+—B:AR%
21,104,0007T) °

4l

7,3*

dl
|
e

(10). & 1 e

30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E2—= —E-—F
~NB=+H +Z-A=+—H
Investment properties KRAKAGTENREMN
measured at cost (a) 5 HEE (a) 659,295 835,408
Investment properties KRAARBEEXNERE
subsequently measured FTEMRE MR E D)
at fair value model (b) 5,515,834 4,838,834
Less: Provision for impairment — Jal - & & 4 B 3 & il (&
loss of investment i
properties - -
Total A&t 6,175,129 5,674,242
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(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEFEEEMGE 2)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(10). Investment Properties (Continued) (10). & HEFEHE £Z)
(a) Investment properties measured at cost (a) R A Gt 0 3% PR B
Hh
Land use
Buildings Rights Total
EEREEY T AE a5t
Cost RE
31 December 2012 —T-—-F
+=ZA=+—8 522,064 345,507 867,571
Additions in current period AHBE 102,569 - 192,569
Transfer to fair value model in AEBARREE
current period ) H45() (307,333) (57,711) (365,044)
30 June 2013 —E-=F
~NA=t+H 407,300 287,796 695,096
Accumulated Depreciation and ~ Eif47E - &
Amortisation
31 December 2012 —E--F
+-A=+-H - (32,163) (32,163)
Depreciation and Amortisation AN izt 12
charged - (4,319) (4,319)
Transfer to fair value model in ~ AHIEA A A EE
current period (i) BREE() - 681 681
30 June 2013 ZE-=F%
~NAZ=TH - (35,801) (35,801)
Provision for impairment BB
31 December 2012 — -
+=-A=+—-H” - - -
Increase in current period RERE AN - - -
Decrease in current period vl e - - -
30 June 2013 —T-=F%
~NAZTH - - -
Net book value FE
30 June 2013 —Z—=
~NA=TH 407,300 251,995 659,295
31 December 2012 —T-—F
+-A=+—H 522,064 313,344 835,408
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BHE—F—

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Investment Properties (Continued)

(a) Investment properties measured at cost

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

(Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, some of the
investment properties are still under
construction, and the Group has
capitalised the amortisation of the
land use rights at the amount of
RMB9,901,000 (31 December 2012:

RMB9,179,000).

. & OF B IRk R H Pk o2)

(10). & HEEHE (£Z)

(a)

PR R RA G B 3 T B
Wi (&)

RZE—=FA=1
A AEEHFKREES
WEMEREY AEE
BREZEEEFBHERN
THIFRAEEHESTEAR
#9,901,0007T T A E AL
(Z2——F+=-—A=+—
H: AR®9,179,000
JL) °

(b)  Investment properties subsequently b)) EHAREMEEETR
measured using the fair value model HE R R A B b
Buildings and
Land use right
T fERER
EERREY
Cost BN
31 December 2012 —E-_F+ZA=+—H 2,718,489
Transfer from investment properties X ARzt E IR E M
measured at cost (i) B E® A () 364,363
Additions in current period 7K HR 38 11 118,518
Disposals in current period NERR D -

30 June 2013 —E-—=FA=+H 3,201,370
Changes in fair value ARBEE

31 December 2012 - = _E‘I— A=+—H 2,120,345

Gains from changes in fair value EJMETE fEpE = 194,119

Decrease in current period A HR R A -

30 June 2013 —E-=FA=+H 2,314,464
Carrying Amount FREEE

30 June 2013 —E-=FXA=+H 5,515,834

31 December 2012 —T——9+=-ZA=+—H 4,838,834
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BE—F—=FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREHEEMGE 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(10). & HEREHE £Z)

(10). Investment Properties (Continued)

(b)

Investment properties subsequently
measured using the fair value model
(Continued)

(i) Part of the investment properties
under construction of the Group
have been transferred to fair
value model since they reached
the expected conditions for use.

As at 30 June 2013, certain
land use rights under investment
properties with carrying amount of
RMB1,514,939,000 (31 December
2012: RMB1,749,545,000) have been
pledged as security for long-term
borrowings of RMB1,177,500,000 (31
December 2012: RMB1,680,000,000)
(note 5(25)(b)).

As at 30 June 2013, certain land use
rights and buildings under investment
properties with carrying amount of
RMB708,214,000 (31 December
2012: nil) have been pledged as
security for long-term borrowings of
RMB200,000,000 (31 December 2012:
nil)(note 5(25)(e)).

(b)

PR 2 fo A BE AT 1R
BT BB T B A
(%)

(i) AEBIBHERE
EMHEEHER-ZT
—=FNAERA

AR AR B 8
B/ EERAG
Er

9;

—E—=ZFEXA=F
B AEEKREMEHE
FEEEEEAARK
1,514,939,0007t (==
——F+-_HA=+—H:
A R #1,749,545,0007T )
B Mo {5 MK IR 4R iR
TE 13 E%F*AE%
1,177,500,0007C (==
——F+-_HA=+—H:
A K #1,680,000,0007T )
(Pt 5E 7 (25)(b) ) °

R-_EBE—=ZFE A=+
H A"EEKREHEF i
EFEREEERAR
#708,214,0007T (= &
——F+-_HA=+—H:
EINTHERAEREE
BREYEBGLERIT LA
%”T%%Qﬂhfﬁ
R BEBERHBERAREK
200,000,0007T (=& — =
F+-_A=+—H &)
(MizEF(25)@€)) °

123



124

BEIJING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Sk 25 e o B ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-F—
5.

=ZFNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FEBARETT)

INTERIM REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. & 0F B Rk R H B )

(Continued)
(11). Fixed Assets an). s e
Motor Office
Buildings Vehicles  Equipment Total
EEBR
BEY BEHIA BORE it
Cost [RE
31 December 2012 ZE-CZHETZA=T—H 674,266 53,155 35,697 763,118
Additions ARHESE - 3,246 2,698 5,944
Disposals KER D - (598) (426) (1,024)
Reduction from disposal of AHREFRARD
subsidiaries - 5) (2,928) (2,933)
30 June 2013 —#¥XA=TH 674,266 55,798 35,041 765,105
Accumulated Depreciation 2itinE
31 December 2012 —E—-F+-A=1—H (234,336) (31,173) (30,953) (296,462)
Depreciation charged AHEHR (10,869) (3,770) (2,536) (17,175)
Disposal AERD - 55 380 435
Reduction from disposal of ABMAREFLARD
subsidiaries - - 1 1
30 June 2013 “E-Z#XA=1+H (245,205) (34,888) (33,108) (313,201)
Provision for impairment REEE
31 December 2012 —E--F+-B=+—H
Charges EIE - - - -
30 June 2013 ZE-ZFRAZTH - - - -
Net Book Value FE
30 June 2013 2=/ A=TH 429,061 20,910 1,933 451,904
31 December 2012 ——f#+ZR=+—H 439,930 21,982 4,744 466,656
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SO BEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(11). Fixed Assets (Continued) an). BE&E (&)

As at 30 June 2013, certain buildings with a RZE—=F"A=+H8 %E

net book value of RMB366,448,000 (original
cost of RMB601,431,000) (31 December
2012: net book value of RMB379,269,000
(original cost of RMB601,431,000)) have been
pledged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB330,027,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB362,877,000) (note 5(25)(b)).

#4) B AN R #366,448,0007T (&
B A5 AR ®601,431,0007T) B9
EEREEY (ZE——F+=
A=Z+—H: FEHAARK
379,269,000t (R E A& AR
601,431,0007) )tE A AR
330,027, OOOTEE’JEHH{ ?ﬂ (=
T —Et-A=t—B:AR
#362,877,0007t) (Y& 7 (25)
(b ))E’J}ﬁ#ﬁ%

For the six months ended 30 June 20183, Eﬁzi_; =FXNA=+HIE
depreciation expense charged in cost of 7~ 18 A B R A A % ERAR
sales amounted to RMB10,869,000 and EEEBRANTEERS A
in administrative expenses amounted to /\Eﬁ%10,869,000ﬁ fD}\E?*%Z

RMB2,938,000 (for the six months ended
30 June 2012: RMB12,919,000 and
RMB7,712,000).

é

2,938,000 (B = — ZER
HE+EI¢/‘*\1H§HF’§:/\E¢%¥
12,919,0007CF1 A R #7,712,000
JT) °

(12). Intangible Assets (12). & e

Original 31 December 30 June  Accumulative

cost 2012 Increase  Amortisation  Transfer out 2013  amortisation

—g--F —E-=f§

Rme® +-A=t-8 R rEEY rH8Y  AA=tR  RiBEE

Land use rights T RE 52,283 41,651 - (529) - 41,128 (11,155)

Less: provision for impairment B -BVEEREER - - - - - - -

Total & 52,283 41,651 - (523) - 41,128 (11,158)

For the six months ended 30 June 2013, the BHE_T—=F<A=+HILRN

amortisation of intangible assets amounted
to RMB523,000(for the six months ended
30 June 2012: RMB523,000); has been
recognised in profit and loss for the current

BAME BERAENBRESE
R AR¥523,000T (HZE-F
——EXNA=THXEANRH:
AR #523,0000T) - 2# 5t A E

period. HRE 25 o
As at 30 June 2013, land use rights with a RZE—Z=ZF~A=Z+H ' FE

carrying amount of RMB41,128,000 (original
cost of RMB52,283,000) (31 December
2012: net book value of RMB41,651,000
(original cost of RMB52,283,000)) have been
pledged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB330,027,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB362,877,000) (note 5(25)(b)).

B AR #41,128,0007T (RE A
AR50 283 0007 ) &Y £ #{F
AE(ZE——F+=-_A=+—
H:FEAARK41,651,0007C
(R{E A AR#52 283,000t ) {E
A AR #330,027,000 T KHIfE &
(ZBE——F+=-_A=+—H8H:
AR #362,877,0007t) (MizE#
(25)(b) ) HY ) o
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

Br—F

5.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFIZE) 2 R E B ARKTT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(13).

. OB RIEE MR (2)

(12). Intangible Assets (Continued) 12). EBEEE (&)
The land use rights by locations and the T AR AT R R FR S
approved land use periods are analysed as HiBUNNE
follows:
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
AB=tH +=-A=+-—8H
In Mainland China - i B HR B 1A 3
10 to 50 years 10— 504 41,128 41,651
Long-term receivables (13). 1= 1 Wk
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—_=E—= —E——F
AB=+H +ZA=+—H
Receivables due from associates J& U B & A T 1% 5 554,214 522,293
Advances to primary land JFE U — 4% -t A B A 3R ()
development (i) 768,512 768,512
Subtotal /INEE 1,322,726 1,290,805
Less: Long-term receivables W —FREEMREE
due within one year (i) WK (i) (768,512) -
Total &5t 554,214 1,290,805
0] Capital Tianshun, a subsidiary of the () AEBZ2E2ETARIHAE

Group, entered into an entrustment
agreement with Shunyi Branch of Land
Consolidation and Reserve Center of
Beijing City to engage in primary land
development at Bangiao Country,
Shunyi District in 2011. According
to the agreement, the Group would
collect the receivables amounted
to RMB768,512,000 in 2014 and
recognised the corresponding amount
as a long-term receivable as at 31
December 2012. As at 30 June 2013,
the receivable is expected to be
collected in one year and reclassified to
current portion of non-current assets.

RIE-—T——FBEIRH
THEBEFZERLIERE
DHRLREEBEL S Y
JIE 2 8 A 55 A =t 1T —
A TIE-REHZES
Bz N_E—-_F
+—_A=+—8 A&H
a5t AR #768,512,0007T
BR—_ZE—mHERRE A
WERPERKRZE -R
—E—=FXA=1+H"
ZFRETERT — F A AU
O AHEHSEE—FR
B ERBEEZE -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=F N A =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMLRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREHEEMGE 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(14). Other non-current assets (14). Hfib I IR B & =
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
=2 = —E—_F
AA=tH +ZA=+—H
Prepaid investment BRI E R - 61,400
As at 31 December 2012, the payments were ZE——F+ZA=+—H "%
prepaid by the Company as a limited partner HERARRERBREREA
to acquire the subordinated units in Kunshan SHEILBIBESHRBMEE-
Chuangbo Fund. In 2013, Kunshan Chuangbo 2= -BLUAEEeES
Fund was fully raised and went into operation, TEVEXNEL HAEALHEE A
thus the fund has been reclassified to long- REREREZE (MR (9)(a)
term equity investment (note 5 (9) (a) (iii)). (i) ) °
(15). Provisions for impairment of assets (15). ¥ 7E ok 1 e A
Reductions
pN-ih
31 December Through Through 30 June
2012 Additions reversal realization 2013
—E-C&
+=A —B-ZF
=t+-AH KEEM HE ¥ KA=TH
Provisions for bad debts BHREE
including: Hep:
accounts receivable R TR IR EE 7,000 - - - 7,000
other receivables BN ERERE 46,638 - - - 46,638
Provisions for decline in value of inventories REREER 27,489 31,184 - (21,056) 37,617
Total G 81,127 31,184 - (21,056) 91,255
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEr—F

5.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZ) 2 BB ARKTT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(16). Short-term borrowings

. OB RIEE MR (2)

(16). %8 115 3%

30 June 31 December

Currency 2013 2012

—EFT——

—_E—= +—H

wiE ANA=+H =+—H

Trust loans ErEER RMBA K # - 500,000
Bank loans RITRER RMBA R # 32,751 40,600
Total &5 32,751 540,600

As at 30 June 2013, short-term borrowings
of RMB32,751,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB30,600,000) are secured by land use
rights under development costs of the
subsidiaries (note 5(6)).

For the six months ended 30 June 2013, the
weighted average interest rate of short-term
loan is 12.9%. (for the six months ended 30
June 2012: 11.7 %).

R—ZE—=F~A=+8"
WEE S A RE32,751,0007C
(ZF——Ft+-_A=+—8:
30,600,0007C) B AR A 2 F
AP B AN R R S 5 B REE
AIEFEA (HER@B)) °

R—ZEBE—=Z=F~A=+H"
HHEZROMEEHERNN XA
1290% (ZE——F,"A=1+8H":
11.7%) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SO BEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(17). Accounts payable (17). HEA MRk
The aging analysis of accounts payable is as FETBR FUR E ABR B B BR iR
follows: T
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E—= —EFE—F
ANA=1+H +_H_+ 5|
Within 1 year —F AR 3,187,680 3,009,670
Over 1 year —F L E 468,602 616,237
Total &5t 3,656,282 3,625,907
(18). Advances from customers (18). TE YK IH
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E-=F - —i
~A=t+H +TZRA=1-—
Advances from sales of properties 51 %18 B 78 U 5%
under development 6,935,437 7,713,750
Hotel deposits HIER S 16,927 15,466
Total A&t 6,952,364 7,729,216
Advances from customers are amounts Fﬁ?ﬁflﬁﬁi‘éﬂﬁl RIBEE BAEE
received from customers for properties sold, PEMWERZEHEBENERE
but the risks and rewards of the properties %EAI@ BRARXNER R

have not been transferred to the customers. LH&U\
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BE-F—
5.

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. & OF B IRk R H Pk o2)

(Continued)
(19). Employee benefits payable (19). HE o+ W% T 5% BH
Current Current
31 December period period 30 June
2012 additions reductions 2013
ot St 3 —E-=F%
+ZA=1-H REEM KRS ~B=tH
Wages and salaries, bonuses, T2 %% 2BLAIEEL
allowances and subsidies 114,061 74,262 (161,523) 26,800
Staff welfare BIENE 572 1,124 (1,063) 633
Social security contributions 4 &R%BE 2,934 15,053 (16,127) 1,860
Including: Medical insurance ~ E# : EBERRKRE
premiums 863 4,315 (4,553) 625
Basic pensions HEREES 1,422 8,821 9,272) 971
Annuty Fo4B 449 683 (1,013 119
Unemployment KERRE
insurance 62 568 (590) 40
Work injury insurance IHREE 61 282 (312) 31
Maternity insurance EERBE 77 384 (387) 74
Housing funds FEAES 579 5,167 (5,573) 173
Labour union funds and IeRENRIHNELE
employee education funds 7,132 1,512 (1,866) 6,778
Director's emoluments EEHe 19,206 3,160 (405) 21,961
Other =) 736 422 (395) 763
Total A3t 145,220 100,700 (186,952) 58,968
(20). Taxes payable (20). ER B &
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—_=E—= —E——F
AA=+H +Z-A=+—H
Enterprise income tax payable JEREFTET 428,809 386,661
Land appreciation tax payable JERZ L MR E TS 1,380,323 1,444,328
Business tax payable JERREHEM 106,591 139,947
Others Hi 24,109 19,259
Total CE 1,939,832 1,990,195
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(21). Dividends payable (21). BEAT A
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
2= —E——F
AB=+A t-A=f-8
Reco Ziyang Pte Ltd. N LG LARE
(“Reco Ziyang”) BRAA (AT
¥R EE5 1) 262,833 262,833
Sunshine Comprehensive R = 25,132 17,545
Capital Group ERES 164,847 115,082
Beijing Zhongnan Xingye R mEERE
Investment Co., Ltd. BRA A 19,700 35,435
Capital Technology B IR 27,521 -
Capital Construction HAIER 19,000 -
Distribution of Capital T %5 M 3B A PR
securities (note 5(32)) (Bt sEF(32)) 103,494 -
Total A&t 622,527 430,895

131



132

BEIJING

CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 785 i B ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEr—F

5.

—=FNA=FHIEMEAABE (B FFIZE) 2 R E B ARKTT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . S0P EFEIEHE MG 2)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(22). Other payables (22). Hfibs & £} 5%
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
2= —E—_F
~AB=+H +ZA=+—H
Payables to associates JE T B & R R R K 1,136,477 913,477
Payables to joint ventures JERT & & RAIERK 77,000 20,000
Collection of deeds and R REEES
maintenance funds on behalf of
government 136,879 149,405
Guarantee for tendering KIZRES 34,132 36,094
Consideration payable for W B F N B A
acquiring equity interests IR RS R K
in subsidiaries - 53,165
Consideration payable for JET BT R
purchase shares in subsidiaries PR e B 5 K
from non-controlling interests
shareholders - 36,267
Loans due to non-controlling FRBDHBERE K (a)
interests shareholders of
subsidiaries (a) 264,564 265,857
Deposits from customers BRI 64,918 121,022
Accounts payables for daily ERTABBEETRK
operations 202,851 274,340
Advance for disposal equity T8 Uy {5 e B 5 5K ()
interest (b) 20,000 80,444
Others EHA4p 165,599 976,342
Total A&t 2,102,420 2,926,413
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(22). Other payables (Continueq) (22). Hfib JE £+ 3% (&)

(a)

Principal of loans borrowed from
non-controlling interest shareholders
of subsidiaries are as follows: loan
provided by Reco Ziyang to Chengdu
Xinzi amounted to RMB56,714,000,
which is interest free, has no fixed
maturity date and is unsecured and
unguaranteed; loan provided by
Beijing Huitian Weiye Investment
Co. Ltd (hereinafter “Beijing Huitian
Weiye”) to Shangbodi amounted to
RMB75,656,000 with interest rate of
10% higher than the interest rate of
bank borrowings of the same period,
no fixed maturity date and unsecured
and unguaranteed; loan provided by
Richly Filed China Development Limited
to Qinhuangdao Property Development
Co., Ltd amounted to RMB68,343,000,
with the interest rate of 20%, has no
fixed maturity date and is unsecured
and unguaranteed; loan provided
by Richly Filed China Development
Limited to King future Holdings Limited
(hereinafter “King Futures”) amounted
to RMB24,874,000, which is interest
free, has no fixed maturity date and
is unsecured and unguaranteed;
loan provided by China Infrastructure
Group Limited to Most Well Limited
(hereinafter “Most Well”) amounted
to RMB38,977,000, which is interest
free, has no fixed maturity date and is
unsecured and unguaranteed.

The payables include the advances
of the disposal of 10% in Hainan
Dalecheng Real Estate Development
Holding Ltd. (hereinafter “Dalecheng”)’s
equity interests, amounted to
RMB20,000,000.

(a)

w8 i m) b R KB ¥
REEBBARAR (KT
WMt rREXEE])E
K FRAFEESEHER
WHFPEEREABRARD A
(LTHIHEFEH])E
X KT AR King Future
Holdings Limited (A T8
[King Future | ) [A] #8 B &
B & 7K /27 Most Well
Limited ( JA T~ # [ Most
Well )R BEIEEEEH
PR A BIE R o H A - BCEBET
BRI MERGERETS
AR #56,714,0007¢ © 1
TR CEETENREAR-
EIEREGR: HiEHRA
IREXEEEBERETEA
R #75,656,0007C * ] &
RRABRAREBITAMY
FHAE KA E F)F10% -
& B HIR - EER
EER FE2EEEXEMR
WHFPEEREAE AR
¥68,343,0007C " Fl R &
20% ' & B EE AR - &
EREL#H  King Future
MHREBEPEEREAEAR
#5524 874,0007T ° TET &
mE B EER
G Most Well[A) 1 &
EEEEARAREBRA
& A R #38,977,0007T
TEHE - £ E B B AR
mERELDH

ZAREA_E——_FRE
RN RBIERER
AR (AT /8m K%
3k 1) 109 A% 1 78 Uk B9 AR 4
#2% 3 A R #20,000,000
5T o
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BE T —=FNA=THUNEAARE (BFFEH) 2 BELBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(23). Current portion of non-current liabilities

. OB RIEE MR (2)

(23). — 4 1A 2191 B4 Ik i B £ 15

30 June 31 December
Currency 2013 2012
—E—_fF
-—B_= +=-A
wE ANAZ=TH =+—H
Long-term borrowings due —F A E| Hi8) & H{E K (a)
within one vear(a) RMB AR 5,467,800 2,940,840
USD =T 289,546 -
Corporate bonds due within — 4 /3 2 # ) F& (< & % (b)
one year(b) RMB AR 1,147,930 -
Total aat 6,905,276 2,940,840
(@)  Long-term borrowings due within one @ AEE-—FAIHHKREHA
year of the Group is disclosed in note BR2RMWER@S) -
5(25).
(o)  Corporate bonds due within one year is b)) AEE-—FRHNINHOEN

disclosed in note 5 (26)(b).

EH2 R MR (26)Db)

(24). Other current liabilities

(24). H b 7% B £1 1%

30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
AA=tH +ZA=+—H
Special fund due to FETBUN E 18

governments(a) THEL@) 574,722 574,722

Held-for-sale subsidiaries’ BERETFAAERR
non-current liabilities(b) EMBEE(D) - 793,946
Total a&t 574,722 1,368,668
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(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (B FEEI) 2 FEMLRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(24). HAbwmBh A8 (&)

(24). Other current liabilities (Continued)

(a)

The amounts are special fund from local
government received by subsidiaries.
The further arrangement of the fund
is to be clarified by formal documents
from government.

The Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement to dispose its entire
equity interests in the Guangdong
Project Companies (note 9) in 2012.
The non-current liabilities of the
Guangdong Project Companies are in
compliance with the definition of held-
for-sale liabilities, such balance was
classified as other current liabilities. As
at 30 June 2013, the transfer has been
completed, and the Guangdong Project
Companies are excluded from the
consolidation scope.

(a)

ZARER/TF A E TS
BRBENHBERIFE
E ZECRAZRRERA
B IE F S T LA B B o

R-T——_F KEER
ERRER R SRR
BEMERIEBEREAFNEH
P (HEEN) ERIEA
BRRREIERESBEN
BREANARAFEARE
EE ASBBEERHE
RSB EEINR-R_-F
—=fXA=+H ZK
BXZTEK BEREBEBR
AT BMARHEE-
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
—=FNA=FHUNEAAEE (BRI 2 BBE M BARETFT)

BEr—F

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(25). Long-term borrowings

. OB RIEE M EE (2)

(25). EWIfE %
30 June 31 December

Currency 2013 2012
T4
—E-=F +=H
wE A~HA=tH =+—H
Credit loans ERER RMB AR - 304,000
Secured loans: BRER A
— Guaranteed (a) —1R7&(a) RMB A R 2,386,000 2,595,000
USDZE T 108,282 109,996
_ Mortgaged (b) — 34 (b) RMB AR 3,217,857 4,934,360
USDZETT 180,027 182,877
— Pledged (c) —E#(c) RMB A R#& 1,550,000 1,550,000
— Trust (d) —1{=¥E(d) RMB A R#& 3,295,600 2,244,600
- Guaranteed, —fRFE - ()
mortgaged (e) RMB AR ¥ 1,380,500 573,900
- Guaranteed, —{REEHM
pledged (f) RMB A R#& 1,250,000 1,415,000
USDZEJT 262,571 -
- Guaranteed,pledged, — —{R#& * #H# -
mortgage (g) EH#(g) RMB A R#& 170,000 -
Subtotal /INEE 13,800,837 13,909,733
Less: Long-term W — FREIH
borrowings due KHEIER
within one year: Hep: - (3,000)
Credit loans ZHRER
Secured loans: BRER HF
— Guaranteed (a) —1R7&a) RMB A R (2,226,000) (199,000)
USDZ 7T (108,282) -
— Mortgaged (b) — 45 (o) RMB A R (258,200) (953,240)
USDZE T (180,027) -
~ Pledged (c) — (o) RMB AR  (1,550,000) (600,000)
_ Trust (d) —{ZH(d) RMB A R (699,600) (751,600)
— Guaranteed, —RE K (e
mortgaged (e) RMB A R (254,000) (274,000)
- Guaranteed, —{RFE ()
pledged () RMB A R (400,000) (160,000)
USDZ T (1,237) -
- Guaranteed,pledged,  —#R:E - 3 G (g)
mortgaged (g) RMB AR (80,000) -
Subtotal INEE (5,757,346)  (2,940,840)
Net long-term HHE
borrowings 8,043,491 10,968,893
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(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(25). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, long-term borrowings
include:

(a)

Guaranteed loans

As at 30 June 2013, RMB and USD
guaranteed loans are amounted to
RMB2,494,282,000 (31 December
2012: 2,704,996,000), in which,
RMB2,216,282,000 are guaranteed
by the Company for subsidiaries.
Interests are payable every 3 months
and the principal is due for repayment
by installment before April 2014;
RMB278,000,000 are guaranteed by
third parties for subsidiaries. Interests
are payable every 3 months and
the principal is due for repayment
by installment before December
2014. An amount of RMB2,000,000
should be repaid before 27 October
2013; RMB108,282,000 should
be repaid before 6 February
2014; RMB48,000,000 should
be repaid before 31 March 2014;
RMB2,106,000,000 should be repaid
before 27 April 2014; RMB70,000,000
should be repaid before 30 June 2014,
such amount was classified as current
liability.

. OB EREEMEE (2)

(25). R (&)

RZZE-—=FXA=+HB KH
BB :
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2,494,282,0007T (=&
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AR #¥2 704,996,000
go) EA - ARBERMETT
e ARE?2 216,282,000
TTEBARA AT ARR
HEREBA FEG=H
AXft—k - Ae&ER =
T—UFMNAF D HE
#o. AR#278,000,000
TTEBRE=ZABTARIR
HEREBA FEEG=H
AXft—k - Ae&ER =
T-ME+ = ApH EE
BoLiuifgskp ARK
2,000,0007T AN & & 1A —
T—=Ft+A=-++tRHE
# - AR%108,282,000
TARAEGER - — M4
“ANBEE: ARK
48,000,0007T & & fER —
T-ME=A=1+—HE
#: AR %2 106,000,000
TAREENR - — M4
AZ+tHEE AR
70,000,000 T AN & fE A —
Z—mWEA=+HE
BN ESBHR LR
AE—FRIBHREAE

=
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BE-F—
5.

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BEFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(25). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(b)

Mortgaged loans

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings
of RMB826,200,000 (31 December
2012: RMB1,276,900,000) were
secured by land use rights under
development cost of the subsidiaries
of the Company (note 5(6)).The
interests of RMB298,200,000 are
payable every 3 months and the
interests of RMB528,000,000 are
payable every month. The principal
is due for repayment by installment
before October 2021. As principal
of RMB65,500,000 should be repaid
before 15 June 2014, such amount was
classified as current liability.

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings
of RMB1,059,157,000 (31 December
2012: RMB1,572,460,000) were
secured by right to yields on
certain land use rights and real
estate development projects under
development of the subsidiaries of
the Company (note 5(6)). The interest
of RMB663,457,000 is payable
every 3 months and the interest
of RMB395,700,000 is payable
every month. As the principal of
RMB50,000,000 is due for repayment
before 21 January 2014 and principal of
RMB95,700,000 is due for repayment
before 24 February 2014 and principal
of RMB2,000,000 is due for repayment
on 1 June 2014, such amount was
classified as current liabilities.

. 6 0F B HRk R H B )

(25). RBIME* (&)

(b)

3 £

826 200 OOO7E ( T ——
F+-—A=+— E AE
#1,276,900,0007T ) & A
KA A F R Al EER A+
B Mo R (BT EER(B))
ERKF -Eh ARK
298 200, 000751it 7 H F
B=EAM =K AR
%528 000, ooomﬁ*’%ﬂ
BEEAM— K - K&k
R-ZZE-_—F+AAAS
HEE - LMERF A
R #65,500,0007T X & f&
i —mEXNATEHA
BE WEMBEHEK L
~AE—FANIBHNRBE

/TJ\ °

R—ZEBE—=F2xXA=+
B RITERARE
1,059,157,0007C (= =&
——f%t+tZ-A=+—8:
AR #1,572,460,0007T )
RUAARQ R FRARIFHEK
N R R It P A X A S
EiEMREEEB K E
EREWT (EFREB)) -
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fETJ\E’]ﬂgl_“ﬂﬁ
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TCiE R A2 &8 A —
Re Ll fEFp AR¥E
50,000,0007C AN & fE X —
Z—-—WEFE—H -+ —H
B : AR ®95,700,000
TTAERER - —UF—
A+t HBEE: AR
2,000,000t A& A —F
—MFENARESE HE
MmERLEINTAE—FA
FIHAR R EBfE N -
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BE—F—=F A= FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B BARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED .. SOFMBEBREHEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(25). R (&)

(25). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(b)

Mortgaged loans (Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings
of RMB1,177,500,000 (31 December
2012: RMB1,680,000,000) are secured
by land use rights and buildings
under investment properties of the
subsidiaries of the Company (note
5(10)). Interest is payable every 3
months, and principal is due for
repayment by installment before
October 2021. Among the loans above,
RMB2,500,000 is due for repayment on
25 September 2013, RMB12,500,000
is due for repayment on 25 March
2014, such amount was classified as
current liability.

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings
of RMB5,000,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB225,000,000) are secured by
real estate development projects of
subsidiaries of the Company (note 5(6)).
Interests is payable every 3 months,
and the principal is due for repayment
before October 2014.

(b)

Ak (&)

R-_E—Z=ZFXNA=+
B RITHERKRARK
1,177,500,0007T (= =&
——#+=-_A=+—H8:
A K #1,680,000,0007T )
RUARRRZFRAINIE
ﬁ&%m?ﬁmimﬁ%
BEEEEREMERK
(M ERA0) A EE
Z@EAM R KEER
_2_—¢+H Al 7 BR{E
BoELERY AR
#2,500,0007C A & ER —
TZ—=FhLA_+HBE
#: AR #12,500,0007T
AERER-_Z—NF=A
—tTRBEE: MEME
WKLV RAE—FARNEE
E’]E,H\ME/TJW

%:%*Eiﬁﬂi+
fﬁ”ﬁ*,kﬁw
5000000n:( T——F
+=—A=+— H AR¥
225,000,0007T ) R AR A
AIFRARAERATHE
B RZZEY)  (ERIKITE (I
FR6))  MEF=EAF
— R RKEER T —MO
F+AREE-
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BE-F—
5.

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(25). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(b)

Mortgaged loans (Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, RMB and
USD bank borrowings amounted to
RMB330,027,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB362,877,000) were secured by
buildings (note 5(11)) and land use
rights in intangible assets (note 5(12))
of the subsidiaries of the Company.
Among the borrowings above, interest
rate of USD long-term loan amounting
to RMB180,027,000 is set at 1.8%
above the LIBOR, and the principal
is due for repayment by installment
before 30 March 2014. An amount of
RMB150,000,000 is due for repayment
by installment before 28 January
2018, and its interest is payable every
3 months. Among the loans above,
RMB30,000,000 should be repaid
on 28 January 2014 and borrowing
equivalent to RMB180,027,000 should
be repaid on 30 March 2014. Such
amount was classified as current
liability.

. & OF B Rk R H B )

(25). R (&)

(b)

= (&)

R-_E—=FExA=1
B AREME TR
HERELTEARE
330,027,0007T (=& — =
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88 : AR¥150,000,000
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BE—F—=F A= FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(25). R (&)

(25). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(©

(d

Pledged loans

As at 30 June 2013, bank borrowings
of RMB1,550,000,000 (31 December
2012: RMB1,550,000,000) were
secured by rights to yields on certain
land use rights (gains on the sales of
land use rights or other profit obtained
from the related land use rights) (note
5(6)) pursuant to the agreement of
line of credit loan signed in 2003. The
interests are payable every 3 months
and the principal is due for repayment
by installment before 2014. As principal
of RMB600,000,000 should be paid
by installment before 15 December
20183 and principal of RMB950,000,000
should be paid by installment before 15
January 2014,such amount is classified
as current liability.

Trust loans

As at 30 June 2013, long-term
borrowings of RMB996,000,000 (31
December 2012: RMB996,000,000)
are secured by the Company’s other
receivables due from subsidiaries. The
Company provides guarantee on the
payment of these receivables, and
such receivables due from subsidiaries
were offset in the consolidated financial
statement. The loan has a fixed interest
rate of 15.00% and interests are
payable on 20 June and 20 December
every year. The principal will be due for
repayment before October 2014.

(o

(d

B
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BE—F—

5.

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(25). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(d)

Trust loans (Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, long-term
borrowings of RMB1,299,600,000 (31
December 2012: RMB1,248,600,000)
are guaranteed by the Company
for the subsidiaries. Interest rate of
RMB699,600,000 is fixed at 14.50%.
Interests are payable every 3 months
and the principal will be due for
repayment in October 2013. Interest
rate of RMB600,000,000 is fixed at
8.50%. Interests are payable every 3
months and the principal will be due
for repayment by installment before
March 2014. Among the borrowings,
RMB100,000,000 is due for repayment
on 12 July 2013; RMB300,000,000 is
due for repayment on 16 August 2013;
RMB55,120,000 is due for repayment
on 10 October 2013; RMB147,400,000
is due for repayment on 16 October
2013; RMB37,830,000 is due for
repayment on 19 October 2013;
RMB59,250,000 is due for repayment
on 24 October 2013, and such amount
was classified as current liability.

At 30 June 2013, long-term borrowings
of RMB1,000,000,000 (31 December
2012: nil) are guaranteed by the Capital
Group for the Company. Interest rate
is fixed at 8.20%. Interests are payable
every 3 months and the principal will be
due for repayment in 28 March 2016.

(d
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BE—F—=F A= FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(25). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(e)

Guaranteed and mortgaged loans

As at 30 June 2013, the guaranteed
and mortgaged loans of the Group
amounted to RMB1,380,500,000 (31
December 2012: RMB573,900,000). Of
which, RMB483,500,000 (31 December
2012: RMB419,900,000) is guaranteed
by the Company for the subsidiaries
and is secured by land use rights
under development costs (note 5(6))
of the subsidiaries of the Company;
RMB104,000,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB154,000,000) is guaranteed by
the subsidiaries for the Company
and secured by land use rights under
development costs (note 5(6)) of the
subsidiaries; RMB250,000,000 (31
December 2012: nil) is guaranteed by
the Company for the subsidiaries and
secured by real estate development
projects under development costs
(note 5(6)) of the subsidiaries;
RMB200,000,000 (31 December 2012:
nil) is guaranteed by the Company
for the subsidiaries and secured by
land use rights and yields on related
investment properties (note 5(10))
of the subsidiaries of the Company;
RMB200,000,000 (31 December 2012:
nil) is guaranteed by the subsidiaries
for the subsidiaries and is secured by
land use rights under development
costs (note 5(6)) of the subsidiaries of
the Company; RMB143,000,000 (31
December 2012: nil) is guaranteed by
the subsidiaries for the subsidiaries
and secured by land use rights and
real estate development projects under
development costs (note 5(6)) of the
subsidiaries of the Company.

(e)

. OB EREEMEE (2)

(25). R (&)

PR ~ 641 £ K

RZZE—=FA=+
H AEBERFE HHFE
A AR #1,380,500,000
T(ZZ®—Z%F + =
A=+ —H: AR
573,900,0007T) ° & & -
A R #483,500,0007T (=
T-——_F+ZHA=+—
H: AR%419,900,000
TL)EBAAREAETRAF
RIEERIHTFAARE
B 7N PR Y £ 3 {5 AR A (B
EFH(6)) EAEREA A
E #104,000,0007T ( =&
——#%+=-—HA=+—8:
A R #154,000,0007T ) &
MTARAARNRIREE
R A F 2R A KK
PR A (M ER
6)) tERIEIFB/ A ARK
250,000,0007T ( — & — —
F+-_A=+—H: &)X
BRAREATAREMHE
R-W A FRAREEKAER
PHEEEEY (MEhR
6)) tEBIEIFHB/ A }\Eﬁ%‘
200,000,0007T (=& — =
¢+_Hf+fE| 4% )
EAARA AT AR RS
BER THTRARKEMN
BE 3 2= op B - 3 450 R R K
EEEZEY (MFEHRA0))
EREBME A /\Eﬁ%‘
200,000,0007T ( —= & — =
F+-_A=+—8: ﬂﬁ)?
BHFRARATAREMHE
R W ihFRARREEKK
PR LHERE (TR
6)) fE BTG )\'/\Eﬂ%‘
143,000,0007T (=& — =
F+-_A=+—8: E)%
BHFRARATAREMHE
RI A F AR FEKARF
M FERERERERE
¥ (BT E6)) fE ARG
)\o

143



144

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 785 i B

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=F N NA=1FHINEAABE (BFEFZH) 2 RELBARETT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(25). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(e)

)

Guaranteed and mortgaged loans

(Continued)

The borrowing above should be repaid
by installment before July 2017, among
which principal of RMB85,000,000
should be repaid on 12 December
2013, principal of RMB114,000,000
should be repaid on 31 December
2013, principal of RMB20,000,000
should be repaid on 20 January 2014
and principal of RMB35,000,000 should
be repaid on 30 June 2014.Thus such
amounts were classified as current
liabilities.

Guaranteed and pledged loans

As at 30 June 2013, the guaranteed
and pledged loans of the Group
amounted to RMB1,512,571,000 (31
December 2012: RMB1,415,000,000).
Of which, RMB245,000,000 (31
December 2012: RMB307,500,000)
is guaranteed by the Company,
RMB245,000,000 (31 December
2012: RMB307,500,000) is secured
by the rights and gains of primary
land development projects (note 5(6)).
The interests are payable every 3
months and the principal is due for
repayment by installment before May
2017; RMB760,000,000 (31 December
2012: RMB800,000,000) is guaranteed
by the Company and secured by
the equity interest of Qingdao and
Yantai Companies which acquired by
the Group; Borrowing equivalent to
RMB262,571,000 (31 December 2012:
nil) is secured by the equity interest
of the subsidiaries of the Company
and is guaranteed by the Company.
Among the loans above, as principal
of RMB100,000,000 should be repaid
on 28 August 2013, principal of

(e)
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BE—F—=F A= FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(25). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

)

(®

Guaranteed and pledged loans
(Continued)

RMB300,000,000 should be repaid
on 9 January 2014 and principal of
RMB1,237,000 should be repaid on
11 March 2014. Such amounts were
classified as current liabilities, and other
borrowings is due for repayment by
installment before March 2017.

Guaranteed, mortgaged and pledged loans

As at 30 June 2013, the guaranteed,
mortgaged and pledged loans of the
Group amounted to RMB170, 000,000
(81 December 2012: nil) are guaranteed
by the Company, with the real estate
development project mortgaged and
the right to yield on certain Land use
right pledged. (note 5(6)) Of which,
principal of RMB30, 000,000 should
be repaid on 18 January 2014 and
principal of RMB50, 000,000 should be
repaid on 18 April 2014, such amounts
were classified as current liabilities, and
other principal were due for repayment
by installment before March 2017.

For the six months ended at 30 June
2013, the weighted average interest
rate of long-term loan is 8.1%. (for
the six months ended 30 June 2012:
7.4%).
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%:%*EEﬁHE+
H "EEBEREF: K
W EHRERBEARK
170,000,0007C (=& ——
F+—-_/F=+—8 &)
ZAARRR AT RARIRE
ER BT ARMEMK
A EEREKEEY (W
?ﬂ(ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ ﬁﬁ
WIS EERERE A
Hr- }\Eﬂﬁso ooo ooo
TACER T —NF
— A Jr/\EMaL AR #&
50,000,000ﬁa&$}@ﬁé
—mFEm™A+N\H
E@,WEM%E%LW
TAE—FRIHNKS
B ERAEENR_-ZF
—tF=ARIDHEER-

BE-_ZT—=FXA=+
HiE/NE A HRE KEBfE
KO NMEFEHEHFNEA
81N (BE-ZZT—Z=F
NA=1 8118 A HE
7.4%) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE T —=FANA=THUNEAARE (B HEI) 2B ELBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

. & OF B Rk R H B )

(26). Debentures payable (26). EATE S

Classified
as corporate
bonds due
31 December within 30 June
2012 Additions  Reductions one year 2013
—E-Cf BA—FR
+ZA §‘JHHE’J “E-=F
=+—H RERSE AN KERD [EffE% ARA=tH
Corporate Bonds NEESH 4,108,020 8,305 - 1,147,930 2,968,395

(a)

According to the Document Number
764 (2009) “Approval of corporate
bond public issuance by Beijing Capital
Land Limited” released by China
Securities Regulatory Commission on
10 August 2009, the Company was
authorised to publicly issue domestic
corporate bonds of no more than
RMB1,800,000,000.

The Company issued RMB1,000,000,000
corporate bond on September 24,
2009, the proceeds net of issuance
costs is RMB986,000,000. The
bond carries a fixed interest rate of
6.5%, which will be paid annually.
The maturity period of the bond is 5
years, the principal and the interest
of the last period is repayable on the
maturity date. Of the fund raised,
RMB200,000,000 was used to
repay the bank loan due to China
Development Bank. The remaining
proceeds are used for property
development purposes. Capital Group
provides unconditional and irrevocable
joint liability guarantees for the bond
over the period of issuance and 180
days after the maturity date.

R_ZEZALENAL+AH:
ARARRE R B EEEEE
BL 2R A[[2009]764%% <FAR
ZEBRIEERHOHBRA
AIARBEITARESHN
18) EARRFRMLER
Eﬂ%’éﬁﬁﬁfﬁTtﬂ}\Eﬁ%
1,800,000,0007T K3 A A
AfESH

RZZEZNFALAZTHE
H XRRQRIZETARM
1,000,000,0007c & A
f& 7 - 1 Bx A8 B8 & i &
TERREB XRREK
WEESFEAARE
986,000,0007T ° #% 1& % HA
PRAB5F  BRA B MR F 5T
B BEFNERE.5% &
FRBE—X BH—KH
BEASW X &K —H
ME-RXRREEEEHFA
R #200,000,0007T B RAME
ERRARRITENRF
#HhE® BT R RRE
Boo LM ARIESHE
Bl EREFE R R
HIH #1808 AT HUHEZ
BETETIRFBER-
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(26). Debentures payable (Continued) (26). MEFHE S (£)

(o) On 14 February 2011, the Group’s by MN-E——F- A+
wholly owned subsidiary BECL H A aWE2&FAN
issued corporate bonds amounted T EBRERITARE
to RMB1,150,000,000, and the 1,150,000,0007T & A &
proceeds net of issuance costs were & % o 1 & 48 B8 & gy %
RMB1,140,078,000. The bond carries TEBR% AN ER
a fixed annual interest rate of 4.756% WEEAEFEAEARK
with a maturity period of 3 years, 1,140,078,0007T © 3% f& %
and the interest will be paid every six HAPR B =4 FL A B A5t
months. The principle and the interests B EBEEMNEKELT75%:
for the last period will be fully repaid B¥ENBE— K BH—
on the maturity date. The bond was KEBERES W TRHE
raised for the investment of overseas —HR B AN EEEZS
property companies and for general FTERARBINGE H EIE
working capital purpose of the Group. B R A U S S 8 N — AR
The Company provided guarantees for NEIEEBE S P45
the repayment of both the principles HAAFIGEERNEEE
and interests. The principal is due for AN EREE Rt Eas
repayment on 14 February 2014.Thus it FIRBIER - ZEELNS
is reclassified as current portion of non- ER-—F—pmE = 541
current liabilities. HES HWMEMBRE F

51| 78 & — 4 79 B) B 60 pE
B

(c) On 29 November 2012, Central (©) RNR—-—=F——F+ — A
Plaza, a subsidiary of the Company —t+thB AXRFAEE
issued corporate bonds amounted to FATFROLDABEEITHALE
RMB2,000,000,000. The Company A AR 2 000,000,000
received proceeds amounted to THRARES K
RMB1,966,065,000 net of issuance RGBT ER% KD T
costs, and RMB152,000,000 among ERKINESSELSA
the proceeds are security deposits for R ¥4 966,065,0007T * £
bond interests (note 5(1)). The bond AR #¥152,000,0007T
carries a fixed annual interest rate of BEENENFRZS (MM
7.6% with a maturity period of 3 years, SHR()) o ZEAHHR A3
and the interest will be paid every six F-RBABENE  BEEF
months. The principal and the interests RAET6% B¥EFENMNE —
for the last period will be fully repayable KEH— REERNEI
on the maturity date. IFC and some BE A 7 < B2 18 — HR FI B o
subsidiaries provided guarantees and it EAERIFCY 2R ETF
the Company entered into a Keepwell T AR REEMKELETA]
Deed for the bonds. Pursuant to the B EE S TR WA
Keepwell Deed, the Company will BEEEIEHETHE-
undertake to make Central Plaza to BiBET s A B
remain solvent and a going concern AR O KEEEM
at all times, to make each of Central B EASENE DS E
Plaza and IFC to have sufficient liquidity g 3 B AR O K B FIFC
to ensure timely payment by each of BT RE S TE M T
Central Plaza and IFC of any amounts REBITE SRR K& T
payable in respect of the Bonds and RSN EES R IERE
the Guarantee in accordance with the TREMNZTENRETSSH
Terms and Conditions of the Bonds and HipEE T EME T
other obligations under the Keepwell
Deed.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—FT—=FNNA=+HIFNEAERE (BEFFH) £BEBARKTFT)
5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED T, w0 B R E M (2)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(27). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax (27). PEEE i 159 B & 2 o Al
liabilities
(a) Deferred tax assets before offsetting (a) I £ HE T ) 3R HE B 15 B &
23
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
“E-=fXA=1H —E-—F+-A=1+—H
Deductible Deductible
Deferred tax temporary Deferred temporary
assets differences tax assets differences
B %l R kil
FiEHEE HRNMEER BHEE THEZR
Provision for asset BERNEERE
impairment 23,428 93,713 15,632 62,529
Accrued salaries and BRIER
other cost expenses Hi A ER 167,866 671,464 166,145 664,580
Accumulated losses 2B 91,309 365,236 65,210 260,840
Internal unrealized EHEASRERFAE
profits elimination 68,616 274,464 60,474 241,896
Total B 351,219 1,404,877 307,461 1,229,845
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—=FNA=FHIEANEAABRE (BHEFZH) 2B ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREHEEMGE 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(27). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax (27). ¥ %E Py 15 B & s o £ 1K
liabilities (Continued) (%)

(@

Deferred tax assets before offsetting
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2013, the Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB739,937,000 (831 December
2012: RMB641,389,000) in respect
of deductible losses amounting to
RMB184,984,000 (31 December
2012: RMB160,347,000), which will be
expired as follows:

(@)

A KR 00 0B A Py 15 B |
B (&)

RZE—=F A=+
B - 2N & B oK ¥ 0] B H S
B A R#739,937,0007T
(ZF—=—F+=-RA=+—
H: AR#641,389,000
JC ) TR A B R IR AL PT 1S AR
&= AR#184,984,0007T
(ZBE—=F+=ZA=1—
H: AK#¥160,347,000
J0) o Ll KA 18 2 B

HIR ST :
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_fF
AA=tH +=-A=+—8
Within 1 year —F R 33,780 8,445
Between 1 to 2 years — R = 4F 47,936 80,793
Between 2 to 3 years —R=%F 54,753 55,147
Between 3 to 4 years =Ry 239,664 239,400
Over 4 years PO LA 363,804 257,604
Total A&t 739,937 641,389

As at 30 June 2013, the Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB13,847,000 (831 December
2012: RMB18,598,000) in respect of
deductible asset impairment losses
amounting to RMB3,462,000 (31
December 2012: RMB4,650,000).

\

i

X

T—ZF A=+

K‘Elﬂiﬂé%ﬂz@
B %k AR #13,847,0007T
(Z2—=F+=A=+—
H: AR¥18,598,0007T)
BREENELEFEHRE
E AR #3,462,0007T (=
T——F+ZRA=+—
H: AR®¥4,650,000
JL) e
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE —FE—=FNA=THUNEAARE (BFFEHE) 2 BELBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

. OB RIEE MR (2)

(27). H%E Fir 15 B8 B 2 A £ 0

(27). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities (Continued) (#)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities before offsetting (b) A 28 HE I B 28 L B 15 B A
15
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
ZE-ZFXRA=TH “E-Zf+-A=+—H
Taxable Taxable
Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax temporary
liabilities differences liabilities differences
FiEHas ERMER ETaRE EREzER
Withholding income tax ~ RITRBAEH 8,840 35,360 3,876 15,506
Change in fair value RHESREE
of avallable-for-sale AREEE
financial assets 14,238 56,950 17,850 71,399
Changes in fair value DHERHER
of properties under —EH T EAH
business combination
achieved in stages 48,320 193,280 63,333 253,332
Changes in fair value of ~ FTABZEKIRE N
investment properties BHEAAEE
recognised in profit or #
loss 138,470 553,879 89,940 359,760
Changes in fair valug of ~ FF ABEALTER)
investment properties REERME
recognised in capital AREEE
surplus 440,146 1,760,584 440,146 1,760,584
Capitalised interest BARF S 101,782 407,128 45,059 180,236
Total B 751,796 3,007,181 660,204 2,640,817
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=F N A =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMLRBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREHEEMGE 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(27). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax (27). ¥ %E Py 15 B & s o £ 1K
liabilities (Continued) (%)
() The net balances of deferred tax assets (© 38 % & &9 iEEP T E @ﬁéé
and liabilities after offsetting are as MIESE PRSP 8 R R 5
follows: REATR :
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——fF
AA=+tH +ZA=+—H
Deferred tax assets, net RIS E EF58 301,805 280,980
Deferred tax liabilities, net — EIEFTISH & B/ F 5 702,382 633,723
(28). Share Capital (28). B AR
Number of Share
shares capital
R & g 2%
(in thousand) (RMB’000)
Registered, issued and BEITRBRRA:
fully paid:
as at 30 June 2013 R-E—=FA=1+H 2,027,960 2,027,960
Registered, issued and BEITRBRRA:
fully paid:
as at 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF
+-—A=+—H 2,027,960 2,027,960
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEr—F

5.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZ) 2 BB ARKTT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED T, S0P E R IE H R aE (2)

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(29). Capital surplus (29). BEAA
31 December 30 June
2012 Additions Reductions 2013
—E——fF “E-=F
+-A=+—H AHBHE N AR,  AA=tTH
Share premium BARE 794,472 - - 794,472
Other capital surplus, including EHfEAATE  £1F:
Change in fair value of available- At 1 & ¢ BV E &
for-sale financial assets ARBEE 53,549 7,569 (18,406) 42,712
Increase in fair value due to FEBAREKH
transfer from inventory to FWEDRAEL
investment property 1,320,439 - - 1,320,439
Land Appreciation Tax BRARBHELL
compensated by promoter EEH 35,974 - - 35,974
Fair value appreciation of DHERNEEAH
previously held interest in FREHI AnER
a business combination 2EHD
achieved in stages 21,975 - (16,040) 5,935
Total At 2,226,409 7,569 (34,446) 2,199,532
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(29). Capital surplus (Continued)

. AU B EEEEMEE (2)

(29). BALN (&)

31 December 30 June
2011 Additions Reductions 2012
—E——f —E-—F
+-A=+—H AHREM xRS, R~A=TH
Share premium (a) BAGE @) 925,266 - (102,875) 822,391
Other capital surplus, including E M EAATE  £1F:
Change in fair value of available- A it 1 & ¢ B E &
for-sale financial assets “REEE 24,918 19,160 - 44,078
Land Appreciation Tax BRAKARBELL
compensated by promoter #ER 35,974 - - 35,974
Fair value appreciation of AHBRNCEAH
previously held interest in FEEHIRAEE
a business combination BEBD
achieved in stages 95,538 - (51,590) 43,948
Total At 1,081,696 19,160 (154,465) 946,391
(@) In January 2012, the Group entered @ R-ZZE——F—H &&

B EERecosia China Pte
Ltd (A T %5 [Recosia | )
=EREEEDZ B
E T Recosia¥i A fyReco
Camellia 100%#) fi% #
KRABEMHERARK
340,547,0007T * 2~ & & 17
FEHL 18 T Reco Camellia
RENMAESETFRAREG
I 50%H) IX # - Reco
Camellialk % B 5 Y #
50% 8% #E SN - I B E fh
B-ZBERSHMEN
R EARR 1% & B iR R T I8
B I50%T EE=Z A
FRAIEEHARRFE
AEMFEEMECHEN
= -ART A MK R
FPHMEBEARARABARE
104,470,0007C ° Z X 5 &
K& BrEKAEAEE
MEEFAT -

into an equity transfer agreement with
Recosia China Pte Ltd (‘Recosia”) to
purchase 100% equity interest of Reco
Camellia held by Recosia, at a total
consideration of RMB340,547,000.
After the transaction, the Group
acquired 50% equity interest of its
subsidiary, Sunshine City, held by Reco
Camellia. Reco Camellia did not engage
in any other business except for holding
50% equity interest in Sunshine City.
The Group recognised a decrease in
capital surplus of RMB104,470,000
according to the difference between
the newly acquired long-term equity
investment and the net assets
calculated continuously from the date
of acquisition. After the transaction,
Sunshine City became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BHE—F—

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

. & OF B IRk R H Pk o2)

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(29). Capital surplus (Continued)

(29). BANE (&)

(a)

(Continued) (@) (%)

In January 2012, the Group entered RZE—Z—F—H &%
into an equity transfer agreement with B 23T N 225 = E R
Reco Ziyang to purchase 45% equity EHEWE BEE T ANE
interest of Chengdu Xinzi, at a total KEMBEAENKETE
consideration of RMB120,372,000. 45%H) B HE - AR BB B
The Group recognised an increase B A AR120,372,000

in capital surplus of RMB1,595,000
according to the difference between
the newly acquired long-term equity
investment and the net assets

T ZBERSHMER
= B iR #E 3% & B 1% AR 7 42
FRLEAIETERZR A

AIEEERRKBFES

calculated continuously from the date HEWNFEEMREZEDN
of acquisition. After the transaction, ERH AT AHMBR

Chengdu Xinzi became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group.

KPHMEERARBARKE
1,595,0007T ° #% X 5 58 KX

(30). Surplus reserve

B -KEBHEXNBEEH
S a/NE]

(30). EBRAME

31 December 30 June

2012 Additions Reductions 2013

It ek —B-=F

TZR=1+-8H AHRE AERD ~NAZtH

Statutory surplus reserve FERBBAES 341,768 - - 341,768
31 December 30 June

2011 Additions Reductions 2012

—T——F —E-CF

+-A=t—-H AHRE KERD /\H:+EI

Statutory surplus reserve FERBBAES 330,231 - - 330,231
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—F—=

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(30).

(31).

Surplus reserve (Continued)

In accordance with the Company Law and
the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Company should appropriate 10% of net
profit for the year to the statutory surplus
reserve, and the Company can cease
appropriation when the statutory surplus
reserve accumulated to more than 50% of
the registered capital. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to make up for the loss or
increase the paid in capital after approval from
the appropriate authorities. No surplus reserve
was appropriated for the six months ended 30
June 2013 (for the six months ended 30 June
2012: nil).

The Company appropriates for the
discretionary surplus reserve after the
shareholders’ meeting approves the proposal
from the Board of Directors. The discretionary
surplus reserve can be used to make up for
the loss or increase the paid in capital after
approval from the appropriate authorities. The
Company did not appropriate discretionary
surplus reserve for the six months ended 30
June 2013 (for the six months ended 30 June
2012: nil).

Undistributed profits

As at 30 June 2013, included in the
undistributed profits, RMB718,173,000 is
subsidiaries’ surplus reserve from subsidiaries
attributable to the Company (31 December
2012: RMB718,173,000). No undistributed
profit is appropriated by subsidiaries
attributable to the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2013 (for the six months
ended 30 June 2012: nil).

In accordance with the resolution at the
Annual General Meeting held on 26 April
2012, the Company declared a cash dividend
of RMBO0.19 per share to the shareholders
for the year 2011, which amounted to
RMB385,312,000 based on the Company’s
total issued number of shares which is
2,027,960,000.

(30).

(31).

S 5 e o B ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

FNA =1 H 1AM ERE (B EEEI) £ FEMBARETFT)

. AU B EEREEMEE 2)

BExAM(&E)

BiE (PEARKEMBERGE) -
KRAREERREETENRE
RRRIRF EF N HE10%5E B
EEBBAES EEERRA
He 2T RENRAAS50%A £
A AHBRIN - EAERBHBAE
TRMEETBRBRAEE X
EIL AR A EQ;ZE:A—_E/‘—\
A=+HBIEAERHME A2
RETIRAEATE BB A ﬁ(%zi_?
——FNA=Z+HIE~EAH
SR

ARAREEBBRABE SR
HEFSRES  SBRERASHE-
ETREASKLAESEHERATAR
568 178 LA B 4F [ &5 18 X 4 PN AR

BE_T— =R HA=THLRX
BAHE ARRIARGFREER
BAEE (BHE_T—Z_FXH

=+ HENEA MR &) -

A 21 Be A
R =

F7
poll Rl /F'EJ iR}
& R

+H- K
BN A A
M% EHREAREK
7WJBD%E =E==fq=
A=+—H: AR#718,173,000
) EREE-_ZT—=F,A8
=+ BN EABE - FARE
EHNEBNESARNABRAES
AREZT(BHE_T——_F~
B=+81/NE A HAME &) -

BE_ZE——FOA_+BK
BAGRE ARRMAEE k%
KE-_ZT——FERSBRFN &

& A REO0A9TT L B BT ﬁ
2,027,960,0008% 51 & * K 338 ¢
B A L5+ A R #£6385,312,0007T °

- b mb St
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BEr—F

5.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZ) 2 BB ARKTT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(31). Undistributed profits (Continued)

(32).

In accordance with the resolution at the
Annual General Meeting held on 17 April
2013, the Company declared a cash dividend
of RMBO.16 per share to the shareholder
for the year of 2012, which amounted to
RMB324,474,000 based on the Company’s
total issued number of shares which is
2,027,960,000.

. OB RIEE MR (2)

(31). AR BLAIW (&)

BE_ZE—=ZFWA++tHK
RAGREZE ARRRAZERE
RE_ZT——_FEHRSEAN &
BAR®O16TT REEITRG
2,027,960,000/% 5T & * K 2 3H &
A& A AL 5T A R #5324,474,0007T

Minority interests (32). & BB A £
Minority interests attributable to the non- HBEBREFARLERENDH
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries: IR =
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_fF
AA=tH +ZA=+—H
Non-controlling shareholders FRAIDE R R E RS
interest of subsidiaries 2,206,164 2,386,450
Capital securities(a) M B F(a) 2,333,945 -
Total A&t 4,540,109 2,386,450

(a)

On 8 April 2013, the Group’s wholly
owned subsidiary Central Plaza issued
senior perpetual capital securities
(the “Capital Securities”) callable in
2018, with a total amount of USD
400,000,000.

The Company entered into a Keepwell
Deed for the Capital Securities, and at
the same time obliged to distribute at
an annual rate of 8.375% semiannually.
The issuer of the Capital Securities
may elect to defer distribution, and is
not subject to any restriction as to the
number of times distribution can be
deferred.

@ RKR-ZE—=F#=mWANR"
AEBE2ETARFLOLK
JE 2517 A] pA20184F & [E] /Y
A KEE S (VAT [#E
%8 3 5+400,000,0003 T °

RSB AR AR
it 4 07 o 2 BE 0 [B) B BT
ERFFEAE8.375%F
FEHAMERN =M
BEBITANEEREERLE S
4 AR D AL IR B
EAATBR ) o
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SO BEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(32). Minority interests (Continued) (32). BB KL (&)

(a)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the terms of Capital
Securities, the Group has no
contractual obligation to repay its
principal or to pay any distribution.
The Capital Securities do not meet
the definition as financial liabilities
according to Financial Liabilities under
PRC Accounting Standards No. 22, and
are classified as minority interests and
subsequent distribution declared will be
treated as profit distribution to equity
owners.

According to the terms of Capital
Securities, Central Plaza has no
right to defer distribution if Central
Plaza or the Company announced
or distributed dividends during the
6-month period ended on the day
before the contractual scheduled
Distribution Payment Date. The board
of directors proposed a dividend to
the shareholders on 28 February 2013
and Central Plaza has no right to defer
semi-annual distribution on 8 October
2013 in the amount of USD 16,750,000
(RMB103,494,000).

The Capital Securities, with an
aggregate principal amount of USD
400,000,000 (RMB2,506,000,000)
are recorded as minority interests
amounted at RMB2,333,945,000 net
of issuance costs and the semi-annual
distribution proposed on 8 October
2013.
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Br—F

5.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFIZE) 2 R E B ARKTT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(33). Revenue and cost of sales

. OB RIEE MR (2)

(33). B WA T 3 A

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Bz BHZE
2= —E—_F
ANA=THL ~NA=t+HILE
~ME A HE 7~ i A B
Revenue from main FEEBRA()
operations (a) 4,883,644 3,461,196
Revenue from other H b Z WA (b)
operations (b) 5,862 23,647
Total A&t 4,889,506 3,484,843
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Bz HZE
—E-=fF —E——F
AA=THL ANA=t+HIE
AME A H A 7~ E A HA R
Cost of sales from main FEEBEKA ()
operations (a) 3,316,128 1,949,388
Cost of sales from other H b ZE A AN (b)
operations (b) 571 238
Total A&t 3,316,699 1,949,626
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

b —

= —=

(33). Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

(@

(b)

Revenue and cost of sales from main

operations

ZFNA=THUNERERE (B EEEI) 2 FEMLBARETFT)

. AU B EEREEMEE 2)

(33). BREWAMEERA (&)

(a)

Six months ended

EX-+ 3/ LN EX-+ 371
A

Six months ended

30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BE-Z-=%x8 BE-_Z2——F,A
=tHIEREAHY =+ HIEAEA B
Main Main Main Main
operating operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs
£ e B I
EBRA EBHAR EBWA XA
Sale of properties and ~ BHEHEE R
related consulting A7 ARE
services 4,837,077 3,268,916 3,411,684 1,900,811
Hotel Services SEIE YA 46,567 47,212 49,512 48,577
Total A&t 4,883,644 3,316,128 3,461,196 1,949,388
Revenue and cost of sales from other (b) Al 2 7 Wi A i L il 38

operations

Six months ended

Six months ended

30 June 2013 30 June 2012

BE-Z-=%5A4 HE-_Z-Z-F5A

S+HEEABAHME =T B 1L/ ME A HEE
Other Other Other Other
operating operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs
Hit Hit Hith Hith
ES T/ ON EBHA ES7.L/ON EBAR
Other income Hilg A 5,862 571 23,647 238
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BEr—F

—SFAAS+AUNEALE (BIRAZH) 2 BB BARKTFT)
5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

1.

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(34). Tax and surcharges

o BF B 85 R JH H M RE ()

(34). BEBE KK

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2013 30 June 2012

BZE H=E

2= —E—_F

AB=t+HI ANA=1+HIE

{8 A Hi 7~ {E A HA

Business tax R 250,102 193,773
Land Appreciation Tax T HIIEER 141,138 259,185
Business tax surcharges SN 32,439 16,073
Total AFr 423,679 469,031

(35).

Financial expense/(income) — net

(35). MBEM, (BA) —FH#

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2013 30 June 2012

8z I

—E—=F —E—F

AA=THL ANA=Z+HIE

~E B R 7~ A B

Interest expenses BT 786,952 600,001

Including: Bank loans HrhiRITER 385,315 351,305

Trust loans ERACE 221,511 173,894

Corporate bonds NEEF 143,464 63,119

Other loans HihBE 36,662 11,683

Less: Amount capitalised BRI B X H (519,692) (545,856)

Interest expense-net MBS FEE 267,260 54,145
Long-term receivables R HAFE W KA IR

discounts - (1,874)

Interest income F 2 WA (182,884) (65,825)
Exchange gains or losses fEN B 55

— net 26,764 (3,078)

Others HAih 6,202 11,024

Net Ed-El 117,342 (5,608)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. AU B EEEEMEE (2)

(Continued)
(36). Asset impairment (36). & g WA 1H 2k
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BZ #H=
2= —E——F
AA=THL NA=t+HLE
{8 A Hi 7~ {8 A HA
Impairment loss on bad debts  5+12 1 BR % 5 - 14,240
Impairment loss on decline in 17 & & B X% &
the value of inventories 31,184 -
Total A&t 31,184 14,240
(37). Non-operating income (37). BEIBA
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BZE HE
—E—=F —E—_F
AA=THL NA=Z+HIE
~E B 7~ {8 A HA
Government grants 5T 45 BY 12,278 125
Gains on disposal of RERETEEEHRE RS
fixed assets 35 -
Others EHAih 697 1,188
Total &t 13,010 1,313
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

Br—F

—SEAAS+AUNEABE (BB 2FELBARKTFT)
5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(38). Non-operating expenses

(38). EHEHZH

. OB RIEE MR (2)

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BZE H=E
2= —E——F
AA=+HIE ANA=+HIE
8 A Hi 7~ A B

Losses on disposal of fixed REBTETEERK
assets - 5
Donations BT 200 674
Default fine (i) EHR() 20,000 45
Others EAMp 8,275 890
Total BF 28,475 1,614
0] A wholly-owned subsidiary of the (i) rEBZz2ETFRAIALD

Company did not process the property
ownership certificate on schedule in
accordance with the agreed terms in
sales contracts thus the subsidiary
make the accrual of default fine
accordingly.

(39). Gains on changes in fair value

ERENEERELRE
BEABLE &EHEM
BIRMENS -

(39). 4 fu fE R 5 By W 4

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BZE HE
—E—=F —E—F
AAB=tHIL NA=1+HIE
<8 A Hi 7~ {E A HA
Financial assets held RS EE
for trading 5,320 -
Investment properties AR EBEETEE
subsequently measured AENREMEIE
at fair value model 194,119 -
Total &t 199,439 -
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(2 = FE—=F N A =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMLRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SOFMBEBREHEEMGE 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(40). Investment income (40). B&E W %=
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Bz BHE
—E—= —E——fF
ARA=THL ANAZ=+HIE
18 A H 7~ ME A E A
Share of net profit or loss of EEREZEIDENR
investees under equity WEBEMFEZNMEE
method 48,306 21,004
Income from disposal of HEAHTESHERE
available-for-sale financial Wz (MIFEREB))
assets (note 5(8)) 9,865 -
Dividend income from available- A] it H & 4§t & &
for-sale financial assets A% A W &= 772 -
Income from disposal of BRETARREWZ
subsidiaries (note 4(2)) (Mt (=) ) 63,213 -
Income from disposal of joint R EHE S %N a]
ventures and associates & W 2,366 31,844
Others (a) H At (a) 17,270 -
Total &5t 141,792 52,848
(@ The Company held the overseas @ ZEeBAARATBE=Z
investment plan “Chengxin overseas —=®~A=+8~EA
investment No.2” operated by HEFEEPHELHE
Zhongcheng Trust. The amount stated AINRE25R | ZIEIBEINE
above is the investment income for the MIEBEMEEZEEMNRE
six months ended 30 June 2013. The W ZEFEEIERZ
trust scheme has been liquidated in T—=FHBEE-
June 2018.
(41). Depreciation and Amortisation 41). I REHEH
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
8z HZE
—E-=F —E-CF
AA=THIL NA=+THIE
~ME A H 7~ E A EA R
Depreciation of fixed assets BT EENE 17,175 20,631
Amortisation of intangible B EEH
assets 523 523
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BEr—F

5.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZ) 2 BB ARKTT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(42). Income tax expenses

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made as the Group has no assessable
profits in Hong Kong for the six months ended
30 June 20183 (for the six months ended 30
June 2012: nil).

PRC income tax is computed according to the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. The
applicable PRC income tax rate is 25% (for the
six months ended 30 June 2012: 25%).

Withholding income tax should be charged
against income from taxable dividends of
non-resident enterprises in the Mainland and
investments disposal in mainland China with
the tax rate of 5%-10% according to the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

The amount of taxation charged to the
consolidated income statement represents:

. OB RIEE MR (2)

(42). B EM

AEBRBEE-T—=F,-A
=+ B 1ENE A BE Y S E
B ERBOE M - I RFHR M
BEMBRER (BE_F—=
FRNA=ZTHLIEANREABHME:
) -

H AT S 2 AR 1R P B AR B O
BRERFE BRPRMEHR
REDB% (BE—_ZT——F A
=+ HIENEAEME:25%) °

FEAENIFERERTEZRE
B AERE AR MR 2 TR5%-
10% R0 & 5 & 75 i A WA K B i
BEMBERRINKEAEN -

TRESFTAGHBRERZAE
MERTHE

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2013 30 June 2012

BZE BZE

—_E—= —E——F

AA=THL ~NA=Z+HIE

~E B & 7~ {E A HA

Current income tax & HIRT 1SR 249,219 295,345
Deferred income tax EIEFTIS 66,516 (55,568)
Total A&t 315,735 239,777
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SO BEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(42). Income tax expenses (Continued) 42). B EMN (&)
The reconciliation from income tax calculated 1 ER G OFFE R & 5B B RE 5
based on the applicable tax rates and total RERHEGFERNFSRAS R
profit presented in the consolidated financial PRSI ER :
statements to the income tax expenses is
listed below:
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BZE HZE
—ET—= —E——fF
AB=+HIE NA=Zt+HIE
~E B 7~ E A E
Total profit IR FGEE 1,073,058 872,500

Income tax expenses calculated % & FA i R25% 51 & #Y

at applicable tax rates (25%) Frig i 268,265 218,125
Share of net profits or loss of  IZRIEZFEZ B S D IEH T

joint ventures and associates & & R A FIEE AN EE

under equity method (12,076) (5,251)
Withholding income tax R FH 4,964 -
Payment of income tax WA EEFRSRER

attributable to previous

periods 905 2,612
Expenses, costs and losses TEMBR A

not deductible for tax =02z RAIBI=ES

purposes 9,880 2,811
Profit not subject to tax e XN (3,272) -
Utilisation of previous F AR REREL

unrecognised tax losses PRI EE®

AR EE (3,437) -
Reversal of recognised & o] g B RIE T
undeductible losses FIEHEER
T IEE 2,476 -
Tax losses for which no EHARERIEL

deferred income tax asset FIEHEER

was recognised AN E 1B 48,030 21,480
Income tax expenses Fris % & A 315,735 239,777
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BHE—F—

SEAAS AU EBE (BRIEEI) 2 HELBARET )
5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

. & 0F B Rk R H B )

(43). Earnings per share 43). B s
Basic earnings per share is calculated by ERXGRUSNGEBREAG]E
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders BRBREOEHFFBERAGA
of the Company by the weighted average RIEITHEINE BAR A INHE T &
number of shares outstanding during the &
period.
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BZ S
—E—= —E——fF
AA=THL ~NA=Z+HIE
AMERHE 7~ E A E
Profit attributable to HENRERAREBR
shareholders of the Company %R &4 6175 78 562,161 528,689
Weighted average number RAREITHEINE BRE
of shares outstanding nEFHE (FR)
(thousands) 2,027,960 2,027,960
Basic earnings per share EARGRKE
(RMB cents per share) (AR ER) 28 26
Including: =
- Basic earnings per share —FELEEARTR IS
relating to continuing
operations 28 26

Diluted earnings per share is equal to the
basic earnings per share since the Company
has no dilutive potential shares during the

period.

RARAB T FERBUHEEELS R

% - 7% 1 & i U
Ao

PASYETER

mm > <

%ZX#M&Z
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

B E— = N A =1 HiENE AR (BRI 2B E I AARE T oT)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SO BEBREEE MG 2

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(44). Other comprehensive income (44). HAbEL AW &
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
8z HZE
2= —E—_F
AB=+HIE NA=t+HLE
18 A H 7~ A B
Fair value loss/(income) on AtHEEMEEAR
available-for-sale financial BEEZHEEN
assets, gross Bk, (k) (4,584) 25,547
Less: Income tax arised B EENEREE 1,146 (6,387)
Net amount of reclassifications B 85T A E /b 4r & Ui as
from other comprehensive HAEHER
income to profit or loss (9,865) -
Less: Income tax arised i EERNEREE 2,466 -
Subtotal IINEF (10,837) 19,160
Difference on translation of INEREITEER
foreign currency financial
statements 31,110 (8,596)
Total A& 20,273 10,564
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BHE—F—

SEAAS AU EBE (BRIEEI) 2 HELBARET )
5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(45). Notes to consolidated cash flow statements

(45). Bl i &% MWaE

. & 0F B Rk R H B )

(a) Reconciliation from net profit to cash (a) 315 1 1 B R B 2 2% N
flows from operating activities Bl &
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BZ BHE
—E-—=F —E——fF
AAB=tHLE NAZTHLE
AMEA A A A HE
Net profit 3 757,323 632,723
Add: Provisions for asset m:BERERK
impairment (note 5(36)) (KT sEF(36)) 31,184 14,240
Depreciation of fixed BrEENE
assets (note 5(11)) (FFEER@1)) 17,175 20,631
Amortisation of intangible BREEEE
assets (note 5(12)) (KsERA12) 523 523
Amortisation of long-term REOGFEBANEE
prepaid expenses 495 147
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of ~ REETEE BN
fixed assets, intangible BEMEMRE
assets and other EEN (W)
long-term assets Bx (35) 5
Financial expenses Mg A 159,900 28,835
Investment income REWE (MR
(note 5(40)) (40)) (141,792) (52,848)
Increase in deferred tax EEMEHEER
assets 2 (23,115) (72,780)
Decrease in deferred tax BIEFEHEEN
liabilities L 82,965 15,211
Increase in inventories FERE (1,334,605) (2,033,222)
Gains on changes in NAEEEZHER
fair value (199,439) -
Transfer out of assets DHERNLESH
value in a business BEEBEEMEBE
combination achieved in EREEL
stages through disposal
of relevant assets 16,040 51,590
Increase in restricted cash PR HIROIR & 8 10
(note 5(1)) (M&ERA1)) (73,717) (246,952)
Increase in operating KEMERIEE B
receivables = (382,578) (57,865)
(Decrease)/Increase in RE M ENIER /)
operating payables CR) /o (569,947) 135,172
Net cash flows from KETHEENRERE
operating activities R (1,659,623) (1,564,590)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . SO BEBREEE MG 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(45). Notes to consolidated cash flow statements 45). BHEemERMEE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Net (decrease)/increase in cash (b) WEmEaER
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BZ H=
—F—= —E——F
AB=+HIE NA=Zt+HIE
~E B 7~ {8 A HA A
Cash at end of period He MR EE 7,304,868 8,534,794
Less: cash at beginning of  J& - I & M HAW] 8258
period (8,076,268) (7,974,900)
Net (decrease)/increase & F L INEE
in cash (771,400) 559,894
(c)  Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries (o HEBEIEETFRAAHL2E
are disclosed note 4(2). FesEr (=)
(d) Cash (d) W4
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
ANA=+H +=-A=+—8H
Cash at bank and on BE¥Ee (WHERA))
hand (note 5(1)) 7,919,089 8,616,773
Less: restricted cash at JB IR BB 1 3R
bank (note 5(1)) (MIsEFR (1)) (614,221) (540,504)
Cash at end of the period I8 & Hik 6478 7,304,868 8,076,269
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-F—
6.

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The reportable segments of the Group are the
business units that provide different products or
service, or operate in different areas. Different
businesses or areas require different marketing
strategies, the Group, therefore, separately manages
the production and operation of each reportable
segment and valuates their operating results
respectively, in order to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to these segments and to
assess their performance.

The Group identified 6 reportable segments as
follows:

- Beijing region, which is mainly engaged in the
property development and sales in Beijing
region.

- Tianjin region, which is mainly engaged in the
property development and sales in Tianjin
region.

= Chengyu region, which is mainly engaged
in the property development and sales in
Chengyu region.

= Other regions, which are mainly engaged in
the property development and sales in other
regions, including Wuxi, Shenyang, Xi’an,
Huzhou and so on.

= Investment property division, which is
mainly engaged in the investment property
operations.

- Hotel operations, which are mainly engaged
in hotel business and providing corresponding
services.

Inter-segment transfers are measured by reference to
sales to third parties. Expenses indirectly attributable
to each segment are allocated to the segments
based on the proportion of each segment’s revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2013 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

R E—ZF A= HIE AR (BRI 2B E I BARKETFIT)
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead)  75. 2 ubfa B (&)

(1). Segment information for the six months 1. BEZF—=4HAH=1H
ended 30 June 2013 is as follows: NI T DER i g E 5
Property development and sales
EHhERRHERE
Investment
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others  properties Hotel Unallocated Elimination Total
R&EM ADE
b3 P-4 B Hit EitE EEEER HEHE 2HHES &5t

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARMTRT ARMTR ARETRT ARMTR AR¥TR ARETR ARET:R

Revenue from HHZFBWA

external

customers 1,014,852 285,414 3,128,040 390,908 23,725 46,567 - - 4,889,506
Inter-segment AHEZXHHA

revenue - - - 2,280 - - - (2,280) -
Interest income FEM 29,617 9,070 7,504 182,356 2,763 65 366,557 (415,048) 182,884
Interest expenses BB A (172,295) - (13909)  (9,291) (315)  (12514) (473984) 415048  (267,260)
Share of (loss)/profit 4k AEMEN

of associates and & &Mz

joint ventures (1,3%)  (8774) - 56506 1,880 - - - 48306
Asset impairment BEREBKTR

loss - - - 31,184 - - - - 31,184
Depreciation and NEBRNEHE

amortisation (2,706) @17) (25  (1,342) - (0g0l)  (2902) - (18193
Total profit/foss) I/ (EE) 8% 260,088 41,202 522,089  (28,020) 210,506  (15096)  (31,847) 114,166 1,073,058
Income tax MERER

expenses (49676)  (10,206)  (131,341) 2583 (52,627) - (259000 (48478  (315735)
Net profit/(loss) EHE/ (B8) 210,412 30,906 390,718 (25,437) 157,879 (15,096) (57,747) 65,688 757,323
Total assets & 23,994,327 12,686,238 6,843,940 7,571,757 7,625,593 537,636 42,265,495 (54,406,238) 47,118,748
Long-term equity

investments in rENRARE

associates and BE

joint ventures 203,864 523,874 - 1,109,319 150,215 - - - 1,987,272
Additions to RERERE LMY

non-current HipERaEE

assets other than 048

long-term equity

investments 3,017 597 76 1,759 500,887 447 49 - 506,832
For the six months ended 30 June 2013, no HE_T—=FA=1+HIRN
revenue from a single significant customer ERERH ASEERE HA
or foreign customers is generated in the XX WA ARKRBE—&F
segments. EXFHRZWA -
As at 30 June 2013, the Group has no non- —E—=FA=+H Xx&KE
current assets that are located in other BURHEMBERNIERBEE -

countries.
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6.

(2).

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment information for six months ended

N
/N e

30 June 2012 and as at 31 December 2012
is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(2).

E g

s B ()

“HEANH=1H

AR A B R =% — A
+ZA=+—HBa#ES

Segment information for six months (a) BE_E-_HEAH=1
ended 30 June 2012: H 1k 75 83 31 4 #5545 B
Property development and sales
EHEREHEES
Investment
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others  properties Hotel Unallocated  Elimination Total
REM ARE
R X2 BR Hity BiE BEEHR MeRE HBHEH At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR%T:R
Revenue from external HIZZHA
customers 2,086,018 95,784 904,802 348,727 - 49,512 - - 3,484,843
Inter-segment revenue ABEZFHHA - - - 89,109 - - - (89,109) -
Interest income FISHA 129,761 9,339 6,204 39,873 - 87 138,525  (257,964) 65,825
Interest expenses FISEBR (94,349) - (7,187) (69,859) - (8,674)  (122,304) 248,228 (54,145)
Share of (loss)/profit of HBERNSELEN
associates and joint REKE
ventures (12,611) (10,567 - 29,676 4,506 - - - 21,004
Asset impairment losses & ERER %R 4,000 - - - - - 10,240 - 14,240
Depreciation and WEEBMEHE
amortisation (2,026) (225) (321) (2,837) - (12,924) (2,873) - (21,206)
Total profit/(loss) %‘J?E/(Eﬁﬁ)?.@%ﬁ 727,922 23,738 213,046 (103) - (11,141) 43,802 (124,764) 872,500
Income tax expenses BHER (200,719) (5,846) (51,515) (1,124) - - (11,437) 30,864 (239,777)
Net profit/(loss) /??T‘ B/ (F8) 527,203 17,892 161,531 (1,227) - (11,141) 32,365 (93,900) 632,723
For the six months ended 30 June HE_ZT——_FRA=1
2012, no revenue from a single EIJJ:/‘\TH,E'HF’aﬁ*K%
significant customer or foreign BEREHEMBERHNRZ SR
customers is generated in the AN URKEE-—FEX
segments. PEIRZWA -
Segment information as at 31 December (b) R HET A=
2012: H 4 #8f5 B
Property development and sales
FHEREHEEH
Investment
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others  properties Hotel  Unallocated  Elimination Total
REM ADE
1R PNz B Hify RiE EEER MeE HBEEH Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTLT ARMTE ARKTI ARETT ARBTI ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARETZT
Total assets LEESE 19,600,939 10,871,312 8,148,119 33,256,713 5,822,577 563,965 16,199,515 (46,926,652) 47,536,488
Long-term equity B ECENEE
investments in CENRBRE
associates and joint RE
ventures 133,647 565,921 - 851,993 148,335 - - - 1,699,896
Additions to RERERE A
non-current assets
other than long-term
equity investments 287 86 452 205,531 1,847,409 114 1,041 - 2,054,920
As at 31 December 2012, the Group

has no non-current assets that are
located in other countries.
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(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR EE (BRI 2 FEMRBARETFT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The parent company and subsidiaries

The general information and other related
information of the subsidiaries is set out in
note 4.

. BB ARAERZ S

B2 ) - 2 ¥

FRANEABERLABEEER
BfEELD -

(1).

(a) General information of the parent (a) BE A W] 3 A 5 3
company:
Place of registration Nature of business
= i it XBHE
Capital Group Beijing, The PRC Infrastructure, financial securities,
industrial technology, commercial
trade, tourist hotel, etc.
ERlES:! PEER™ EWRE erES  LTEMR BXE
5 TR 808 & &
The Company’s ultimate controlling AAFNEEEZEHN ST RS
party is Capital Group. EESETE
(b) Registered capital and changes in (b) B} 2y W) GE M & A Je 5 Ak
registered capital of the parent company:
Current Current
31 December period period 30 June
2012 additions decreases 2013
“E--F —E-=%
TZA=t-H REHE AN xERY»  ARA=TA
Capital Group EEESE 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
()  The proportions of equity interests and (0 BE 43 ) B A 4 ) B R B L
voting rights in the Company held by the 151 i 5 e HE LE 451
parent company:
As at 30 June 2013 As at 31 December 2012
ZB-ZFXAZ+H “E-ZF+ZA=+-H
Direct Indirect Voting Direct Indirect Voting
interest held interest held rights  interest held interest held rights
EERR BiEgs  ®AELA ERER HEEs  RAELD
% % % % % %
Capital Group k] 15.34 16.68 32.02 15.34 16.68 32.02
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7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED t. BB HBEBERERS (#)
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2). Information of joint ventures and 2). TELEMBEELERN
associates
The general information of joint ventures and BEMEMBEREERR WG
associates is set out in note 5(9). F(9) °
(3). Information of other related parties (3). -t 1B 35k 5 1 DL
Name of Relationship HEtE
related entities with the Company 28 HAEENEE
Capital Development Promoter R AREMERA
Reco Ziyang Minority interests of b ARRIZEE
subsidiaries FRAAMPERRE
Yangguang Xinye Under significant BrEE EANRRX
influence by the same A—EREE
key management ABEAYER
personnel and in BE FREAEEA

substance constitute of
a related party

Chengdu Zirui Xinli Subsidiary of KEBERHHER BAFENTRA
Co., Ltd. (“Zirui Yangguang Xinye RAR (LATRE
Xinli”) 33
Beijing Hongcheng Subsidiary of TREBRERE BRIENFAF
Zhanye Real Estate Yangguang Xinye EREERD
Development Co., Al (AT &
Ltd. (“Hongcheng HAEZE])
Zhanye”)
(4). Related party transactions (4). BWER5
The Board considers all transactions with RAFIESESRRMA LA
related parties are on normal commercial WX ZHTEEERMEGRT B
terms, and prices of related party transactions 32 5 B B A S B A
were agreed by the Group and its related R — BHEE ©
parties.
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(2 = FE—=FNA =1 HIU AR (B FEEI) 2 FEMLRBARETFT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED t. BB GBBRREREEY &)
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(4). Related party transactions (Continued) 4). BWBRS (&)
(a)  Providing consulting services (@)  $ROLEK AR B
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
BZE HE
=F—= —E——F
AA=TAHL ANA=+AHLE
ANE A B A AN EPER-tE
Tianjin Xinming RO - 1,186
Tianjin Xinging REFS - 1,920
Xi'an Xinkai AL H A 8,377 6,027
Shenyang Jitian EEE K - 2,148
Shenyang Xinzi EEEHE 8,855 4,328
Outlets (China) Ltd. BAFFRAT (R E) AR
(“Outlets China”)(i) NA (AT R
(B 1) () - 2,290
Xintai Jicheng FREK 15,792 -
Total = 33,024 17,899

(i) The Group disposed equity
interests in Outlets China in
September 2012, and Outlets
China is no longer a related party
of the Group.

(i) AEBRZ=ZZ—=
FRAKRE (F
Bl)EE AR
(FE)TBERAE
Elrd)
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7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4). Related party transactions (Continued)

(b)

(Receive)/Provide funding

. BB ERERAER S #)

(4).

B Wk 22 5 (4%)

(b) (k) REESE

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2013 2012

Bz HE

—=E—= —E——F

ANA=1+HL NA=+HIE

7~ 18 B Hi [ 7~ME A B

Huzhou Rongcheng SR S8 38, (57,000) 145,000
Zirui Xinli ESE - (13,873)
Outlets China BE(HRE) - 31,000
Financial Street R EEE - 19,275
Tianjin Xinming R 25,750 58,500
Tianjin Xinging RKEHE (129,450) (5,500)
Xian Xinkai AL A (240,650) 338,125
Yangguang Xinye 5 e % % - 605,734
Shenyang Xinzi EEHE 121,350 (70,921)
Hongcheng Zhanye R EE - 19,285
Dalecheng NEEEIDNE 3751 - (104,500)
GoldenNet Ea R (3,374) (408)
Chaoyang Investment 5 E 866 (9,880)
Beijing Wanzhu ItREZE (164,097) 6,609
Tonghua Qiangyu Lﬂf 08T 486 -
International School PRER 589 -
Capital Jiaming % gl 5= 8% (79,202) -
Shenyang Jitian G E K - 7,800
Total Bt (524,732) 1,026,246
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. BBTBRGRAER S #)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4). Related party transactions (Continued)

(9

(d)

Commission fee

(4).

IR W 52 5 (48)
(0 HEMEEM

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2013 2012

BZE S

—_E—= —E—-F

AA=tHL NA=+HIE

AE A B AN EPER-tIE

GoldenNet A8 E 44,468 30,411

The Group entrust GoldenNet as
exclusive sales agent of certain
projects. The commission fee payable
was charged by certain percentage

based on property sales price.

Interest income

AEEZALPHRA/LRE
B—-LIBANBEREER
2R ERREN T
AT HERE -

(d) A I 5L U6 O % A M

TR - L PN
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
B=E HE
—_E—= —E——4F
~NA=1+HI NAZ=Z+HIE
7~ 18 B Hi & 7~1E A HAfE
Beijing Wanzhu I REE 1,682 7,649
Capital Jiaming EEIES 3,320 3,312
Outlets China BH (PE) - 19,939
Financial Street R EEE 11,144 -
Total BEF 16,146 30,900
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BHE—F—

7.

SEAAZTALFEIBE (BRFIZE 2 HELBARETT)
RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED

PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4).
(e)

Related party transactions (Continued)

Guarantees

. BBTBRARAER S #)

Capital Group for the
Company

HEIEEAX

In 2009, the parent company Capital
Group, provided irrevocable guarantee
for the corporate bond amounted to
RMB1,000,000,000 issued by the
Company. The guarantee maturity date
is March, 2015.

In 2013, the parent company Capital
Group, provided irrevocable guarantee
for the borrowing from Xiamen
International Trust Co., Ltd, amounted
to RMB1,000,000,000. The guarantee

RETARUE2 AR

4). BERL (&)
(e) ¥ R

30 June 31 December

2013 2012

—E2—-=F %
~NA=+tH +-A=+—H

NS

2,000,000 1,000,000
AARMEARYE AL

N _ZEZENFE R
RKANABEITHARK
1,000,000,0007T A ﬂfa%‘%

£ {% #& Tf" R FERE Hﬁ EI

Al

R-E—RAF=H-
RRARME AR HEEE
RZZE—Z=ZF/EXR
EMBRERBRA

alfE

AH) A R #1,000,000,000
JL{E FE A8 X 1R 4 A BT S

maturity date is March, 2016. RESETRE ERY
HABAR-ZT—RF=H-
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E—=F :A——E
ARA=+H +TZHA=1—
The Company for AREBFRA
subsidiaries 8,015,382 7,276,996
A subsidiary for the FRAEBAERRTA
Company 104,000 154,000
Subsidiaries for FRAA/FRA]
subsidiaries 5,078,371 2,000,000
In February 2011, the Company AKARRZE——F = A
provided irrevocable guarantee for BARNRIZE2EF AT
the corporate bond amounted to EE&ﬁ%”*ﬂE’J/\E%
RMB1,150,000,000 issued by its wholly 1,150,000,0007C 2 7 f %
owned subsidiary BECL. The guarantee TET#T—H@( fﬁi%EL o
maturity date is February, 2014. ERFE R EREEA
RZE—MFE_Ro
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7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED t. BB ARERLEERS &)
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4). Related party transactions (Continued) 4). BB (&)
(e) Guarantees (Continued) (e) Bk (&)
In November 2012, the Company ARFRZE——F+—
entered into a Keepwell Deed for ARAEXRRRZEEF AR
the corporate bond amounted to FLOREBTHNARE
RMB2,000,000,000 issued by its 2,000,000,0007T 2 7] & &
wholly owned subsidiary Central Plaza. REETHZE RHEARD
IFC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the RIZEE T ARIFCHEKR
Company and some of its subsidiaries HE#HFRAIAZARE
are arranged to provide guarantee for HFIRHER-
the corporate bond above.
In April 2013, the Company entered AABR-_ZE—=4F/1 A
into a Keepwell Deed for the BARNBZEEFARF
Capital Securities amounted to USD KB {THY400,000,000
400,000,000 issued by its wholly- ETES M E SR AT
owned subsidiary Central Plaza. IFC, WE RHARAIZEER
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the TARIFCHEREE D F
Company and some of its subsidiaries UNEID-F2" Eal ik roy
arranged to provide guarantee for the ER (MIEER(32)(@)) °
Capital Securities above (note 5(32)(a)).
(f) Key management compensation f) PR 4 BN B 5
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
Bz HZE
—E—=fF —E——%F
ARA=t+HL ANA=THL
AE A B AN EPER-tE
Remuneration of key B E 1B A B 3
management personnel 12,071 10,784
(2 In 2013, a wholly owned subsidiary (® N —=fF @mERT
of Tonghua Qiangyu initiated the HE2BFRaIEAE R
establishment of Kunshan Chuangbo A AREEYTTEIL
Fund with the scale amounted Bl E 4 o B (L AlfE &
to RMB993,370,000 as general S ETHEBHS ARK
partner. The Company holds 16.4% 993,370,000 A8 2 7 %
subordinated units of Kunshan BERILAITEES16.4%4
Chuangbo Fund, and Kunshan W EE . B A E S
Chuangbo Fund is recognised as a joint EABRNTIHA LD %R
venture (note 5(9)(a)(iii)). In February & (W F Q) (a)i)) o A=
2013, the Group disposed of its entire T——FE_H AEEE
equity interest in Yongyuan Jintai and BEAEHKTERNERE
Xingtai Jicheng to Kunshan Chuangbo FXEI100% R EEE T B
Fund (note 4(2)(2)). WRIBES (MaEm (=)
(2)) °
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BE—F—

7.

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5)-

(a)

(b)

. BB ERAER S 2)

Related party balances (5). [ Y6 5 W Wi ~ W AF sk DL 5% 4

Advances to suppliers (a) AT KR
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—_=E—= —E——F
AA=+H +-—A=+—8H

Commission fee prepaid & 4B HEFE

to GoldenNet 27,652 34,280
Long-term receivables (note 5 (13)) (b) = R Wewk (B sk A .(13) )
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E2—=%F —E—_4F
~NA=+H +-A=+—H
Financial Street SRR E 554,214 522,293
As at 30 June 2013, the receivable RZE—=F,"A=+
includes principal and interests from S E Z 5018 R 7N & B FE IR
Financial Street, an associate of the RN T%mﬁl OB JE /) AR
Group. The receivable began to charge ® & FE - BT R
interest from 1 January 2013 at the AT —=F—H— EI

interest rate of bank borrowings with
the same period. Since the receivable
has no fixed maturity date and the
Group expected that the receivable will
not be collected within one year, the
receivable is classified as long-term
receivable.

FRIZBIBITRE X
e EmETERE $$

B TR AT — F R 8RB 5%
TKIA - A Utk £ B R R

% -
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. BB ARAER S (@)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5)-

Related party balances (Continued)

(c) Dividends receivables (note 5(5))

5)-

58 W 1y M ~ B Ak sk JEL 5% R

(0  BEWCBA (B ET(S))

30 June 31 December

2013 2012

—_E—= —E——F

ANA=+H +ZA=+—H

Tianjin Xinming RIEF 9,825 9,825
Xi'an Xinkai fitg=g e 87,422 87,422
Total &5 97,247 97,247

(d) Other receivables (note 5(3) (b))

d)  HABREREK (FEETG)b))

30 June 31 December

2013 2012

—E—-=F -

~NA=+tH +-A=+—H

Beijing Wanzhu (i) bR EE() 40,998 205,095
GoldenNet © RS 478 3,852
Huzhou Rongcheng RN E8 3K 6,567 6,567
Capital Jiaming ELIES - 79,202
Chaoyang Investment HGRE 8,886 8,020
Tonghua Qiangyu WERTF 486 -
International School BRER 589 -
Total A&t 58,004 302,736

The receivable due from Beijing
Wanzhu to the Company, is
charged at the interest rate
of bank borrowings with the
same period, unpledged and
unguaranteed, and has no fixed
maturity date.

Besides the receivables due from
Beijing Wanzhu other receivables
due from related parties above are
all interest free, unpledged and
unguaranteed, and have no fixed
maturity dates.

(i) ZRIBBARE R
It RBREREENRK
RAER - RIRTTRE
MR EEEE
EHARR - IR E
=P

B bt e M AL B SR ) 3K
RSN - A RIS EA B
EEEEEMR BER
BB
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BE—F—

7.

INTERIM REPORT 2013

SENAZTALAEIBE (BRFIZEI 2 FELBARETT)
RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED

PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5)-

(e)

Related party balances (Continued)

Other payables (note 5(22))

. BB ERAER S 2)

5)-

[58 Wi 1y MG ~ B Ak sk JEL 6% R
(%)

(e HAtRERE (BHaET(22))

30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—=F
AA=+H +t=-—A=+—H
Tianjin Xinming KE 66,250 92,000
Xi'an Xinkai 78 ¥ 693,150 452,500
Reco Ziyang (i) 04 2B () 56,714 56,714
Shenyang Xinzi BIZE 1,250 122,600
Tianjin Xinging KEHE 375,450 246,000
Financial Street %Eﬂ‘i?ﬁ}@f 377 377
Huzhou Rongcheng U3 77,000 20,000
Total A&t 1,270,191 990,191
() The payable is the principal of (i) Z I B K %B%ﬁﬁ
RMB56,714,000 borrowed by EEIMIEE X
Chengdu Xinzi from Reco Ziyang NAE R AR ’ﬁg
(note 5 (22)(a)). 56,714,000 T A & X
(MIEEA(22))) °
Above payables due to related parties L e R 5 SRIE R
are interest free, unpledged and FE ﬁlmfﬁéi&ﬁﬁ iz
unguaranteed, and have no fixed REFER
maturity dates.
(f)  Dividends payable of the Group is ) AEBEEMRFBZREH

(®

disclosed in note 5(21).

Remuneration payable to Directors (note

FFE21) e

(g TEATEFH M (MaEh

5(19)) (19))
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—_E—=%F —E——F
ANB=+H +ZA=+—H
Remuneration payable to EE5Me
Directors 21,961 19,206




HAEERMDARAT ZT =P

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5t o B ik
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BE-F—=FNNA=1HINEFEE (BEFFH) 2B E T BAREFT)
8. COMMITMENTS VA 3 3|
(1). Capital commitments 1. BEARER
Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet UWTRREEBREXRB B2EQ
necessary to be recognised on the balance i e S \E@Mﬂ#&i‘%tﬁﬁu E’JSE
sheet by the Group at the balance sheet date A
are as follows:
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
ARA=+H +tZA=+—8H
Authorised but not contracted Eﬁt/&f’iM, 15,719,359 9,728,548
Contracted but not paid FHRIZH 6,933,236 5,469,610
The Group’s shares of capital commitment in UWTRRAEBTEEEREBEFW
relation to joint ventures are as follows: BARMS HAERETERDEE :
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—Eg—= —EFE——4F
ARA=+H +ZA=+—H
Authorised but not contracted Eﬁt?&f’iﬁ 1,795,988 372,541
Contracted but not paid BRI 559,286 567,308
(2). Operating lease commitments 2). BEMEREHFHE
The future minimum lease payments due BRI E T A A BGE R A 2 1t

under the signed irrevocable operating leases

HEAR "EERKRKEEX

contracts are summarised as follows: NHESE®RINT :
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——4F
~NA=+tH +-A=+—H
Within 1 year —F LR 3,089 2,434
Between 1 and 2 years —&E-F 3,586 487
Between 2 and 3 years —_&E2= 1,883 -
Total &t 8,558 2,921
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BE—F—=FNNA="1HINEAERE (BRHEFZHS) 2 EE M BARETFT)
8. COMMITMENTS (Continued) J\. Kt FIE (2)
(3). Investment commitments (3). HIEEAEFIH
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
ARA=+H +ZA=+—H
Changfeng Development REZERABRATA]
Co., Ltd. 17,500 17,500
Capital Qinglv Culture BEIFIRE 29,000 29,000
9. DISCONTINUED OPERATION Ju. #IEgRE

In the year 2012, the Group entered into an
irrevocable agreement with Aotelaisi Renowned
Brand Discount Store Limited, Worldwide Renowned
Brand Discount Store Asia Limited, Aotelaisi
Renowned Brand Discount Store Properties Limited
and Aotelaisi Renowned Brand Discount Store
Investment Limited to dispose its entire equity
interests in the Guangdong Project Companies. The
transaction has been completed in April 2013.

In 2013, the Group transferred 100% equity interests
in Yongyuan Jintai and Xingtai Jincheng to its joint
venture Kunshan Chuangbo Fund. In February 2013,
the transaction has been completed.

R-T——F KAEEERKHH S
PrH0E B R AR - 5 R AT 05 G2 M
BRAR BEHREZEITNERES
RAF BERIBRITNEEXAR
NRIRFEEGE BEAEEEEN
FEREBRANEHBE- R_F—=
FMA BESEED K-

RZZE—=F AEEEFEH KT
T EEE K100%EEZETE E A
AIRILABES R-_TE—=F_8"
AR E B T ©
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BE-F—=FNNA=1HINEFEE (BEFFH) 2B E T BAREFT)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION Ju. BRIERE (@)
(Continued)
The operating results of the discontinued operations El R EEE o R E KRR a0
above are as follows: ™
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
BE-_Z—=F gz-_Z——-F
~NA=1H ~NHAH=1+H
B A A 7~ 18 A B fE
Revenue of discontinued operation A - -
Less: Costs and expenses of TR AR R AR A B A
discontinued operations 4,313 2,603
Total losses of discontinued operations 4% | 4% & B9 18 4458 4,313 2,603
Less: income taxes of discontinued IR EFTISTRE A
operations (1,078) (650)
Net losses of discontinued operations — #% |- &% 4 % &5 18 3,235 1,953
Including: net losses of discontinued EF - BERERARE
operations attributable to % A% SR A AR B A
ordinary shareholders of the &R EE
Company 1,862 904
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES +. MBHER
The Group has arranged bank financing for certain AEBERETHWEBLUEEALTHR

customers and has provided guarantees to secure
obligations of these customers for repayments.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties. These
guarantees will be expired when relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with the various
banks by the purchasers.

As at 30 June 2013, outstanding guarantees
amounted to RMB4,059,348,000 (31 December
2012: RMB3,822,872,000).

TRE THZEBETWERRER
HIER -

AEECRETYXEUBE T ZHR
TRE UTHZEBETNEREER
HER AEEN LD TP RIRITIZ
BERER) TABEAEEFEN
B IRIBRITEREABRE KR
EXMER KEED %Hﬁﬁﬁ%%
BEPEMHERE IR M BRI ER -
&Eﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%iéi
FrEEZELRZEEARELTERRE
B o

N-ZEBE—=FA=1+H ' KGEE
R4 5 A AR ®4,059,348,0007T ( =
TE-——FE+=-_A=+—"H: AE¥
3,822,872,0007T ) °
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BEr—F

10.

11.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)

As at 30 June 2013, other than guarantees provided
for subsidiaries disclosed in to note 7(4)(e), the Group
had no material external guarantee.

The Group believes that the guarantees above will
not have a significant impact on its financial position.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND
RISK

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks, including market risk (primarily
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(1). Market risk

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s major operational activities
are carried out in Mainland China
and a majority of the transactions
are denominated in RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from the recognized assets
and liabilities, and future transactions
denominated in foreign currencies,
primarily with respect to US dollars
and HK dollars. The Group’s finance
department at its headquarters
is responsible for monitoring the
amount of assets and liabilities, and
transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group may consider
entering into forward exchange
contracts or currency swap contracts
to mitigate the foreign exchange risk.
In March 2013, the Group entered into
a currency swap contract to swap the
three-year fixed-rate debt amounted
to RMB1,000,000,000 with a three-
year fixed-rate debt amounted to
USD 161,031,000 (note 5(2)).

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZS) 2 R E B ARKTT)

+. MBER 2

R_B—=FXA=1TRH XRARKTF
NERHERNESZ2EMELG)E)
REE A7 E A S IMER

AEEBRRLBAERTSHARENY
BRRELEBEATE -

+—. & T H & R B

REBMEHEHAAREZENT R
% hin R (BRESNER R - AR E K
KREMERRR) - ERRRMTEIER
B AEENEREREEAEZ IR
SRTHSNTARAN IZSREER
BEHAEBHBRRNEETNEE -

(1). 5 )E ks
(@  HbHE)EER

AEEBNEFBLEMRF
BEN TZBEBEUAAR
MEg BAEEEHER
R INE & EFI B & N oK 3k
K SN R 5 (HNEE & EE TN
BRERINEZRZHGEER
MITBABEMET)K
RTFEINERR - A& E
MEBT I B R BT
EBEINEZ B RINE L E
MEBEMNRE UAxKE
[& F% K T B2 B9 SMNE &L B
Bt NEBAREEUAE
ERMINEAGHNNERK T
BEHE A R REZED R E
SNERBRHBEH -R=ZF
—=ZF=Z A AEBEF
T # A R #1,000,000,000
TR =FHESERAE
75161,031,0007C K] = “E HA
BEENEETRAELE (W
FHE)
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11.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND

RISK (Continueq)

(1). Market risk (Continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2013 and 31 December
2012, the carrying amounts in RMB
equivalent of the Group’s assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are summarized below:

+—. & T H R H)R B (#)

(1. TS EE (&)
() HPEEREE (&)

RNRZE—=F, A=+
B -_ZE——F+_H
—+t—HB AEEFEEN
HNEE 5 B & E FNANEE &
BENERNAREHESEE

HIREAE
30 June 2013
—E—=55KXA=1H

UsD HKD EUR Total

=nEH BrIER BBl &t

Cash at bank and onhand  E#4 4 50,740 2,660,682 196,199 2,907,621
Financial assets held for XPUEEREE

trading 5,320 - - 5,320

Long-term borrowings REER 550,880 - - 550,880

Interest Payable 72 7,017 - - 7,017

31 December 2012
—E-CHF+ZHA=1T—H

UsDh HKD EUR Total

ELEE BEIER BUTIEE A&t

Cash at bank and on hand ~E# 4% 309,960 774,392 541 1,084,893

Long-term borrowings REER 292,873 - - 292,873

Interest payable FERS IS 6,655 - - 6,655

As at 30 June 2013, for all USD and
HKD denominated financial assets and
liabilities, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD/HKD
while all other variables had been held
constant, the Group’s net profit would
decrease/increase by approximately
RMB88,314,000 (31 December 2012:
decrease/increase RMB29,451,000).

RZE—=FxA=1
H SR AEESEINE
CMEEMINESHBE
f& ' a0 R AR 85N EE F
B ERESY HEA
AERFTE BAKE
15 Rk > sk 3 00 F FI OB 49
A R #88,314,0007T ( —
T-——F+R=+—
H: R sgEmy AR
29,451,0007T ) °
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BE-F—
11.

=FNA=THUNEFEE (BREFEEI) 2 FELBARETT)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND
RISK (Continueq)

1).

Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from long-term interest-bearing
borrowings including long-term
borrowings. Financial liabilities issued at
floating rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Financial liabilities
issued at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. The Group
determines the relative proportions of
its fixed rate and floating rate contracts
depending on the prevailing market
conditions. As at 30 June 2013, the
Group’s long-term interest bearing
borrowings were mainly RMB- and
USD-denominated with floating rates,
amounting to RMB10,537,988,000 (31
December 2012: RMB11,389,133,000).

Increases in interest rates will increase
the cost of new borrowing and the
interest expenses of the Group’s
outstanding floating rate borrowings,
and therefore could have a material
adverse impact on the Group’s
financial position. The Group’s finance
department of its headquarters
continuously monitors the interest
rate position of the Group and makes
decisions with reference to the latest
market conditions. The management
of the Group may enter into interest
rate swap agreements to mitigate its
exposure to interest rate risk.

For the six months ended 30 June
2013, if interest rates on the floating
rate borrowings had risen/fallen 50
basis points while all other variables
have been held constant, the financial
expenses of the Group would
increase/decrease by approximately
RMB52,690,000 (for the six months
ended 30 June 2012: RMB58,223,000).

+—. &k T H R H)R B (#)

(1).

T 5 B b (&)

(b)

ES N

AEEMWMNERREEE
EREHIBITERSERS

HEREK - ZBNENS
@%%ﬁﬁ%sﬁ%ﬁﬁ
= F R R EE X
MNemaEFEAEEEER
DNABEMERER - ~N&E
BEiRE S EA T SIRER
R IE & E A R R OF B FI K
ARMEYHLLH R =

—=—®XXA=1tH &%
ERBEEEBEEZAA
R RETTTERZEF
EER 2B HEFARE
10,537,988,0007C ( — =
——%+=-_A=+—8:
AR #11,389,133,000
T e

KEIW #B B 75 BP P 5 4
725 B A ORI R
LﬁAﬁMﬁ?mgﬁ%
¥ N LN EN )
BRI LA B ARG B A TS
BEBOMEH LY
AEENHBREELSE
ROTHEE EHEES
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PR R R o

BHE-_E—=F,A=+
HiE/NEAHAR an R
F B F K5 B A B R R

A TREEAEET
DE-MEMAEZRFTR
B KEEBEREITERF
%ﬁﬁéﬁmjmdmA
R #52,690,0007T (B =
—_E——-—#F#XXA=+H
WEREAHE - HARK
58,223,0007T ) °
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e —F——

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND
RISK (Continueq)
(1). Market risk (Continued)

(2).

(c) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
securities price risk because parts of
investments held by the Group are
classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. The management of the Group
monitors market conditions and price
fluctuations of securities investments.
Since the cost of available-for-sale
financial assets is low, the price risk of
the Group is low.

Credit risk

The Group manages its credit risk on a
classified basis. Credit risk mainly arises from
cash at bank, accounts receivable, and other
receivables.

The Group expects that that there is no
significant credit risk associated with cash at
bank since they are deposited at state-owned
banks and other medium or large size listed
banks and does not expect that there will be
any significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties.

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the
credit risk exposure on accounts receivable,
and other receivables. The Group assesses
the credit quality and sets credit limits on
its customers by taking into account their
financial position, the availability of guarantee
from third parties, their credit history and other
factors such as current market conditions.
The credit history of the customers is
regularly monitored by the Group. In respect
of customers with a poor credit history, the
Group will use written payment reminders,
reduce or cancel credit periods, to ensure the
overall credit risk of the Group is limited to a
controllable range.

FNA =1 H 1AM ERE (B EEEI) £ FEMBARETFT)

+—. &k T H R HRBE (#)

(1).

(2).

T 5 B b (&)
(o  fE#%JEER
AEBREGEHEDEFRE

EP3) ﬁTTﬁ TRMEE
&S ERRE R EIEE
EEMSRNLEFKRE
B EMIKE AR A H
ETMEENKARIE
WEFWH 2 B o

i P JL B

AEEHEARRRESDRE
TERE-ERRAREIEELERNER
TR AR SR - H s 8 IR

=
ZF°

AEBRTEREEZEEHNREE
fETTﬂﬁmﬁqﬂ’”meEﬂ ZiN
ERAEETFEERNEAR
ST EEAREHEMELM
ﬁﬁ(ﬂ’ﬂﬂﬂéj@%%°

It AN - 3 7 FE AR 3R L B MK
R 7 5 (B 3R TE A8 B UK DA FE
ERERBO AEEBERHE
Py BRI - 158 = 77 EUE
REVAIRENE - ERREEEER
EAMBATNHERREFEEP
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AEESEHHEFERLEE
TEE HRNEATHEIRNE
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Br—F

11.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFIZE) 2 R E B ARKTT)

+—. &k T H & H)RBE (&

RISK (Continuea)
(2). Credit risk (Continued) (2). 15 Mk (#Z)
The Group has arranged bank financing for AEBCHBERLYESEGR
certain purchasers of property units and HRITRLE WHBEEEMNEE
provided guarantees to secure obligations EBEHEER- BREBEEETE
of such purchasers for repayments. If a REFEERE TNRBERE
purchaser fails on the payment of its mortgage FoRTIRBEBERFTEALAS
during the term of the guarantee, the bank EEENAEENTHE UEE
holding the mortgage may demand the Group MIRTTERNEFFNESESR
to repay the outstanding amount under the PR o EHALLIER T - REBE A REF|
loan and any accrued interest thereon. Under BZmEHERRTHRIEER
such circumstances, the Group is able to sell SEHENMzcHE AL 518
the property to recover any amounts paid RANEEN(EE R D & AR
by the Group to the bank. In this regard, the /No
management considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
(3). Liquidity risk (3). ¥ B A b
Cash flow forecasting is performed by each AEBAZSTRARAEEB SN
subsidiary of the Group and aggregated RERETENR - BRI FBPIE
by the Group’s finance department in EEXFARIEERERANE
its headquarters. The Group’s finance ML CEEEEFEETEEH
department at its headquarters monitors MRENE & F R AERER
rolling forecasts of the Group’s short-term I 44 A 3R © {7 48 A0 0] 4 BB Iy 2430
and long-term liquidity requirements to ensure WEEBRSF AKGEERERS
it has sufficient cash and securities that are REERBENRE REES
readily convertible to cash to meet operational BMERBESREECTHERESD
needs, while maintaining sufficient headroom A UM RN ES
on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities FXKo
from major financial institution so that the
Group does not breach borrowing limits or
covenants on any of its borrowing facilities to
meet the short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements.
The financial assets and liabilities of the Group REEBERA AEEZHES
at the balance sheet date are analysed by MEENcREBEUNRTIRNE
their maturity date below at their undiscounted AR REERIEAITREO T
contractual cash flows:
30 June 2013
—E-ZEXA=TH
Between
Less than  Between 1 2 and Over
1year and 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FH0R —H=F “HEF BEENL A%t
Financial assets - SREE-
Cash KWAe 7,919,089 = = - 7,919,089
Receivables JE W 508 2,810,714 - - - 2,810,714
Long-term receivables REEKH 32,298 570,591 - - 602,889
Non-current assets due within —ERIEEREEE
one year 779,422 - - - 779,422
Total A 11,541,523 570,591 = - 12,112,114
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND T T E R R )
RISK (Continueq)
(3). Liquidity risk (Continued) (3). WEEPE (&)
31 December 2012
ZZ-Z%+”-A=t—H
Between
Less than Between 1 2 and Over
1year and 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—EHUA —H=% —HRF REE CH
Financial assets — PREE-
Cash gBES 8,616,773 - - - 8,616,773
Receivables JEW IR 3,256,789 - - - 3,256,789
Long-term receivables REEKH 31,338 1,377,335 - - 1,408,673
Total A 11,904,900 1,377,335 - - 13,282,235
30 June 2013
—E-=fxB=TH
Between
Less than  Between 1 2 and Over
1year and 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FEH0R —F=F “HEF HEENE &%
Financial liabilities - SRMER-
Short-term borrowings REER 33,473 - - - 33,473
Payables B IR 6,522,922 - - - 6,522,922
Debentures payable [ERES 214,640 1,161,357 2,023,512 - 3,399,509
Long-term borrowings REBEX 871,919 3,956,031 3,580,529 1,004,866 9,413,345
Current portion of non-current —ERIEERBAE
liabilities 6,959,450 - - - 6,959,450
Total At 14,602,404 5,117,388 5,604,041 1,004,866 26,328,699
31 December 2012
ZE-Z#+ZA=+-H
Between
Less than Between 1 2 and Over
1year and 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FLR —3=F —ZHRE AFNE CH
Financial liabilities — cHEE-
Short-term borrowings REER 568,309 - - - 568,309
Payables JERFIE 7,096,795 - - - 7,096,795
Debentures payable &R 268,598 2,344,216 2,092,336 - 4,705,150
Long-term borrowings REIER 843,102 8,746,069 2,127,909 1,158,613 12,875,693
Current portion of non-current —ERIBERHAE
liabilities 3,113,874 - - - 3,113,874
Total At 11,890,678 11,090,285 4,220,245 1,158,613 28,359,821
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BEr—F

11.

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFZ) 2 BB ARKTT)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND

+—. & T HREEE 2)

RISK (Continueq)
(4). Fair value 4). 2REME
(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair (a) N Wi
value TH
Financial assets and liabilities not TURAREBEF=EN SR/
measured at fair value mainly include BEENBEETERRE E
receivables, short-term borrowings, W SRIE « 52 HRfE 50 B 3R
payables, and long-term borrowings. |\ RHfEHR
Except for financial assets and liabilities RTemEEMAEIN
listed below, the carrying amount of N E AT AR A BE T
other financial assets and liabilities not ENERMEEMNBENER
measured at fair value is a reasonable AEEHEARBEMEEZR
approximation of their fair value: 2
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
—E-=fX"A=tH “E-ZF+ZA=+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REEE DREE RHEEE AhEE
Long-term borrowings REER 3,295,600 2,793,770 2,520,600 2,127,701
Debentures payable B ES 2,968,395 3,038,126 4,108,020 4,088,667
Total ARt 6,263,995 5,831,896 6,628,620 6,216,368

The fair value of long-term borrowings
and debentures payable not quoted in
an active market is the present value of
the contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the rate
of interest applied at that time by the
market to instruments of comparable
credit status and providing substantially
the same cash flows on the same time.

EHET EBNHESNKE
FIARENRRER S RER
Rmis EABRAILERSE
AR FE AR EER T B2 R AR
MR R E N REITH
BRrROBEEEEAAE
Be
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11.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND

RISK (Continued)

(4).
(b)

Fair value (Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair

value

Based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, the fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1, Quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2, Inputs other than quoted
prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3, Inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable
inputs)

As at 30 June 2013, the financial assets
measured at fair value by the above
three levels are analysed below,

4). N REMEE)
b) DA REMERBLHT
H

REEAARBEFETY
AAEBRBAAERERN
REERNBAE 2R
EBEBAADR:

F-EBA-HREEXE
BHEEEMS L (REH
B)HH|E -

F_E&:EE (L8
B ) sk (L RIRE
RERE) BRI -
B 55 — & A 7 B T 35 R (E
AN EE KB BN E A
(1518

FEZER:ATERIH
MEHIENINEEBE
RETMEEXBENER
ANE(TABEHAE) -

RZEBE—=ZF~A=+
H UAABEFENS
BMEER R =@ R
REOE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-ER EEHR EZER A%

Financial assets — CREE-
Financial assets held for THEERmERE

trading - 5,320 - 5,320
Available-for-sale financial ~ AItHESBEE

assets 97,906 - 50,000 147,906
Total =) 97,906 5,320 50,000 153,226
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BE—F—=FNA=1HIUNEAERE (BEFFZE) 2 FEBAREFT)
11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND + . 4 H R R R o)
RISK (Continueq)
(4). Fair value (Continued) 4). HNREMEE)
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair (b) VLo o (8 0 2 Y 4 ik 1
value (Continueq) (&)
As at 31 December 2012, the financial RZZEE—=—%+ = A
assets measured at fair value by the =+—H8:UAAR fﬁ (EXTg
above three levels are analysed below: ENSREER Ll =@
ERYIRAT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E# “EBE FoAR A%
Financial assets - iﬁﬁ?_
Available-for-sale financial HEESRHEE
assets 150,653 - 50,000 200,653

12. NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM

T4 S B R A 32 R IE H B R

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1). Other receivables (1). il R Wik
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E-=F —E - F
ANB=+H += ﬂ =+—H
Amounts due from JE UK B4 2R FR ()
subsidiaries(i) 15,591,415 11,858,769
Amounts due from joint FE U & &N B SRk
ventures 50,369 213,115
Guarantee funds for project 18 B XIZRES
tendering 10,000 10,000
Others Hib 15,657 21,833
Total a&r 15,667,441 12,103,717
Less: provisions for bad IR AR
debts (24,000) (24,000)
Other receivables — net HEA 15,643,441 12,079,717
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12. NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM + .2 %) B4 % #t 3¢ 3= 218 H M 5%
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (&)

Other receivables (Continued) (1).

(i) As at 30 June 2013, balance of loans
from the Company to the subsidiaries
is RMB5,633,597,000 (31 December
of 2012: RMB1,854,876,000), and the
interest rates range from 6% to 10%.
The loans have no fixed maturity date
and are unsecured and unguaranteed.
Other receivables due from subsidiaries
except for the loans above are interest
free, unsecured and unguaranteed and
have no fixed maturity date.

The analysis of other receivables and
the related provisions are as follows:

30 June 2013

L th JE W sk (48)

0] W-_ZT—= =
H ARQREFHBD
NAEHRIERE S A
#5,633,597,0007 (=
T-——_F+ZHA=+—
B : AR #1,854,876,000
TC)  FHMEEC%E10%
EERAMNER EETE
FHR o BRIt 2 S B E A fE
W+ R A& RFRIEH G
FE - EBIEAFER EE

RN

H 4t R U R R AR ) R R
BEDHT :

31 December 2012

—E-ZFXA=tH —T--—£+-fA=1+-H
% of total % of the % of total % of the
Amount balance Provision provision Amount balance Provision provision
S8 EHBELH EREE RN SF  EEELD) EERE SRt
% % % %
Within 1 year —ENR 15,642,663 100 - - 12,078,939 100 - -
1t0 2 years —3=F - - - - 178 - - -
210 3 years —H=% 178 - - - - - - -
Over 3 years ZENE 24,600 - (24,000) 98 24,600 - (24,000) 98
Total it 15,667,441 100 (24,000) - 12,103,717 100 (24,000) -
Long-term equity investments (2). RMIkHERE
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E—=fF —F—=
AA=+H +TZA=+—H
Subsidiaries (a) — unlisted FRAl@—FLmAA
companies 2,961,514 2,881,524
Joint ventures — unlisted AETE-IELETAA
companies 187,101 26,464
Associates — unlisted companies &t —3F FTh A 157,009 155,159
Total &t 3,305,624 3,063,147

There is no restriction on sale of the long-
term equity investment of the Company and
collection of the investment income.

ARB N FERPREZERE MK
2 [ (3] 1) BB KPR il o
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2 E—=FNA=1HIUNEREE (BEFEREES) 2FELBARETFT)

12. NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM 1 —.. 2\ &) B4 % $ % 3 %38 H B 5%

(2).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (#&)
Long-term equity investments (Continued) 2). RHIRESRE (&
Subsidiaries (a) T4 H
Attributable Attributable 31 December 30 June
interest held vote held 2012 Additions Disposals 2013
—B-C-f —F-=
HRpl RAELH T=A=+-B M KHRED AA=tAH
S.C. EEELD 100% 100% 734,005 - - 734,005
Rongjin Company NG 59.5% 59.5% 21,968 - - 21,968
Central Company L -YNG 100% 100% 79,433 - - 79,433
Central Plaza Xinrong RRER 100% 100% 90,437 - - 90,437
IFC IFC¥I % 100% 100% 20,480 - - 20,480
Central Plaza ROKE 100% 100% 39,466 - - 39,466
Jindu Company Bre® 100% 100% 369,970 - - 369,970
Beijing Xinzi LERFE 100% 100% 642,625 - - 642,625
Anhua Shiji ZEHL 55% 55% 136,303 - - 136,303
Shangboya i 8 7 100% 100% 30,000 - - 30,000
Shangbodi i# B 51% 51% 15,300 - - 15,300
Jiangsu Capital LEEE 100% 100% 60,375 - - 60,375
Capital Chengdu EL-l2%: 100% 100% 150,000 - - 150,000
Sunshine City 5 55 50% 60% 82,766 - - 82,766
Wuxi Xindong EHTR 100% 100% 100,000 - - 100,000
Capital (Chengdu) Investment & &/ (R #) % &

Co., Ltd. ERERAA 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Capital (Tianjin) Real Estate &I (X2)E%

Management Co., Ltd. ERERAF 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Beijing Ruiyuan Fengxiang It RBTLHEE

Real Estate Development BRAA

Co., Ltd. 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
Ruiyuan Fengji HTEE 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
Chuangxin Jianye BFEE 100% 100% 50,000 - - 50,000
Beijing Xinyuan Chengye LRBEDERN

Consultant Co., Ltd. BRARF 100% 100% 1,000 - - 1,000
Capital Nanjing Investment & &|@F {1 &

Co., Ltd. EBERNA 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Capital Guoxin () HEIE{E() 100% 100% 100,000 - - 100,000
Haikou Capital Xinye BOEEREER

Investment Co., Ltd. AT 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
BECL BERE 100% 100% 67,296 - - 67,296
Tianjin Yongyuan Investment K25k 0% &

Co., Ltd.(j) BRAA) 0.03% 0.03% 10 - (10) -
Beijing Chuangyuan Botao L REIREZERE

Architectural Design & R ERAR

Consulting Co., Ltd. A7 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Beijing Xinyuan Huafu TR TEERE

Investment Co., Ltd. ERERAA 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Beijing Hengyuan Yinxing LTRETHRERE

Investment Co., Ltd. ERERAA 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Chongaing Shouyong (i) Bk E (i) 100% 100% - 80,000 - 80,000
Beijing Dongaqi Jin zhao

Infrastructure Investment EMRERE

Co., Ltd. HRAR 100% 100% 30,000 - - 30,000
Total At 2,881,524 80,000 (10) 2,961,514
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM | =, 2% ] [ % #t 3% 32 236 H Wi 5%
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd) (%)
(2). Long-term equity investments (Continued) 2. RHBERE £)

(a)  Subsidiaries (Continued) @ FAE(E)

(i) In 2013, the Company disposes (i) B VNN
all equity interests of the BHFERZTRA
subsidiary to other wholly-owned THREREEEAR
subsidiaries of the Group. SEEFAENEM T

NEIIC

(i)  This company is established in (i) ZABA/RRAR
2013 and wholly-owned by the TE——FHER
Company. SWEETRA

(3). Revenue and cost of sales (3). “BEW A FnE A
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BZE HE
== —E—_F

ARA=+HLE AKRA=+HL
ANME A HE N E A HE

Revenue from main FEEBFKA ()

operations (a) 46,598 106,825
Revenue from other H A Z B U A (b)

operations (b) - 818
Total CEl 46,598 107,643
Cost of sales from main FEEEKA ()

operations (a) 78 -
Cost of sales from other H A ZE 75K 2 (b)

operations (b) - 52
Total A&t 78 52
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Br—F

12.

NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(3). Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

—=FNA=FHIE AR (B FFIZE) 2 R E B ARKTT)

T4 S B R A 32 R H B R
(%)

(). BEBAMEBERA (&)

(a) Revenue and cost of sales from main (a) EBEEBUW N B E
operations B
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Bz-2-=F HE_Z-—_fF
RA=THIE NA=THLE
AEAHE S E A
Main Main Main Main
operating operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs
PN B A PR
Consulting services I ON 46,598 78 106,825 -
(b) Revenue and cost of sales from other (b) 3L Al 3 %5 W A\ i I A 38 5
operations BAR
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
BE-Z2-=F% BE-Z—-F
RA=THIE NA=THLE
~EAHE NERE R
Other Other Other Other
operating operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs
Htr 3% Hit % HihEH Hin %%
PN 2% WA X7
Other income Hi - - 818 52
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12. NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM

(2 = FE—=F N A =1 HIU AR (BRI 2 FEMLRBARETFT)

+ 2 2 ) B e 32 ROE H Mt Rk

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd) (%)
(4). Investment income 4). #EWE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
B=E H=E
—E—=f —EF—=
ANA=tTHILE NHA=+HIE
B A A 7N {E A B3R
Share of (loss)/profit of investees & A AF A 5 HEH
under equity method W EEMFETDN
vk (484) 13,233
Dividend income from available- ] f £ & 4 &t & & A% 7
for-sale financial assets L& 772 -
Gain from disposal of associates R EHE A A NEZ A7
and joint ventures EEMEE WG - 989
Others (note 5 (40)(a)) H b (32 (40)(@a)) 17,270 -
Total A5 17,558 14,222

13. NET CURRENT ASSETS +=. FhRBEE

30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—_E—=F —EF—=
ANAB=+H +=-A=+—H
Current assets mENEE 37,448,062 37,818,579
Less: Current liabilities MBI AE (23,005,890) (21,822,841)
Net current assets FREEE 14,442,172 15,995,738
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BE—F—=F NA=1FHI AR (BRFZH) 2 BEBARETT)

14. TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

+ Y. 48 B B £ 1R

LIABILITIES
30 June 31 December
2013 2012
—E-= —E-CF
ANA=+H +ZA=+—H
Total assets B EMBR 47,118,748 47 536,488
Less: Current liabilities R BB E (23,005,890) (21,822,841)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERLEEE 24,112,858 25,713,647
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